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Chairman’s Letter

1

To MetL"»fe‘s Shareholders:

MetLife is widely respected as a company that is financially strong and commitied to meeting its long-
term obligations: we deliver on the guarantees and promises we make. At the same time, our company
has, for 137 years, demonstrated something equally important and compelling—that MetLife builds
financial freedom for everyone. This commitment and the execution of our business plans in 2004
resufted in record results for Metlife's sharehoélders —the owners of this great organization.

For the third year in a row, Metlife delivered record net income. We did this by keeping a strong
focus on effectively managing and further growing the businesses where we are a leader. Today, we're
leveraging the vast knowledge and thought leadership within Metlife to develop new and innovative
sclutions that will enhance and complement our current product portfolio. And with Metlife's diverse offerings and strong financial
ratings, our multiple distribution systems continue to successfully and effectively help our clients prepare for their financial future.
Maintaining a focus on both product development and distribution is crucial because, even though we already serve tens of millions of
customers, ‘there are many more who can benefit from the financial solutions Metlife offers.

In addition to a focus on business resuits, the entire management team at MetLife is committed to maintaining our high standards for
corporate governance and strong ethics and compliance programs. Executive bonuses are tied directly to return on equity growth and
we have stock ownership guidelines at every level of management from vice president and above to ensure that every officer has a stake
in the future of Metlife.

> Growth and Record Results

In 2004, MetlLife's total revenues rose 10% to $39 billion. For the year, net income grew 24% to $2.76 billion; total premiums, fees
and other revenues wére up 8% to $26.4 billion; annuity deposits increased slightly; and assets under management grew 9%.

In addition to maintaining a focus on financial performance, each of Metlife's core businesses grew their top-line results.

Institutional Business net income increased by 50% for the year, generated double-digit growth in the small, mid-sized and large
group markets, achieved record structured settlement sales, launched a new annuity serigs in Retirement & Savings, and continued to
introduce group product and service innovations. In addition, Institutional Business also launched a pilot program for Metlife's new
critical illness business, This new product initiative is a perfect example of our ability to leverage our expertise, market-leading position
and strong ratings to develop a new offéring in the marketplace.

During the year, Individual Business net income increased by 45% over 2003 results. Metlife's Individual Business organization is
putting comprehensive plans in place to keep the company at the forefront of our industry by strengthening our retail distribution
channels and by enhancing MetlLife's competitive portfolio of life and annuity products to meet our clients’ needs. In 2004, Individual
Business launched a new guaranteed withdrawal benefit rider for all of the company's individual variable annuities and grew the number
of Metlife career agents for the first time since 1999. Metlife is committed to growing its career agency distribution channel by recruiting
high guality, talented professionals.

MetlLife Auto & Home posted its third consecutive record year as net iIncome for the segment grew 32% to $208 million. This was an
impressive achievement considering that this earnings growth was attained in a year when the southeast U.S. expenenced one of the
worst hurricane seasons in history. Meilife Auto & Home has also significantly reduced its combined ratio.

In addition to generating strong, top-line results during the year, Metlife International also grew its customer base by one million to
nine million customers at December 31, 2004 as this segment continues to focus on growing and investing in key emerging markets
outside of the United States. Since its launch in March 2004, Sino-U.S. Metlife Insurance Company has been focused on recruiting
talented individuals to join our professicnal agency force in Beijing, China. In addition, in September 2004, Metlife purchased a 42.9%
equity stake in BancoEstado Corredora de Seguros, a wholly-owned brokerage company of BancoEstado, one of the largest banks in
Chile. Moving forward, International wilt continue to be a growth engine for MetLife.

MetlLife Bank more than doubled deposits during the year—growing from $1.3 billion at the end of 2003 to $2.7 billion at the end of
2004. Not only did MetLife Bank continue to bring in substantial deposit growth, it also achieved profitability one year ahead of plan. With
the strong Metlife brand and competitive savings products, MetlLife Bank continues to demonstrate its ability to compete in the
aggressive retail banking marketplace.

> Delivering on Strategy

Thougn it was announced in January 2005, it is certainly important for me to highlight MeiLife's pending acquisition of the majority of
The Travelers Insurance Company and substantially all of Citigroup Inc.'s international insurance businesses. This transaction will be a
defining one for Metlife. Once completed, the acguisition will make Meilife the largest seller of individual life insurance in the United
States, the second largest seller of annuities and will substéntially increase Metlife’s international footprint. Equally important, it wil
expand the distribution reach of our organization through {en-year agreements we will sign with Citigroup. Not only is this transaction a
strategic fit, it will also increase our customer base, bringing, MetLife closer to achieving its goal of 100 miltion customers by 2010,

in keeping with our core business strategy, in 2004 we made the decision to sell SSRM Holdings, Inc., the holding company of State
Street Research & Management Company and SSR Realty Advisors, Inc., to BiackRock, Inc.—one of the largest publicly-traded




investment management firms in the country. State Street Research clients, which include many MetLife Institutional customers, are now
being well served by a successful, experienced investment management organization.

We continued to build shareholder value during the year by effectively managing Metlife’s finances and appropriately diversifying the
company's investment portfolio, which grew to approximately $240 billion at the end of 2004. During the year, we repurchased
approximately 26 million shares of common stock and doubled the shareholder dividend to $0.46 per share. At the same time,
shareholders’ equity, excluding other comprehensive income, increased by 8% to $19.9 billion.

> A Strong Talent Base

While core business growth is a key priority, one of the attributes that has made MetLife a strong, well-diversified competitor in the
marketpiace has been our diverse and experienced talent pool.

In 2004, we made several critical leadership changes. In June, C. Robert Henrikson was named MetLife, Inc.’s president and chief
operating officer and now oversees all of the company’s revenue-generating businesses. Having all of Metlife's business segments

“report to Rob will better position the company to leverage the common operating platform we've developed over the past several years
and further improve' results. Lisa M. Weber was named president of Individual Business and, effective January 1, 2005, also oversees
the company’s Auto & Home segment. This moves all of MetLife’s retail insurance operations under one organization and better positions
it to serve the needs of Metlife’s indlividual clients. Also on January 1, Catherine A. Rein, who oversaw six years of growth at MetLife
Auto & Home, was named senior executive vice president and chief administrative officer. With all of MetlLife's support functions
reporting to Cathy, including human resources, ethics and compliance, information technology and more, her organization is well
structured to support the needs of each of Metlife's business segments.

> Opporkuriities for Future Growth

Last year, | told you that it was an extremely exciting time to be at MetlLife. Our momentum continues today as Metlife prepares,
during 2005, to once again demonstrate our ability to deliver on our targets.

As we continue to work hard to complete our acquisition of Travelers, we alsc remain keenly focused on our 2005 business plans. We
are launching new products in the marketplace and identifying ways to grow our customer base. We know that people across the glo‘be
are under-insured, under-saved and, in the case of the baby boom generation, in need of retirement solutions that will guarantee
income., Meilife is ready to meet these needs and more. Through our combined market leadership, financial strength and strong
distribution systems, we are ready to meet those needs.

| look forward to continuing to share our progress with you and | thank you for your continued confidence and support of MetLife,

Sincerely,

A

Rcbert H. Benmosche .
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officar
MetlLife, Inc.

March 18, 2005




Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report, including the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, contains statements
which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements relating to
trends in the operations and financial results and the business and the products of the Registrant and its subsidiaries, as well as other statements
including words such as “anticipate,” "believe,” “plan,” "estimate,” "expect,” “intend” and other similar expressions. “MetLife" or the “Company" refers
to MetlLife, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries, including Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“Metropolitan
Life"). Forward-locking statements are made based upon management's current expectations and beliefs conceming future developments and their
potential effects on the Company. Such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. See "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial information for the Company. The selected consolidated financial information for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, and at December 31, 2004 and 2003 has been derived from the Company's audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere herein. The selected consclidated financial information for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and
at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 has been derived from the Company's audited consolidated financial statements not included elsewhere herein.
The following information should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by the information contained in “Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and the consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere herein. Some previously
reported amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation at and for the year ended December 31, 2004,

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
{Dollars in millions)

Statemehts of Income Data

Revenues: .
PramiUmS .« v e e ettt i e JS e $22,316 $20,673 $19,077 $17.212 $16,317
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees ........................ 2,800 2,496 2,147 1,889 1,820
Net investment INComE(1) . ..o e 12,418 11,538 11,183 11,101 10,886
Otherrevenues .................. P e 1,198 1,188 1,166 1,340 2,070
Net investment gains (0SSES)(T)2H3) « v vt e i 182 (582) (892) (713) (444)
Total revenues(d)(B)B) . ..o e 39,014 35,325 32,681 30,829 30,649
Expenses:
Policyholder benefits and claims ... ..o in i e PR 22,662 20,665 18,373 18,295 16,834
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ........................... 2,998 3,035 2,850 3,084 2,935
Policyholder AVIGENAS . . ottt vt e e e e e e 1,814 1,975 1,042 2,088 1,619
Payments to former Canadian policyholders(?y. ..o - — — - 327
Demutualization costs .. ... ot P - — - — 230
Otherexpensesm).........‘...............,....‘...“ .................... 7,761 7,091 6,813 6,835 7,112
_ Total expenses( OB 7). v e e e 35,235 32,766 31,078 30,300 29,457
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes ............. 3,779 2,558 1,603 520 T 1,192
Provision forincome taxes(1di8) . .. ...t i e 1,071 660 480 191 376
Income from ContinuUing OPETatioNS . ..« r i e e 2,708 1,899 1,113 338 816
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes(1)(4) .............. ... 136 344 492 135 137
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting. ...l L . 2,844 2,243 1,605 473 953
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes ....... e - (86) (26) — — -
NBLIMOOME . . . 4+t ettt ittt e e et et ee e e $2758 $2217 $1606 $ 473 $ 9583
Net income after April 7, 2000 (date of demutualization). ... ............ ..ot $ 1,173
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At December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
{Dollars in millions)

Balance Sheet Data

Assets:
General A0COUNT BSSEIS . .ttt et et e $270,039 $251,085 $217,733 $194,256 $183,912
Separate acCoUNt 8SSEIS . . v oo it 86,769 75,756 59,693 62,714 70,250
Total ASSBIS()  o $356,808 $326,841 $277,426 $256,970 $264,162
Liabilites:
Life and health policyholder liabilities(S) ... $180,847 $176,628 $162,563 $148,385 $140,040
Property and casualty policyholder fiabilties. . ............ . oot 3,180 2,943 2673 2,610 2,569
Short-term delbt ... e 1,445 3,642 1,161 365 . 1,085
LONg-team debt . . e e 7,412 5,703 4,411 3,614 2,353
Other ligbiliies . . ..o 44,331 41,020 28,269 21,964 20,396
Separate account ligbilities .. ..o ERRRRS 86,769 75756 58,693 62,714 70,250
Total liahilities(d) . . ... 333,984 305,692 258,776 239,652 236,683
Company-obligated mandatorily redesmable securities of subsidiary trusts. . — — 1,265 1,256 1,090
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock, at parvalue(10) ... .ot 8 8 8 8 8
Additional pald-in capital{TQ) . ... e e 15,037 14,991 14,068 14,966 14,926
Retained @amingS(10) . .« v vttt e e e 6,608 4,193 2,807 1,349 1,021
Treasury stock, 8t cost{T0) .. oo (1,785 {835) (2,405) (1,934) 613)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ((0ss)(10) ... 2,956 2,792 2,007 1,673 1,047
Total stockholders’ equity . ..o v e e 22,824 21,149 17,385 16,062 16,389
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ..o e $356,808  $326,841 5277426  $256,870  $254,162
At or for the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in millions}
Other Data
NELINCOME . oottt e e e e $ 2,758 $ 2,217 $ 1,605 $ 473 3 953
Return on equity(1 1) . o oo e 12.5% 11.5% S.6% 2.9% 8.3%
Return on equity, excluding accumulated other comprehensive income . . . . 14.4% 13.1% 10.8% 3.2% 12.1%
Total assets under management(12). . . .. it $386,951 $350,235 $299,187 $282,486 $301,325

Income from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Shareholders Per Share(13)

o $ 361 $ 255 $ 188 $ 046 $ 1.4

0= $ 359 $ 251 $ 158 $ 045 $ 139
income from Discontinued Operations Per Share(13)

7 T o A $ 018 $ 047 $ 070 $ 018 $ 011

31177 [ PN $ 018 $ 046 $ 067 $ 018 g 01
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Per Share(13)

BasiC e $ ©11) $ (004 3 — $ — $ —

DU vt $ ©i1ny 8§ 003 % - 8 - 3 —
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders Per Share(13)

BaSIC Lot $ 368 $ 298 $ 228 $ 064 $ 182

111 =" O P $ 3865 $ 294 $ 220 $ 062 $ 149

$ 023 3 02 $ 020 $ 020

Dividends Declared Per Share .. ................. ... .. ....cciiu. .. $ 046

(1} In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of L.ong-Lived Assets
("SFAS 144"}, income related to real estate sold or classified as held-for-safe for transactions initiated on or after January 1, 2002 is presented as
discontinued operations, The following table presents the components of income from discontinued real estate operations (see footnote 4):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

- {Dollars in millions) -

IVBSIMENt NCOME . .. .. o $136  §231 $530  $825  $177
INvestment eXpeNSe .. .o 82) (138) 351) (339 —
Net investment gains (I0SS8S) .. ..ot 139 420 582 — —
TOWEl reVENUES . .. .o 193 513 761 186 177
INTErESt EXDENSE i ettt et e e 13 4 1 — —
Provision for income taxes. .......c.cov il N 63 186 276 68 65
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes............. $117 $ 323 5484 $118 $112

(2) Netinvestment gains (losses) exclude amounts related to real estate operations reported as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS 144,
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{3) Net investment gains (losses) presented include scheduled periodic settlement payments on derivative instruments that do not qualify. for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, of $51 million, $84 million, $32 million
and $24 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

{4) During the third quarter of 2004, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its wholly-owned subsidiary, SSRM Holdings, Inc. ("SSRM™), to a
third party, which was sold on January 31, 2005. In accordance with SFAS 144, the assets, liabilties and operations of SSRM have been
reclassified into discontinued operations for all periods presented. The following tables present the operations of SSRM:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(Dollars in mlllxons)

.................................... $328 $231 $239 $254 3258

Revenues from discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations, before provision for income taxes. . ....... $32 $34 $14 $24 $ 47
Provision for income taxes . ... . 13 13 &) 7 22
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes .................. $19 $21 ¢ 8 $17 825

For the Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars in millions)

General 80C0UNt 8SSBES ...t $87.9 $183 $198 $203 $228
oA BSOS v vttt et e $379  $183 $198 $203 $228
SO dBDL . . .ot $319 $- $- & - & —

Long-temm debt oo = — 14 14 47
Other liabilities .. ... 221 70 78 80 95
Total iabilities . . ..o $240 $70 $92 3B o4

5142

{8) Includes the following combined financlal statement data of Conning Corporation {"Conning™), which was sold in 2001, and Metlife's interest in
Nvest Companies, L.P. {"Nvest”) and its affiiates, which was sold in 2000;

For the Years
Ended
December 31,

2001 2000
{Dollars in
millions)

O B S . . v vt ettt e e $32  $805
TOM BXDENSES o vttt ettt e e e $33  $580

As a fesult of these sales, investment gains of $25 milion and $663 million were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectivaly.

) Included in total revenues and total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 are $421 million and $358 million, respectively, related to
Aseguradora Hidalgo S.A., which was acquired in June 2002.

{7} In July 1998, Metropolitan Life sold a substantial portion of its Canadian operations to Clarica Life Insurance Company (“Clarica Life"). As part of that
sale, a large block of policies in effect with Metropolitan Life in Canada was transferred to Clarica Life, and the holders of the transferred Canadian
policies became policyholders of Clarica Life. Those transferred policyholders are no longer policyholders of Metropolitan Life and, therefore, were
not entitled to compensation under the plan of reorganization. However, as a result of a commitment made in connection with obtaining Canadian
regulatory approval of that sale and in connection with the demutualization, Metropolitan Life's Canadian branch made cash payments to those who
were, or were deemed to be, holders of these transferred Canadian policies. The payments were determined in @ manner that is consistent with the
treatment of, and fair and equitable to, eligible policyholders of Metropolitan Life.

(8) Provision for income taxes includes a credit of $1456 million for surplus taxes for the year ended December 31, 2000. Prior to its demutuahzatlon
Metropolitan Life was subject to surplus tax imposed on mutual fife insurance companies under Section 809 of the Intermal Revenue Code.

(9) Policyholder liabilities include future policy benefits and other policyholder funds. Life and health policyholder liabilities also include policyholder
account balances, policyholder dividends payable and the policyholder dividend obligation.

(10) For additional information regarding these items, see Notes 1 and 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

{11) Retum on equity is defined as net income divided by average total equity.

(12) Includes MetLife's general account and separate account assets and assets managed on behalf of third parties. Includes $21 billion of assets under
management managed by Conning at December 31, 2000, which was sold in 2001. Includes assets managed on behaff of third parties related to
SSRM, which was sold on January 31, 2005, of $30 bition, $23 bilion, $22 bilion, $26 billion and $26 billion at December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

(13) Based on eamings subsequent to the date of demutualization. For additional mformatnon regarding net income per share data, see Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For purposes of this discussion, the terms “MatLife” or the “Company’” refers to Metlife, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Holding Company™), and
its subsidiaries, including Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“Metropolitan Life"). Following this summary is a discussion addressing the consolidated
results of operations and financial condition of the Company for the pericds indicated. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company's
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere herein.

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains statements which constitute forward-looking
statemnents within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements relating to trends in the operations and
financial results and the business and the products of the Registrant and its subsidiaries, as well as other statements including words such as
“anticipate,” “believe,” "plan,” “estimate,” "expect,” “intend” and other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are made based upon
management's current expectations and beliefs conceming future developments and their potent|a| effects on the Company. Such forward- Iooklng
statements are not guarantess of future performance.

Actual results may differ materially from those included in the forward-looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties including, but not
imited to, the following: (i) changes in general economic conditions, including the performance of financial markets and interest rates; (i} heightened
competition, including with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and the development of new products by new and existing competitors;
(iiiy unanticipated changes in industry trends; (iv) MetLife, Inc.'s primary reliance, as a holding company, on dividends from its subsidiaries to meet debt
payment obligations and the applicable regulatory restrictions on the ability of the subsidiaries to pay such dividends; {v) deterioration in the experience of
the “closed block” established in connection with the recrganization of Metropolitan Life; (vi) catastrophe losses; (Vi) adverse results or other
consegusnces from litigation, arbitration or reguiatory investigations; {viii} regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for,
the Company’s products or services; (ix) downgrades in the Company's and its affliates’ claims paying ability, financial strength or credit ratings;
() changes in rating agency 'policies or practices; (xi) discrepancies between actual claims experience and assumptions used in setting prices for the
Company's products and establishing the liabilities for the Company’s obligations for future policy benefits and claims; (i) discrepancies between actual
experience and assumptions used in establishing liabilities related to other contingencies or obligations; (xii) the effects of business disruption or
economic contraction due to terrorism ar other- hostilites; (xiv) the Company's ability to identify and consummate on successful terms any future
acquisitions, and to successiully integrate acquired businesses with minimal disruption; and (xv) other risks and uncertainties described from time to time
in MetLife, Inc.’s fings with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC™), including its S-1 and S$-3 registration statements. The
Company specifically disclaims any obligation to update or revise any forward-locking statement, whether as a result of new information, future
developments or otherwise.

Economic Capital

Beginning in 2008, the Company changed its methodology of allocating capital to its business segments from Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") to
Economic Capital. Prior to 2003, the Company’s business segments’ allocated equity was primarily based on RBC, an intemally developed formula
based on applying a muitiple to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) Statutory Risk-Based Capital and included certain
adjustments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ('GAAP”). Economic Capital is an internally
developed risk capital model, the purpose of which is to measure the risk in the business and fo provide a basis upon which capital is deployed. The
Economic Capital model acaounts for the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in MetLife's businesses. This is in contrast to the standardized
regulatory RBC formula, which is not as refined in its risk calculations with respect to the nuances of the Company's businesses.

The change in methodclogy is being applied prospectively. This change has and will continue to impact the level of net investment income and net
income of each of the Company’s business segments. A portion of net investment income is credited to the segments based on the level of allocated
equity. This change in methodology of allocating equity does not impact the Company’s consolidated net investment income or net income.

The following table presents actual and pro forma net investment income with respect to the Company's segments for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2002. The amounts shown as pro forma reflect net investment income that would have been reported in 2002 had the Oompany allocated
capital based on Economic ‘Capital rather than on the basis of RBC.

Net Investment Income
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2002

Actual Pro forma
(Dollars in millions)
SHIIIONAL . o o et e e e $ 3900 & 397
IMANVIGUAL . .« .« o e e e e e 6,237 6,148
AUID B HOME . .o 177 160
IEmIAl ONAl . o e e e e e 461 424
RN SUI AN CE . . .ttt e e e e 421 382
OOl & BT, . ottt et e e e (22) 98 N
OBl oo e $11,183  $11,183

Acquisitions and Dispositions

On January 31, 2005, the Holding Company completed the sale of SSRM Holdings, Inc. (*SSRM") to a third party for $328 million of cash and
stock. As a result of the sale of SSRM, the Company recognized income from discontinued operations of approximately $180 million, net of income
taxes, comprised of a realized gain of $166 milion, net of income taxes, and an operating expense related to a lease abandonment of $16 million, net of
income taxes. Under the terms of the agreement, MetLife will have an opportunity to receive, prior to the end of 2008, additional payments aggregating
up to approximately 25% of the base purchase price, based on, among other things, certain revenue retention and growth measures. The purchase price
is also subject to reduction over five years, depending on retention of certain MetLife-related business. The Company has reclassified the assets,
liabilities and operations of SSRM into discontinued operations for all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, the sale of
SSRM resulted in the elimination of the Company's Asset Management segment, The remaining asset management business, which is insignificant, has
been reclassified into Corperate & Other. The Company's discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 also includes expenses of
approximately $20 million, net of income taxes, related to the sale of SSRM.
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In 2008, a subsidiary of the Company, Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated (“RGA”), entered into a coinsurance agreement under which it
assumed the fraditional U.S. life reinsurance business of Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America (“Allianz Life"). The transaction added
approximately $278 billion of fife reinsurance in-force, $246 milion of premium and $11 million of income before income tax expense, excluding minarity
interest expense, in 2003. The effects of such transaction are included within the Reinsurance segment.

In 2002, the Company acquired Aseguradora Hidalgo S.A. {"Hidalgo™), an insurance company based in Mexico with approximately $2.5 billion in
assets as of the date of acquisition (June 20, 2002). During the second quarter of 2003, as a part of its acquisition and integration strategy, the
Intemational segment completed the legal merger of Hidalgo into its original Mexican subsidiary, Seguro Genesis, S.A., forming MetLife Mexico, S.A. As a
result of the merger of these companies, the Company recorded $62 million of eamings, net of income taxes, from the merger and a reduction in
policyholder lizbilities resulting from-a change in reserve methodology. Such benefit was recorded in the second quarter of 2003 in the Intemational
segment.

See "— Subsequent Events” below.

" Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to adopt accounting policies and make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consofidated financial statements. The most critical estimates include those used in determining:
() investment impairments; (i) the fair value of investments in the absence of quoted market values; {iii) application of the consolidation rules to certain
investments; (iv) the fair value of and accounting for derivatives: {v) the capitalization and amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs (‘DAC"),
including value of business acquired ("VOBA”); (vi] the liability for future policyholder benefits; (vii) the liability for fitigation and regulatory matters; and
{viliy accounting for reinsurance transactions and employee benefit plans. in applying these policies, management makes subjective and complex
judgments that frequently require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain. Many of these policies, estimates and related judgments are
common in the.insurance and financial services industries; others are specific to the Company's businesses and operations. Actual results could differ

from those estimates.

Investments

The Company's principal investments are in fixed maturities, mortgage and other loans and real estate, all of which are exposed to three primary
sources of investment risk:  credit, interest rate and market valuation. The financial statement risks are those associated with the recognition of
impairments and income, as well as the determination of fair values, The assessment of whether impairments have occurred is based on management's
case-by-case evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors about the security issuer
and uses its best judgment in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the security and in assessing the prospects for near-term
recovery. Inherent in management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the issuer and its future eamings
potential. Considerations used by the Company in the impairment evaluation process inciude, but are not limited to: (i) the length of time and the extent to
which the market value has been below cost or amortized cost; (i} the potential for impairments of securities when the issuer is experiencing significant
financial difficulties; (i) the potential for impalments in an entire industry sector ar sub-sector; {iv) the potential for impaiments in certain economically
depressed geographic locations; (V) the potentiat for impairments of securities where the issuer, series of issuers or indusiry has suffered a catastrophic
type of loss or has exhausted natural resources; (Vi) the Company's ability and intent to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for the
recovery of its value to an amount equal to or greater than cost or amortized cost; (vil) unfavorable changes in forecasted cash flows on asset-backed
securties; and (Vi) other subjective factors, including concentrations and information abtained from regulators and rating agencies. In addition, the
eamings on certain investments are dependent upon market conditions, which could result in prepayments and changes in amounts to be eamed due to
changing interest rates or eguity markets. The determination of fair values in the absence of quoted market values is based on: () valuation
methodologies; (i) securities the Company deems to be comparable; and (jii) assumptions deemed appropriate given the circumstances. The use of
different methodologies and assumptions may have a material effect on the estirmated fair value amounts. In addition, the Company enters into certain
structured investment transactions, real estate joint ventures and limited partnerships for which the Company may be desmed to be the primary
beneficiary and, therefore, may be required to consolidate such investments. The accounting rules for the determination of the primary beneficiary are
complex and reguire evaluation of the contractual rights and obligations associated with each party involved in the entity, an estimate of the entity’s
expected losses and expected residual retums and the allocation of such estimates to each party.

Derivatives

The Company enters into freestanding derivative transactions primarily to manage the risk associated with variability in cash flows or changes in falr
values related to the Company's financial assets and liabilities. The Company also uses derivative instruments to hedge its currency exposure associated
with net investments in certain foreign operations. The Company also purchases investrnent securities, issues certain insurance policies and engages in
certain reinsurance contracts that have embedded derivatives. The associated financial statement risk is the volatility in net income which can resutt from
() changes in fair value of derivatives not.qualifying as accounting hedges; (i) ineffectiveness of designated hedges; and (i} counterparty default. In
addition, there is & risk that embedded derivatives requiring bifurcation are not identified and reported at fair value in the consolidated financial staterments.
Accounting for derivatives is complex, as evidenced by significant authornitative interpretations of the primary accounting standards which continue to
evolve, as well as the significant judgments and estimates involved in determining fair value in the absence of quoted market values. These estimates are
based on valuation methodologies and assumptions deemed appropriate in the circumstances. Such assurmptions include estimated volatility and
interest rates used in the detemmination of fair value where quoted market values are not available. The use of different assumgptions may have a material
effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs ‘

The Company incurs significant costs in connection with acqumng new and renawal insurance busingss. These costs, which vary with and are
primarily related to the production of that business, are deferred. The recovery of such costs is dependent upon the future profitability of the related
business. The amount of future profit is dependent principally on investment retums in excess of the amounts credited to policyholders, mortality,
morbidity, persistency, interest crediting rates, expenses to administer the business, creditworthiness of reinsurance counterparties and certain economic
variables, such as inflation. Of these factors, the Company anticipates that investment returns are most likely to impact the rate of amortization of such
costs. The aforementioned factors enter into management's estimates of gross margins and profits, which generally are used 1o amortize such costs.
Revisions 1o estimates result in changes to the amounts expensed in the reporting period in which the revisiocns are made and could result in the
impaiment of the asset and & charge to income if estimated future gross marging and profits are less than amounts defered. In addition, the Company
utilizes the reversion to the mean assumption, a common industry practice, in its detemination of the amortization of DAC, including VOBA, This practice
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assumes that the expectation for long-term appreciation in eguity markets is not changed by minor shori-term market fluctuations, but that it does change
when large interim deviations have occurred.

Liability for Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses

The Company establishes liabilities for amounts payable under insurance policies, Including traditional life insurance, traditional annuities and non-
medical health insurance. Generally, amounts are payable over an extended period of time and liabilities are established based on methods and
underlying assumptions in accordance with GAAP and applicable actuarial standards. Principal assumptions used in the establishment of liabilities for
future policy benefits are mortality, morbidity, expenses, persistency, investment retumns and inflation.

The Company also establishes liabilities for unpaid claims and claim expenses for property and casualty claim insurance which represent the amount
estimated for claims that have been reported but not settled and claims incurred but not reported. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated based upon
the Company's historical experience and other actuarial assumptions that consider the effects of current developments, anticipated trends and risk
management programs, reduced for anticipated salvage and subrogation.

Differences between actual experience and the assumptions used in pricing these policies and in the establishment of liabilities result in variances in
profit and could result in losses. The effects of changes in such estimated reserves are included in the results of operations in the period in which the
changes occur.

Reinsurance

The Company enters into reinsurance transactions as both a provider and a purchaser of reinsurance. Accounting for reinsurance requires extensive
use of assumptions and estimates, particularty related to the future performance of the undertying business and the potential impact of counterparty credit
risks. The Company periodically.reviews actual and anticipated experience compared to the aforementioned assumptions used to establish assets and
liabilities relating 1o ceded and assumed reinsurance and evaluates the financial strength of counterparties to its reinsurance agreements using criteria
similar to that evaluated in the security impairment process discussed previously. Additionally, for each of its reinsurance contracts, the Company must
determine if the contract provides indemnification against loss or liability relating to insurance risk, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The Company must review all contractual features, particularly those that may limit the amount of insurance risk to which the reinsurer Is subject or
features that delay the timely reimbursernent of claims. If the Company determines that a reinsurance contract does not expose the reinsurer to a
reasonable possibifity of a significant loss from insurance risk, the Company records the contract using the deposit method of accounting.

Litigation .

The Company is a party to-a number of legal actions and regulatory investigations. Given the inherent unpredictability of these matters, it is dificult to
astimate the impact on the Company's consolidated financial position. Liabilities are established when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities related to certain lawsuits, including the Company's asbestos-related liability, are especially
difficult to estimate due to the limitation of available data and uncertainty regarding numerous variables used to determine amounts recorded. The data
and variables that impact the assumptions used to estimate the Company's asbestos-related fiabiity include the number of future claims, the cost to
resolve claims, the disease mix and severity of disease, the jurisdiction of claims filed, tort reform efforts and the impact of any possible future adverse
verdicts and their amounts. On a guarterty and annual basis the Company reviews relevant information with respect to liabilities for litigation, regulatory
investigations and litigation-rslated contingencies to be reflected in the Company's consclidated financial statements. The review includes senior legal
and financial personnel. It is possible that an adverse outcome in certain of the Company’s litigation and regulatory investigations, including asbestos-
related cases, or the use of different assumptions in the dstermination of amounts recorded could have a material effect upon the Company's
consolidated net income or cash flows in particular quarterly or annual periods.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering employees who meet specified eligibility requirements. The
reported expense and liability associated with these plans requires an extensive use of assumptions which include the discount rate, expected retum on
plan assets and rate of future compensation increases as determined by the Company. Management determines these assumptions based upon
currently available market and industry data, historical performance of the plan and its assets, and consuitation with an independent consulting actuarial
firn. These assumptions used by the Company may differ materially from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower
withdrawal rates or longer or shorter fife spans of the participants. These differences may have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated
financlal statements and lquidity.

Results of Operations

Executive Summary

MetLife, Inc., through its subsidiaries and affilates, is a leading provider of insurance and other financial services to individual and institutional
customers. The Company offars life insurance, annuities, automobile and homeowner's insurance and retall banking services to individuals, as well as
group insurance, reinsurance, and retirement & savings products dnd services to corporations and other institutions. The Metlife companies serve
individuals in approximately 13 million households in the United States and provide benefits to 37 million employees and family members through their
plan spansors including 88 of the top one hundred FORTUNE® 500 companies. Outside the United States, the MetLife companies serve approximately
9 million customers through direct insurance operations in Argentina, Brazil, Chile, China, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Mexico, South Korea, Taiwan and
Uruguay. Metlife is organized into five operating segments: Institutional, Individual, Auto & Home, Intemational and Reinsurance, as well as Corporate &
Other.

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003

The Cempany reported $2,758 milion in net income and diluted earnings per share of $3.65 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to
$2,217 million in net income and diluted eamings per share of $2.94 for the year ended December 31, 2003, Continued top-line revenue growth across
all of the Company’s business segments, strong interest rate spreads and an improvement in net iInvestmeant gains (losses) are the leading contributors to
the 24% increase in net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 over the comparable 2003 period. Total premiums, fees and other revenues
increased to $26.4 bilion, up 8%, from the year ended December 31, 2003, primarlly from continued sales growth across most of the Company's
business segments, as well as the positive impact of the U.S. financial markets on policy fees. Policy fees from variable life and annuity and investment-
type products are typically calculated as a percentage of the average assets in policyholder accounts. The value of these assets can fluctuate depending
on equity performance. Continued strong investment spreads are largely due to higher than expected net investment income from corporate joint venture
income and bond and commercial mortgage prepayment fees. In addition, an improvement In net investment gains (losses), net of income taxes, of
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$485 million is primarily due to the more favorable economic environment in 2004, These increases are partially offsét by an $86 milion, net of income
taxes, cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in 2004 recorded in accordance with Statement of Position 03-1, Accounting and Reporting
by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditiona! Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts ("SOP 03-1"). In comparison, in the 2003 period
the Company recorded a $26 million charge for 2 cumulative effect of a change in accountmg in accordance with FASB Staterment 133 Implementation
Issue B36 (“Issue B36").

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002

The marketplace for financial services is extremely competitive, MetLife reported $2,217 million in net income and diluted eamings per share of
$2.94 for the year ended December 31, 2003, in 2003, after a three-year economic slowdown, there were improvements in both the credit and equity
markets. At the same time, interest rates remained at historic lows and the S&P 500 Index was up 26% for the year. Total premiums and fees increased
to $23.2 bifion, up 9% over the prior year, which primarily stems from continued sales growth across most of the Company's segments, as well as the
positive impact of the U.S. financial markets on policy fees. Assets under management grew to $350.2 hillion, up 179% over the prior year, and Individual
annuity deposits grew to $11.2 billion, up 42% over the prior year. MetLife generated aver $11 biliorrof net investment income while adhering 1o rigorous
asset-fiability management principles and porticlio diversification. An increase in expenses year over year is primarily atiributable to employee-related
expenses, including pension and postretirement bensfit expense and severance, expenses associated with strengthening the Company's distribution
systems and taking action in consolidating office space and reducing redundancies, while continuing to invest heavily in infrastructure. In addition,
regulatory capital increased and the Company repurchased stock through its buyback program. -

Industry Trends

The Company's segments continue to be influenced by a variety of industry trends and the Company believes that each of its busmesses is well
posttioned to capitalize on those trends. In general, the Company sees more employers, both large and small, outsourcing their benefits functions.
Further, companies are offering broader arays of voluntary benefits to help retain employees while adding little to their overall benefits costs. The
Company believes that these trends will likely continue and In fact expand across companies of alf sizes. Employers are also demanding substantial
online access for their employees for various self-service functions. This functionality requires substantial information technology investment that smaller
companies will find difficult to absorb. This will put pressure on those smaller and mid-size companies to gain scale quickly or exit the business.
Additionally, the Company is seeing a continuing trend of employers moving to defined contribution plans over defined benefit plans.

In addition, alterative benefit structures, such as simple fixed benefit products, are becoming more popular as the cost of traditional medical
indemnity products has continued to increase rapidly. These low cost fixed benefit products can provide effective catastrophic protection for high cost
finesses to supplement the basic health coverage provided by medical indemnity insurance. )

From a demographics standpoint, the bulk of the United States population is moving from an asset accumulation phase o an asset distribution
phase. People within ten years of retirement hold significant assets. With continually lengthening lifespans and unstructured asset distribution, the
Company believes many of these people may outlive their retirement savings and/or require long-term care. As a result, the Company expects that the
demand for retirement payout solutions with guarantees will increase dramatically over the next decade. In each of these demographic scenarios, the
quality of the guarantee will be a key driver of growth. The Company believes that these guaraniess will be evaluated through balance shest strength, the
claims paying ability and financial strength ratings of the guaranter, as well as the reputation of the Company. The Company believes that in each of these
comparisons, it will be at a distinct advantage versus the industry on average.

The Company expects that these trends will continue to favor those with scale, breadth of distribution and product, ability to provide advice and
financial strength to support long-term guarantees. :

Discussion of Results
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues : .
Premiums. ..o F S et .. $22318 320673 $19,077
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees .. .. ... i 2900 2,496 2,147
N INVESIMENT INCOME . .ttt et e e e 12,418 11,5639 11,183
BT TBVBNUBS .« . v ittt ettt et e ettt e e 1,188 1,189 1,166
Net investment gains (10Sses) .. ..o e 182 (582) (882)
Ot FBVENUES . . o oo 39,014 35,325 32,681
Expenses
Policyholder benefits and Claims . ... oo 22,662 20,665 19,3783
Interest credited to policyholder account balances . ... ... 2,998 3,035 2,950
Policyholder AVIdeNdS ..o e 1,814 1,875 1,942
Other eXpenses . ..ot T 7,761 7,091 6,813
Ot BSOS .« oot 35,235 32,766 31,078
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes . ... ..o o : 3,779 2,559 1,603
ProviSion o7 INCOME 1aXES . . .« e e e e el 1,071 660 490
Income from continuing operations. .. ..o o i s PO 2,708 1,899 1,113
tncome from discontinued operations, net of income taxes. ........... ...l 136 344 492
Income before cumulative effect of a change inaccounting ... 2,844 2,243 1,605
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes ...........c.covnnn... (86) (26) —
NBEINCOME .« o oo et e et e e e e e e e e $ 2758 $ 2217 3 1,605
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Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — The Company

Income from continuing eperations increased by $808 million, or 43%, to $2,708 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $1,899 million
in the comparable 2003 peried. Income from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 includes the impact of certain
transactions or events, the timing, nature and amount of which are generally unpredictable. These transactions are described in each applicable
segment's discussion below. These items contributed a benefit of $113 million, net of income taxes, 1o the year ended December 31, 2004 and a benefit
of $159 milion, net of income taxes, to the comparable 2003 period. Excluding the impact of these items, income from continuing opsrations increased
by $855 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the prior 2003 period. This increase is primarily the result of an improvement in net
investment gains (losses), net of income taxes, of $485 milion. Alsc contributing to the increase is higher eamings from interest rate spreads of
approximately $302 million, net of incame taxes, in the Institutional and Individual segments. Additionally, the individual segment contributed $154 mitiion,
net of income taxes, as a resutt of increased income from policy fees on investment-type products partially offset by higher amortization associated with
DAC of $74 milion, net of income taxes, and a reduction in eamings of $78 million, net of income taxes, resulting from an increase in the closed block
policyholder dividend obligation. In addition, the Auto & Home segment’s eamings increased primarily due to an improved non-catastrophe combined
ratio and favorable claim development related to prior accident years of $113 million, net of income taxes. This increase was partially offset by higher
catastrophe losses of $73 milion, net of income taxes.

Premiums, fees and other revenues increased by $2,046 milion, or 8%, to $26,414 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from
$24,368 million from the comparable 2003 period. The Institutional segment contributed 55% to the year over year increase. This increase stems largely
from sales growth and the acquisitions of new businesses in the group life and the non-medical health & other businesses, as well as an increase in
structured settlements sales and pension close outs. The Reinsurance segment contributed approximately 35% to the Company's year over year
increase in premium, fees and other revenues. This growth is primarily attributable to this segment's coinsurance agreement with Alfianz Life and
continued growth in its traditional life reinsurance operations, The Individual segment contributed 5% to the year over year increase primarily due to higher
fee income, partially offset by a reduction in the Company’s closed block premiums as the business continues 1o run-off.

Interest rate spreads, which generally represent the margin between net investment income and interest credited to policyholder account balances,
increased across the Institutional and Individual segments during the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the prior year period. Eamings from
interest rate spreads are influenced by several factors, including business growth, movement in interest rates, and certain investment and investment-
related transactions, such as corporate joint venture income and bond and commercial mortgage prepayment fees for which the timing and amount are
generally unpredictable, and, as a result, can fluctuate from pericd 1o period. If interest rates remain fow, it could result in compression of the Company’s
interest rate spreads on several of its products, which provide guaranteed minimum rates of retum to policyholders. This compressmn could adversely
impact the Company's future financial results.

Underwriting results in the Institutional and Individual segments, in the year ended December 31, 2004 were less favorable compared to the 2003
‘pericd. Underwriting results are significantly influenced by mortality and morbidity trends, claim experience and the reinsurance activity refated to certain
blocks of business, and, as a result, can fluctuate from period to period. Underwriting results in the Auto & Home segment were favorable in 2004 as the
combined ratio declined to 90.4%, excluding catastrophes, from ©7.1% in the prior year period. This result is largely due to continued improvement in
both auto and homeowner claim frequencies, lower auto severities and an increase in average earmned premiums.

Other expenses increased by $670 million, or 8%, to $7,761 mitlion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $7,091 million for the comparaple
2003 period. The 2004 period reflects a $49 million reduction of a premium tax liabiity and a $22 million reduction of a liability for interest associated with
the resolution of all issues relating to the Intemal Revenue Senvice's audit of Metropolitan Life's and its subsidiaries’ tax retums for the years 1997-199.
These decreases were partidlly offset by a $50 million contrioution of appreciated stock to the MetLife Foundation. The 2003 pericd includes the impact
of a $144 milion reduction of a previously established liability related to the Company’s race-conscious underwriting settlement. In addition, the 2003
period includes a $48 million charge related to certain improperly deferred expenses at New England Financial and a $45 milion charge related to VOBA
associated with a change in reserve methodology in the Company's Intemational segment. Excluding the impact of these transactions, other expenses
increased by $640 million, or 8%, from the comparable 2003 period. The Reinsurance segment contributed 35% ta this year over year variance primarily
due to the growth in expenses with Alianz Life and continued revenue growth, as mentioned above. In addition, 27% of this variance Is primarily
aftributable 1o increases in direct business support expenses and non-deferrable commission expenses associated with general business growth, as
well as infrastructure improvements, partially offset by costs in 2008 associated with office consolidations and an impaiment of assets in the Institutional
segment. The Individual segment contributed 22% to this increase primarily due to accelerated DAC amortization, as well as an increase in expenses
asscciated with general business growth, The remainder of the increase is the result of genera1 business growth across the remaining segments and
Corporate & Other.

Net investment gains (losses) increased by $764 million, or 131%, to a net investment gain of $182 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
from a net investment loss of ($582) million for the comparable 2003 period. This increase is primarily dus to the mors favorable economic environment in
2004,

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $1,071 million, or 28% of income from continuing operations before provision for
income taxes, compared with $860 million, or 26%, for the comparable 2003 period. The 2004 effective tax rate differs from the corporate tax rate of
36% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income, tax credits for investments in low income housing, a decrease in the deferred tax
valuation allowance to recognize the effect of certain foreign net operating loss carmyforwards in South Korea, and the contribution of appreciated stock to
the Metlife Foundation. In addition, the 2004 effective tax rate reflects an adjustment of $31 million for the resolution of all issues relating to the Internal
Revenue Service's audit of Metropolitan Life's and its subsidiaries’ tax returns for the years 1997-1999. Also, the 2004 effective tax rate reflects an
adjustment of $3 million consisting primarily of a revision in the estimate of income taxes for 2003. The 2003 sffective tax rate differs from the corporate
tax rate of 35% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income, tax credits for investments in low income housing, and tax benefits related
to the sale of foreign subsidiaries, In addition, the 2003 effective tax rate reflects an adjustment of 336 mnhon COHSISUng primarily of a revision in the
estimate of income taxes for 2002,

The income from discontinued operations is comprised of the operations of SSRM and net investment income and net investment gains related to
real estate properties that the Company has classffied as available-for-sale. The Company entered into an agreement to sell SSRM during the third
quarter of 2004, As previously discussed, SSRM was sold effective January 31, 2008.

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, decreased $208 million, or 60%, to $136 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $344 million for the comparable 2003 period. The decrease is primarily due to lower recognized net investment gains from real estate properties
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sold in 2004 as compared to the prior year. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company recognized $138 millicn and $420 million
of net investment gains, respectively, from discontinued operations related to real estate properties scld or held-for-sale.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recorded an $86 milion charge, net of income taxes, for a cumulative effect of a change
in accounting in accordance with SOP 03-1, which provides guidance on (j) the classification and valuation of long-duration contract liabilities; (i) the
accounting for sales inducements; and (iii) separate account presentation and valuation. This charge is primarily related to those long-duration contract
fizbilities where the amount of the liability-is indexed to the performance of a target portfolio of investment securities. During the year ended December 31,
2003, the Company recorded a $26 million charge, net of income taxes, for a cumulative effect of a change in accounting in accordance with Issue B36.

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — The Company

Income from centinuing operations increased by $786 milion, or 71%, to $1,899 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $1,113 million
in the comparable 2002 period. Income from continuing cperations for the years 2003 and 2002 includes the impact of certain transactions or events
that result in net income not being indicative of future eamings, which are described in the applicable segment’s results of operations discussions. These
iterns contributed a benefit of $159 million, net of income taxes, in 2003 and a charge of $150 milion, net of income taxes, in 2002. Excluding the impact
of these items, income from continuing operations increased by $477 milion in 2003 compared to the prior year. Declines in net investment losses
account for $197 miilion, net of income taxes, of this increase with the balance being contributed by the Company's operations. The decline in net
investment losses is largely attributable to less credit-related losses, which is consistent with the U.S. financial market environment.

Premiums, fees and other revenues increased 9% over the prior year primarily as a result of growth in the annuities, retirement & savings and variable
and universal fife product lines. This increase stems in part from policy fee income eamed on annuity deposits, which were $11.2 bilion in 2003,
increasing 42% from the prior year. In addition, the annuity separate account balance was $28.7 billion at December 31, 2003, up 57% versus the prior
year end. Growth in retirement & savings is primarily attributable to higher sales in structured settlement products. Fee income from variable and universal
life products increased 12% over the prior year primarily as a result of a 25% growth in separate account balances. In addition, the coinsurance
agreement with Allianz Life in the Reinsurance segment contributed approximately 1% to the year over year increase. Partially offsetting these increases is
a decline in traditional life premiums, which is largely attributable to run off in the Company's closed block of business.

lnvestrment margins, which represent the spread between net investment income and interest credited to policyholder account balances, remained
favorable in 2003 as the Company took appropriate crediting rate reductions in most products in an effort to keep pace with the market environment. In
several product lines, where investment margins are a substantial part of eamings, the Company stil has a reasonable amount of flexibility to reduce
crediting rates further if portfolio yields were to decline from year-end 2003 levels. Investment margins in 2003 did benefit from higher than expected
levels of prepayments.

Undenwriting results varied in 2003. The group fife mortality ratio continues to be favorable at 82%. The Individual life mortality ratio was alsc solid at
88%, which includes the impact of several large claims in the variable and universal product line, some of which had lower levels of reinsurance. Group
disability's morbidity ratio increased to 98.5%, from 97.9% in the prior year but is still within management’s expected range. The Auto & Home combined
ratio, which is a measure of both the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio, as well.as the expense ratio, remained favorable at 97.1% excluding
catastrophes, The Company's Intemational segment increased its loss recognition reserve in Taiwan as a result of low interest rates relative to product
guarantees. This action resutted in a $19 milion charge, net of income taxes.

Other expenses increased 4% over the prior year period primarily as a result of an increase of $133 million in pension and postretirement expenses.
As a result of contributions made to the pension plan in late 2003 and early 2004, which totaled approximately $750 milion, and the stronger
performance of the pension plan assets in 2003, the Company anticipates the pension and postretirement expenses to moderate in 2004. Other
expenses in 2003 also include the impact of several actions taken by management in the fourth quarter, including lease terminations, office consolida-
tions and closures, and asset impairments. In addition, severance costs and expenses associated with strategic initiatives at New England Financial
contributed to the increase in expenses year over year. Also, there was an increase in many of the product lines' volume-related expenses, which are in
line with 2003 business growth,

Net investment losses-decreased by $310 milion, or 35%, to $582 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $892 million for the
comparable 2002 period. This improvement is primarily due to lower credit-related losses.

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $660 million, or 26% of income from continuing operations before provision for
income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting, compared with $490 million, or 31%, for the comparable 2002 period. The 2003 effective
tax rate differs from the corporate tax rate of 35% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income, tax credits for investments in low income
housing, & recovery of prior year tax overpayments on tax-exempt bonds, and an adjustment consisting primarily of a revision in the estimate of income
taxes for 2002, In addition, the 2003 effective tax rate includes a reduction of the deferred tax valuation allowance related to certain foreign net operating
loss camyforwards, and tax benefits related to the sale and merger of foreign subsidiaries reflected in the Intemational segment. The 2002 effective tax
rate differs from the corporate tax rate of 35% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income, partially offset by the inability to utilize tax
benefits on certain foreign capital losses.

The income from discontinued operations is comprised of the operations of SSRM and net investment income and net investment gains related to
real estate properties that the Company has classified as available-for-sale. The Company sold SSRM on January 31, 2005,

income from discontinued operations declined $148 milion, or 30%, to $344 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $492 million in the
comparable prior year period. The decrease is primarily due to lower recognized ret investment gains from real estate properties sold in 2003 as
compared to the prior year. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized $420 milion and $582 million of net
investment gains, respectively, from discontinued operations related to real estate properties sold or held-for-sale.

The Company changed its method of accounting for embedded derivatives in certain insurance products as required by new accounting guidance
which became effective on October 1, 2003, and recorded the impact as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
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Institutional .
The following table presents consclidated financial information for the Institutional segment. for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
PramiUMS . . e e e $10,103 $ 9,083 § 8,245
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees . ... 7 635 624
Nt INVESIMEN NCOMIE .« . e e et e e e et e e e e 4,472 4028 3,908
OtNEI TEVENUBS .« .+« o e et e et et e e e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e 632 592 609
Net INVesTMENnt QaINS (0SS8S) . vttt e e et e e et e e . 186 (293) (488)
Ot TEVBNUES .« o vttt et e e e 16,110 14,055 12,899
Expenses )
Policyholder banefits and Claims . ... oo 11,134 9,843 39,345
Interast credited to policyholder account balanCes . .. oo i e 960 915 Q32
Policyholder QiVIdBNES . . .o e e e e 107 198 115
Ot BXDENSES ottt e ettt e et e 1,807 1,784 1,531
TOtA] BXPENSES « ot ettt ittt ettt e 14,108 12,740 11,923
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes ... .o 2,002 1,315 976
ProVISION fOr INCOME 1aXES . . o ot ittt e e e 681 477 344
Income from CoNtNUING OPEralONS . . .\t ettt e e e e e e e 1,321 . 838 632
Income from discontinued operations, net of INCOME taXeS. .. ..o 10 37 127
Income before cumulative effect of a change inaccounting ..., 1,331 875 758
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes ...t (60) (26) —
NEEINCOMIE &+ . vttt e et et e e et e e e e e e e e e $1271 $ 840 § 759

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — Institutional

Income from continuing cperations increased by $483 million, or 58%, to $1,321 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $838 mitlion
for the comparable 2003 periad. An improvément of $241 miltion, net of income taxes, in net investment gains (losses), net of adjustments of $63 million
to policyholder benefit and claims related to net investment gains (losses), is a significant component of the increase. In addition, favorable interast rate
spreads contributed $225 milion, net of income taxes, to the increase compared to the prior year period, with the retirement & savings products
generating $183 million, net of income taxes, of this increase. Higher investment vields, growth in the asset base and lower average crediting rates are
the primary drivers of the year over year increase in interest rate spreads. These spreads are generally the percentage point difference between the yield
earned on invested assets and the interest rate the Company uses to credit on certain liabilities. Therefore, given a constant value of assets and liabilities,
an increase in interest rate spreads would result in higher income to the Company. interest rate spreads for the year ended December 31, 2004
increased to 2.06%, 1.66% and 1.88% for group life, retirement & savings and the non-medical health & other businesses, respectively, from 2.04%,
1.40% and 1.51% for the group fife, retirement & savings, and the non-medical health & other businesses, respectively, in the comparable prior year
pericd. Management generally expects these spreads to be in the range of 1.60% to 1.80%, 1.30% to 1.45%, and 1.30% to 1.50% for the group life,
retirement & savings, and the non-medical health & other businesses, respectively. Eamings from interest rate spreads are influenced by several factors,
including business growth, movement in interest rates, and certain investment and investment-related transactions, such as corporate joint venture
income and bond and commercial mortgage prepayment fees for which the timing and amount are generally unpredictable. As a result, income from
these investment transactions may fluctuate from period to period. Also contributing to the increase in income from continuing operations is a reduction in

a premium tax liability of $31 million in the second quarter of 2004, net of income taxes. These increases in income from continuing opsrations are
partially offsst by less favorable underwriting results, which are estimated to have declined $30 milion, net of income taxes, compared to the prior year
period. Management attributes approximately $20 milion, net of income taxes, of this decrease to mixed claim experience in the non-medical heaith &
other business. Underwriting results are significantly influenced by mertality and morbidity trends, as well as claim experience and, as a result, can
fluctuate from year to year.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains (losses), increased by $1,576 million, or 11%, to $15,924 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 from $14,348 million for the comparable 2003 period. Growth of $1,132 million in premiums, fees, and other revenues-contributed to the revenue
increase. A $480 million increase in premiums, fees and other revenues in the non-meadical health & other business compared to the prior year is partly
due to the continued growth in long-term care of $148 milion, of which $41 million is related to the 2004 acquisition of TAA/CREF's long-term care
business. Growth in the small market products, disability business, and dental business contributed $305 million to the year over year increase. Group
life insurance premiums, fees and other revenues increased by $461 million, which management primarily attributes to improved sales and favorable
persistency, as well as the acquisition of the John Hancock group life insurance business in late 2003, which contributed $20 milion to the increase.
Retirement & savings' premiums, fees and other revenuss increased by $121 milion, which is largely due to a growth in premiums of $172 miliion,
resulting primarily from an inctease in structured settlement sales and pension close-outs. Premiums, fees and other revenues from retirement & savings
products are significantly influenced by large transactions, and as a result, can fluctuate from year to year. In addition, an increase of $444 million in net
investment income, which is primarily due to higher income from growth in the asset base, eamings on corporate joint venture income and bond and
commercial mortgage prepayment fees contributed 1o the overall increase in revenues. This increase is a compenent of the favorable interest rate
spreads discussed above.

Total expenses increased by $1,368 million, or 11%, to $14,108 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $12,740 million for the
comparable 2003 pericd. Palicyholder benefits and claims combined with policyholder dividends increased by $1,200 million to $11,241 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004 from $10,041 milion for the comparable prior year period. This increase is primarily attributable to a $459 million,
$461 milion, and $280 mifion increase in the group life, non-medical health & other and retirement & savings businesses, respectively. These increases
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are predominately attributable to the business growth discussed in the revenue discussion above, The increases in group life and the non-medical
health & other businesses include the impact of the acquisition of certain businesses from John Hancock and TIAA/CREF of $11 million and $32 milfion,
respectively. Also included In the increase is the impact of less favorable claim experience, primarily in the non-medical health & other business. Interest
credited to policyholder account balances increased by $45 million over the prior year period primarily as a result of the impact of growth in guaranteed
interest contracts within the retirement & savings business. Other operating expenses increased $123 milion. The largest component of this expense
growth is an increase of $97 milion related to increases in direct business support expenses. In addition, non-deferrable commissions and premium
taxes increased by $25 milion. This is net of a $49 milion reduction in a premium tex liability in the second quarter of 2004, Excluding this item,
non-deferable commissions and premiun taxes increased by $74 million, which is commensurate with the aforementioned revenue growth, In addition,
the Company incurred infrastructure improvement costs of $34 million and expenses of $12 million refated to the closing of one of the Company's
disability claims centers which were partially offset by a decline of $45 million primarily relating fo expenses incurred in the prior year for office closures
and consolidations and an impaiment of related assets.

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — Institutional

income from continuing operations increased by $206 million, or 33%, 1o $838 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $632 million for
the comparable 2002 period. Revenue growth combined with favorable underwriting results and interest margins contributed to the year over year
increase. Lower net investment losses in 2008 versus 2002 contributed $124 milion, net of income taxes, to the year over year increase. Favorable
underwriting experience was partially offset by an increase in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations, as well as an increase in
pension and postretirement benefit costs, In addition, the prior year period includes a $20 million, net of income taxes, benefit from the reduction of a
previously established liability for the Company's 2001 business realignment inftiatives and a 17 million, net of income taxes, benefit from the reduction
of a previously established liability for disability insurance-related losses from the September 11, 2001 tragedies.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $961 milion, or 7%, to $14,348 miliion for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $13,387 miliion for the comparable 2002 period. The increase is attributable to both the group insurance and the retirement & savings product
lines. Within group insurance, life insurance premiums and fees increased by $248 million, or 5%, which is in line with management's expectations. This
increase is attributable primarily to higher sales and favorable persistency. The late 2003 acquisition of the John Hancock block of group life business
contributed $72 million to this increase. In addition, the long-term care, dental, and disability products experienced continued growth at a combined rate
of approximately 14%, which is in line with management's expectations. Retirement & savings revenues increased approximately 12% primarily due to
higher sales in the structured settlement products partially offset by the impact of a sale of a significant, single premium contract in the second quarter of
-2002. Premiums and fees from retirement and saving products are significantly influenced by large transactions and, as a resuft, can fluctuate from year
to year. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in revenues primarily due to a decline in retirement & savings administrative fees from the
Company's 401(K) business. This decling resuited from the exit from the large market 401 (k) business in late 2001. Consequently, revenue decreased as
business was transferred to other carriers throughout 2002. .

Total expenses increased by $817 milion, or 7%, to $12,740 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $11,923 milion for the
comparable 2002 period. Policyholder-related expensas increased $564 million primarily ‘as a function of the growth in business. The increase in
expenses is offset by favorable underwriting resuits in the term life insurance, dental, long-term care, and retirement & savings products. The term life
mortality incurred loss ratio, which represents actual life claims as a percentage of assumed claims incurred used in the determination of future policy
benefits, was 92% for 2003 as compared to 93.6% in 2002. Underwriting results declined in disability as the morbidity incurred loss ratio, which
represents actual disability claims as a percentage of assumed claims incurred used in the determination of future policy berefits, increased to 98.5% in
2003 from 87.9% in the prior year. The 2003 ratio was within management's expected range. In addition, the 2002 pericd includes a $28 million release
of a previously established liability for disability insurance-related losses from the September 11, 2001 tragedies. Other expenses increased by
$253 million over the prior year period. Group insurance and retirement & savings expenses increasad $115 million primarily due to an increase in non-
deferrable expenses associated with the aforementioned revenue growth, $77 million from an increase in pension and postretirement benefit expense,
and a $33 million increase in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations. In addition, the prior year period includes a $30 million
reduction of a previously established fability for the Company's. 2001 business realignment initiatives.
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Individual
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Individual segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues
o 12211100 1= P $ 4172 $ 4344 3 4507
Universal life and investment-type product DoliCY Fe8S . oo v i e 1,831 1,689 1,379
Net investment iNCOME . ... e PO 8,130 6,104 6,237
[ T= o1 T = P 444 407 418
Net investment gains (losses) ................... S 74 (307) (290)
TOW FBVENUES .+ o .ot e et e e e PR 12,651 12,227 12,251
Expenses .
Policyholder benefits and Claims . ..o 5102 5,039 5,064
Interest credited to policyholder account balanCes . .. ... i e 1,674 1,763 1,793
Policyholder AivIdandS ... e 1,638 1,700 1,770
Otherexpenses ..o, S 2,939 2,847 2,639
Total EXPENSES .\t e 11,353 11,379 11,266
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes ... ... 1,288 848 985
PrOVISION fOr INCOMIE 18XES .« . ittt e e e e e e e e 431 281 363
Income from ContiNUING ODETEIIONS . . .« oottt i e e 867 567 622
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ............................... 3 34 204
AT T4 Y P $ 870 $ 801 $ 826

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — Individual

Income from continuing eperations increased by $300 mifion, or 53%, to $867 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $567 million for
the comparable 2003 period, Included in this increase is an improvement in net investment gains (fosses) of $242 milion, net of income taxes. This
increase includes additional fee income of $154 million, net of income taxes, primarlly related to separate account products. In addition, improvement in
interest rate spreads contributed $77 milion, net of income taxes, to the year over year increase. These spreads are generally the percentage point
difference between the yield eamed on invested assets and the interest rate the Company uses to credit on certain liabilities. Therefore, given-a’constant
value of assets and liabllities, an increase in interest rate spreads would result in higher income to the Company. Interest rate spreads include income
from certain investment transactions, including corperate joint venture income and bond and commercial mortgage prepayment fees, the timing and
amount of which are generally unpredictable. As a resutt, income from these: investment transactions may fluctuate from year to year. These types of
investment transactions contributed $38 million, net of income taxes, 1o the improvement in interest rate spreads. Additionatly, the charge of $31 million,
net of income taxes, in 2003 related to certain improperly deferred expenses at New England Financial, and a reduction in policynolder dividends of
$38 million, net of income taxes, in 2004 contributed to the increase in income from continuing operations. These increases in income from continuing
operations are partially offset by a reduction in earmings of $78 million, net of income taxes, resulting from an increase in the closed block-related
policyholder dividend obligation, assoclated primarily with an improvement in net investment gains {losses). ngher DAC amortization of $74 million, net of
income taxes, also increased expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004. Additionally, offsetting these increases are lower net investment income
on traditional fife and income annuity products of $43 million, net of income taxes. The application of SOP 03-1 and the corresponding cost of hedging
guaranteed annuity benefit riders reduced eamings by $30 milion, net of income taxes. In addition, less faveraple undenwriting results in the traditional
and universal life products of $20 milion, net of income taxes, and higher general spending of $15 million, net of income taxes, added to this offset.
These underwriting results are significantly influenced by mortality experience and the reinsurance activity related to certain blocks of business, and as a
result can fluctuate from year 1o year.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains (losses), increased by $43 milion, or less than 1%, to $12,577 milion for the year ended
December 31, 2004 from $12,534 million for the comparable 2003 period. This increase includes higher fee income primarily from separate account
products of $252 million resulting from a combination of growth in the business and improved overall market psrformance. Policy fees from variable life
and annuity and investment-type products are typically calculated as a percentage of the average assets in policyholder accounts. The value of these
assets can fluctuate depending on eguity performance. In addition, management attributes higher premiums of $37 milion in 2004 to the active
marketing of income annuity products. The increased volume of sales in 2004 also resulted in higher broker/dealer and cther subsidiaries revenues of
$27 milion. Partially offsetting the increases in total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 are lower premiums related to the Company's
closed block of business of $209 milion, which continues to run off at management’'s expected range of 3% to 6% per year. In addition, lower net
investment income of $64 milion resulting from lower investment vields offset other increases in revenues,

Total expenses decreased by $26 million, or less than 1%, to $11,353 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $11,379 million for the
comparable 2003 pericd. Lower expenses are primarily the resuit of a $181 million decrease in the closed block policyholder benefits partially attributable
1o lower activity associated with the run off of this business and a $119 million decline in interest credited to policyholder account batances due to fower
crediting rates. Also includediin the decrease in expenses are lower policyholder dividends of $62 million resulting from reductions in the dividend scale in
late 2003 and a charge in 2003 related to certain improperly deferred expenses at New England Financial of $48 milllion. Partially offsetting these
decreases in expenses is a.$123 million increase in the closed block-related policyholder .dividend obligation based on positive performance of the
closed block and higher DAC amortization of $116 milion. The increase in DAC amortization is a result of accelerated amortization resulting from
impravement in net investment gains (losses) and the update of management's assumptions used to determine estimated gross margins. Additionally,
offsetting the decrease to expenses is a $46 million increase from the application of SOP 03-1 and the corresponding cost of hedging guaranteed
annuity benefit nders and a $35 million increase in future policy benefts commensurate with the increase in income annuity premiums. Further, the
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decrease in expenses was offset by less favorable underwriting results in the traditional and universal life products of $32 million, higher general spending
of $23 milion and a $10 milion increase in broker/dealer and other subsidiaries related expenses.

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — Individual

Income from continuing operations decreased by $55 million, or 9%, to $567 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $822 million for
the comparable 2002 period. The decrease year over year is primarily driven by an increase in expensas of $113 million, or 1%, which is largely
aftributable 1o an increase in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations, pension and postretirement benefit costs, an increase in
legal-related costs and an adjustment related to certain improperly deferred expenses at New England Financial. Although revenues are essentially fiat
year over year, policy fees from variable life and annuity and investment-type products grew 15% year over year. In addition, there is a slight increase in
premiums related to other traditional life products. These increases are offset by a 5% decline in premiums from the Company’s closed block business,
which consists of participating policies issued prior to the Company's demutualization. Premiums on the closed block represent approximately 80% of
this segment's premiums for the year ended December 31,7 2003, ]

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, decreased by $7 milion, or less than 1%, to $12,534 mifion for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from $12,541 million for the comparabie 2002 period. Policy fees from variable life and annuity and investment-type products grew
by 15% over the prior year pericd. This growth is primarily a result of an- 18% increase in the average separate account balances, which is largely
attributable to improvements in the U.S. financial markets. Additionally, this increase is associated with the aging of the in-force policies, as well as an
increase in the sales of the enterprise variable annuity product through non-traditional distribution channels. Policy fees from variable life and annuity and
investrnent-type products are typically calculated as a percentage of average assets. The value of these assets can fluctuate depending on equity market
performance. This increase in policy fee income was almost entirely offset by declines in premiums and net investment income. Premiums associated
with the Company’s closed block of business declined by $186 million, or 5%, which is in line with management's expectations, as this business
continues to run-off, Partially offsetting this decline is a slight increase in the other traditional life products. The decline in net investment income is mainly
due to the change in capital allocation methodology and lower investment yields year over year.

Total expenses increased by $113 milion, or 1%, to $11,379. milion for the year ended -December 31, 2003 from $11,266 milion for the
comparadle 2002 period: Other expenses increased by $208 milion over the prior year period primarily as a result of expenses associated with certain
efficiency initiatives and events. The most significant items include an increase of $67 million from pension and postretirement benefit expense, a
$48 miliion expense recorded in the second quarter of 2003 for an adjustment related to certain improperly deferred expenses at New England Financial,
$42 million in expenses associated with office Closures and other consolidations, $42 milion increase in legal-related costs, and other expenses
associated with strategic initiatives at New England Financial. Offsetting these expense increases are a decline in policyholder benefits consistent with the
aforementioned decline in the closed block and a decrease in dividends due to the reduction of the dividend scale in the fourth quarter of 2002, reflecting
the impact of the low U.S. interest rate environment on the asset portfolios supporting these policies.

Auto & Home )
The foliowing table presents consolicated financial information for the Auto & Home segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in mitlions)

Revenues
= 21118132 R A D T $2,048 $2,908 $2,828
Nt INVESIMBNE NGO . . ittt i e et e e e 171 158 177
L@ (0= g (5= = 35 32 26
Net INvestMENt Gains (I0SSES) . .« vttt et e et e e Q) (15) (46)
TOtal TBVBINIUES ittt et e e 3,145 3,083 2,985
Expenses )
Palicyholder benefits and Claims . ..o 2,079 2,138 2,019
Policyholder dividends. . .............. PP 2 1 -
Other BXDEMSES .« . ettt ettt e e i e e P 795 756 793
Total @XDENSES . .. .« vttt e 2876 2896 2812
Income before provision {penefit) for income taxes . ... .o o 268 187 173
Provision {bensfit) for iNCoOmMe taxes . .. ...t viiieiaa e 61 30 41
T gTto'41 = O e $ 208 $ 157 B 132

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — Auto & Home

Net income increased by $51 million, or 32%, to $208 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $157 million for the comparable 2003
period. This increase is primarily attibutable to an improved non-catastrophe combined ratio, which resulted in a benefit of $52 million, net of income
taxes, improved claim development related to prior accident years of $61 milion, net of income taxes, and an increase in net investment income of
$13 million, net of income taxes. Partidly offsetting these favorable variances are increased catastrophe losses of $73 miillion, net of income taxes. This
increase resulted from the four hurricanes that struck the Southeastern United States in August and September of 2004,

‘Total revenues, excluding net investment gains (losses), increased by $56 million, or 2%, to $3,154 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $3,088 miflion for the comparable 2003 period. This increase is primarily attributable to a $40 million increase in premiums, which is largely the result
of an increase in the average eamed premium resutting from continued rate increases. In addition, a $13 million increase in net investment income is
largely attributable to growth in the underlying asset base, an increase in the investment vield and higher income related to tax advantaged municipal
bonds.

Total expenses decreased by $20 milion, or 1%, to $2,876 for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $2,896 million for the comparable 2003
period. This decreass is the result of an improvement in policyholder benefits and claims due to a favorable change of $94 miliion in prior year claim
development, as well as a decrease in expenses of $80 million resulting from an improved non-catastrophe combined ratio primarily attributable to lower
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automobile and homeowner's claim frequencies. These favorable changes in expenses are partially offset by an increase In losses from catastrophes of
$112 million and a $39 million increase in expenses primarily due to inflation and employes and other related labor costs. The combined ratio excluding
catastrophes declined to 90.4% for the year ended December 31, 2004 from 97.1% for the comparable 2003 period.

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — Auto & Home

Net income increased by $25 milion, or 19%, to $157 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $132 million for the comparable 2002
period. The increase in eamings year over year is mainly due to premium growth, lower investment losses and a reduction in expenses, partially offset by
adverse claims development. ]

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $67 miflion, or 2%, to $3,098 milion for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $3,031 million for the comparable 2002 period. This variance is mainly due to increases in the average earned premium due to rate increases,
partially offset by lower investment income primarily resuiting from the change in capfital allocation methodology.

Total expenses increased by $84 million, or 3%, to $2,896 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $2,812 million for the comparable
2002 period. Adverse claims development related to prior accident years, resulting mostly from bodily injury and uninsured motorists claims, accounted
for $46 million of the increase in policyholder benefits. Also contributing to this increase are higher catastrophe losses of $22 million. Partially offsetting
these increases are improved non-catastrophe homeowner's claims frequencies, a reduction in the number of auto and homeowner's policies in-force,
and underwriting and agency management actions. In addition, there was a $23 milion reduction in expenses resulting from the completion of the St.
Paul integration and a $35 million reduction in the cost assoclated with the New York assigned risk plan. The combined ratio, excluding catastrophes,
which represents losses and total expenses including claims as a percentage of premiums, declined to 97.1% for the year ended December 31, 2003
versus 97.4% for the comparable 2002 period.

International ,
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Intemational segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues
P iU vttt e e $1,735 $1,678 $1,511
Universal life and investment-type produCt policy fees ..ot e e - 350 272 144
Net investment iNCome . ... ..o ennninnn.. O 585 502 461
O TV NS o ittt et ettt et et e e e e e e s 23 80 14
Net investment gains (I0SSES) . .. oot e 23 8 {9)
TOME TEVEMUEBS - o o vt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e 2,716 2,540 2,121
Expenses
Policyholder benefits and claims ... ..o o 1,814 1,457 1,388
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ... A 152 143 79
Policynolder dividends. . . ..o oo 47 55 35
(@17 QS0 <l T O DA 624 660 507
O ] B S .« ottt ettt e e 2,437 2,315 2,008
Income from continuing operations before provision forincometaxes ... oo 279 225 112
Provision for income taxes ................. .. ... O 86 17 28
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of a change in accounting .......... 193 208 84
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of iNCome taxas .. ..., (30) — -
N NGO .+t vt ettt et e et e e e e e e $ 163 $ 208 $ 84

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — International

Income from cantinuing operations decreased by $15 milion, or 7%, to $193 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $208 million for
the comparable 2003 period. The prior year includes a $62 million benefit, net of income taxes, from the merger of the Mexican operations and a
reduction in policyholder liadilitles resulting from a change In reserve methodology, a $12 million tax benefit in Chile related to the merger of twa
subsidiaries and an $8 million benefit, net of income taxes, related 1o reinsurance treaties. These increases are partially offset by a $19 milion charge, net
of income taxes, in Taiwan related to an Increased loss recognition reserve due 10 low interest rates relative to product guarantees. The prior year also
includes a $4 million benefit, net of income taxes, related to the Spanish operations, which were sold in 2003. Excluding these items, income from
continuing operations increased by $52 milion or 37%. A significant component of this increase s attributable to the application of SOP 03-1 in the
current year, which resulted in a $21 milion decrease, net of income taxes, in policyholder ligbilities in Mexico. The primary driver of the current year
impact is a decline in the fair value of the underlying assets associated with these contracts. Additionally, a $10 million, net of income taxes, increase in
net investment gaing Is primarily due to the gain from the sale of the Spanish operations. in addition, 2004 includes $8 milion of certain tax-related
benefits in South Korea. The remainder of the increase can be attributed to business growth in other countries.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains (lossas), increased by $161 million, or 6%, to $2,693 million for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $2,532 million for the comparable 2003 period. The prior year period includes $230 million of revenues related to the Spanish operations, which
were sold in 2003. Excluding the sale of these operations, revenues increased by $391 million, or 17%. The Company's Mexican and Chilean operations
increased revenues by $144 million and $58 million, respectively, primarily due to growth in the business, as well as improved investment eamings. The
Company's operations in South Korea and Talwan also have increased revenues by $121 million and $34 million, respectively, primarily due to increased
new sales and renewal business. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates contributed $14 million to the year over year increase in revenues. The
remainder of the increase can be attributed to business growth in other countries.

Total expenses increased by $122 million, or 5%, to $2,437 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $2,315 million for the comparable
2003 period. The prior year includes expenses of $223 milion related to the Spanish operations, which were sold in 2003. The prior year also includes a
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$79 miflion bensfit related to a reduction in the Mexican operation's policyholder liabilities resulting from a change in reserve methodology, partially offset
by a related increase of $45 milion in amortization of VOBA. Additionally, Taiwan's 2003 expenses include a $30 milion pre-tax charge due to an
increased loss recognition reserve as a result of low interest rates relative to product guarantees. Excluding these items, expenses increased
$341 milion, or 16%, over the prior year. Expenses grew by $71 million, $98 million, $58 milion and $36 million for the operations in Mexico, South
Korea, Chile and Taiwan, respectively, which is commensurate with the revenue growth discussed above, In addition, 2004 includes a $33 milion
decrease in Mexico's policyholder liabilities resulting from the application of SOP 03-1. Canada's expenses increased by $13 million due primarily to the
strengthening of the liability on its pension business related to changes in mortality assumptions in the fourth quarter of 2004. Changes in foreign
currency exchange rates contributed $18 miflion to the year over year increase in expenses. The remainder of the increase in total expenses is primarily
related to the ongoing investment in infrastructure.

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — International

Net income increased by $124 miflion, or 148%, 1o $208 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $84 million for the comparable 2002
period. The acquisition of Hidalgo accounted for $48 million of this increase. Also contributing to the increase in earnings during 2003 is a $62 million
benefit, nat of income taxes, from the merger of the Mexican operations and a reduction in policyholder liabilities resulting from a change in reserve
methodology, a $12 million tax benefit in Chile and an $8 milion benefit, net of income taxes, related to reinsurance treaties. These increases are partially
offset by a $19 miliion charge, net of income taxes, in Talwan related 0 an increased loss recognition reserve due to low interest rates refative to product
guarantees.

Total revenuss, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $402 million, or 19%, to $2,532 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $2,130 million for the comparable 2002 period. This increase is primarily due to the acquisition of Hidalgo, which accounted for $469 miflion of
the variance, partially offset by decreases in Canada of $108 million attributable to a non-recurring sale of an annuity contract and $28 million refating to
the restructuring of a pension contract from an investment-type product to a long-term annuity, both of which occurred in 2002, In addition, South
Korea's, Chile's and Taiwan's revenues increased by $102 milion, $60 milion and $36 million, respectively, primarily due o business growth, These
increases are partially offset by a $161 milion decrease in Mexico, excluding Hidalgo. Anticipated actions taken by the Mexican government adversely
impacted the insurance and annuities market and resulted in a decline in premiums in Mexico's group and individual fife businesses. In addition, the
cancellation of a large broker-sponsored case at the end of 2002 and the weakening of the peso also contributed to the 2003 decling in Mexico.

Total expenses increased by $306 million, or 15%, to $2,315 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $2,009 million for the comparable
2002 period. The acquisition of Hidaigo contributed $394 million to this increase. Partially offsetting this is a decrease of $106 milion for the °
aforementioned non-recuring sale of an annuity contract and a decrease of $28 milion for the restructuring of a pension contract, both of which
occurred in 2002, In addition, South Korea's, Chile's and Taiwan's expenses increased by $95 milion, $65 million and $64 milion, respectively,
commensurate with the revenue increases in each country. Additionally, Taiwan's expenses include a $30 million pre-tax charge due to an increased loss
recognition reserve as a result of low interest rates relative to product guarantees. These increases are partially offset by a $251 million decrease in
Mexico, other than Hidalgo, primarily as a result of the impact on expenses from the aforementioned revenue decling in Mexico and a reduction in
policyholder liabilities related to a change in reserve methodology.

Reinsurance
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Reinsurance segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues
P BT IS L. ettt ettt e e e e e $3,367 $2668 $2,005
Net INVESIMENT NCOME . . . ot e e e e e e e e e 588 473 421
ONEr TBVENUES .« . ittt ettt e e e e e e e e e 57 49 43
Net INVESTMENt GaINS (0SS8S) ...\ttt et e et et e e e ‘ 60 31 3
Total revenues ....... e e e e 4,072 3,221 2,466
Expenses ‘
Policyholder benefits and Claims .. ..o 2,725 2136 1,654
Interest credited to policyholder account balances . ... ..o 212 184 146
Policynolder dvidends. . ... s 20 21 22
DT B EIISES -+« v v v ettt ettt e e e e e e e 964 740 617
O A XD BN S . v oottt e 3,021 3,081 2,339
Income before provision forincome taxes ... 151 140 127
Provision for income taxes ... ..o i N 51 48 43
Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of a change in accounting ......... 100 92 84
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes ... ...t 5 — —
Lot o< T $ 105 & 92 3 84

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — Reinsurance

iIncome from continuing operations increased $8 milion, or 9%, to $100 milion for the year ended Decembber 31, 2004 from $92 million for the
comparable 2003 period. This increase is attributable to a 26% increase -in revenues, primarily dus to strong premium growth across all of RGA's
geographical segments, which includes the effect of the Allianz Life transaction. The growth in income from continuing operations is partially offset by
higher minority interest expense as Metlife's ownership in RGA decreased from 59% 1o 52% in the comparable pericds and a negotiated claim
settlerment in RGA’s accident and health business, which is currently in run-off, of $8 million for the third quarter of 2004, net of income taxes and minority
interest.
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Total revenues, excluding net investment gains (losses), increased by $822 million, or 26%, to $4,012 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 from $3,180 million for the comparable 2003 pericd due primarily to a $699 million increase in premiums. The premium increase during the vear
ended December 31, 2004 is partially the result of RGA's coinsurance agreement with Allianz Life under which BGA assumed 100% of Allianz Life's
United States traditional life reinsurance business. This transaction closed during 2003, with six months of reinsurance activity recorded in 2003, as
compared to twelve months in 2004. New premiums from facultative and automatic treaties and renewal premiums on existing blocks of business in the
United States and certain Irternational cperations also contributed to the premium growth. Premium levels are significantly influenced by large
transactions, such as the Allianz Life transaction, and reporting practices of ceding companies, and as a result, can fluctuate from pericd to period. Net
investment income also contributed to revenue growth, increasing $115 million, or 24%, to $588 million in 2004 from $473 million in 2303, The growth in
net investment income is the result of the growth in RGA's coperations and asset base, as well as the conversion of a large reinsurance treaty from a funds
withheld to coinsurance basis which resuted in an increase of $12 million. in net investment income.

Total expenses increased by $840 million, or 27%, to $3,921 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $3,081 million for the comparable
2003 period. This increase is commensurate with the growth in revenues and is primarily attributable to an increase of $617 million in policyholder
benefits and claims and interest credited 1o policyholder account balances, primarily associated with RGA's growth in insurance i force of approximately
$200 billion, a negotiated claim settlement in RGA's accident and health business of $24 million, and the inclusion of only six months of results from the
Allianz Life transaction in the prior year. Alse, during the fourth quarter of 2004, RGA recorded approximately $18 million in policy benefits and claims as a
result of the Indian Ocean tsunami on December 26, 2004 and claims development associated with its reinsurance of Argentine pension business. Othear
expenses increased primarily due to an increase of $108 million in allowances and related expenses on assumed reinsurance associated with RGA's
growth in premiums and insurance in force and $15 million in additional amortization of DAC from the conversion of a large reinsurance treaty from a
funds withheld to coinsurance basis. The balance of the growth in other expenses is primarily due to the aforementioned increase in minority interest
expense from $114 milion in 2003 to $161 million in 2004,

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — Reinsurance

Net income increased by $8 million, or 10%, to $92 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $84 million for the comparable 2002 period.
The increase in eamings year over vear is primarily attributable to new business growth, additional renewal premiums, as well as a large coinsurance
agreement with Allianz Life under which RGA assumed 100% of Allianz Life's U.S. traditional Iife reinsurance business.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $721 million, or 29%, to $3,100 milion for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $2,469 milion for the comparable 2002 period. This increase is primarly due to new premiums from facultative and automatic treaties and
renewal premiums on existing blocks of business, particularly in the United States and United Kingdom reinsurance operatlons In addition, there was a
$252 milion increase in revenues due to the transaction with Allianz Life in late 2003.

Total expenses increased by $742 million, or 32%, to $3,081 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $2,339 milion for the comparable
2002 period. This increase is consistent with the growth in revenues and is primarily attributable to policyholder benefits and claims and allowances paid
on assumed reinsurance, particulary on certain higher commission business in the United Kxngdom The aforementioned transaction with Allianz Life
contributed $242 million to this increase.

Corporate & Other
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Corporate & Other for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Doliars in millions)

"Revenues . . :
01100 $ © 308 319
Universal life and investment-type product policy f88S . . ..o oot 2 — —
Nt IMVESIMENt IMCOME . .t ettt i ettt e et e v et e e e e e e 472 184 (22
Other revenuUes . ..o v ve e e e e 7 39 56
Net investment GaiNs (I0SSES) vt vttt et e e (152) (6) (56)
Lot I == < S A 320 199 (41)
Expenses o .
Policyholder benefits @and ClaIMS . . ..t et et e e e e e e e s 8 51 3
(@ (1 o< 1=t SN 532 304 726
O8] EXDEMSES v vt ittt ettt e e e e e e e e 540 355 729
income (Loss) from continuing operations before income tax benefit. ... (220) (156) (770)
M OME X BB L oo e (239) (193) (329)
Income (Loss) from ContinUINg OpEraloNS « v v vt et e et e e e e e e e e e 19 37 (441)
Income from discontinued operations, net of INCOME tXES ... ..v i 123 273 161
Income (Loss) before cumulative effect of a change inaccounting ... 142 310 (280)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes ..........ccoovii i ns. (1) — —
NEE INCOME (J08S) v vttt et e et e e e e et e $141  $310 $(280)

Year ended December 31, 2004 compared with the year ended December 31, 2003 — Corporate & Other

income (Loss) from continuing operations decreased by $18 million, or 49%, to $19 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $37 million
for the comparable 2003 peried. The 2004 period includes a $105 milion benefit associated with the resolution of issues relating to the Intemal Revenue
Service's audit of Metropolitan Life's and its subsidiaries’ tax retums for the years 1997-1999. Also included in the 2004 year is an expeanse related to a
$32 miillion contribution, net of income taxes, to the MetLife Foundation and a $9 million benefit from a revision of the estimate of income taxes for 2003.
The year ended December 31, 2003 includes a $92 miflion benefit, net of income taxes, from the reduction of a previously established liability related to
the Company's race-conscious underwriting settlement, as well as a $36 million benefit from a revision of the estimate of income taxes for 2002.
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Excluding the impact of these items, income from continuing operations increased by $28 million in the year ended December 31, 2004 from the
comparable 2003 period. The increase in eamings in 2004 over the prior year period Is primarily atinbutable to an increase in net investment income of
$183 million and & decrease in policyholder benefits and claims of $27 million, both of which are net of income taxes. This is partially offset by an increase
in net investment losses of $93 milion and an increase in interest on bank holder deposits of $14 milllon, a charge related to unoccupied space of-
$10 million, as well as expenses associated with the piloting of a new product of 7 million, all net of income taxes. In addition, the tax benefit increased
by $41 million as a result of a change in the Company’s allocation of tax expense among segments.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains (losses), increased by $267 milion, or 1309%, to $472 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004
from $205 million for the comparable 2003 period. The increase in revenue is primarily attributable to increases in income on fixed maturity securities,
corporate joint venture income, mortgage loans on real estate and equity securities due to increased invested assets and higher yields,

Total expenses increased by $185 milion, or 52%, to $540 milion for the year ended December 31, 2004 from $355 million for the comparable
2003 period. The year ended December 31, 2004 includes a $50 milion contribution to the Metlife Foundation, partialty offset by a $22 million reduction
of interest expense associated with the resolution of all issues relating to the Internal Revenue Service's audit of Metropolitan Life's and its subsidiaries' tax
retums for the years 1997-1999. The year ended December 31, 2003 includes a $144 million benefit from a reduction of a praviousty established liability
associated with the Company's race-conscious underwriting settlement. Excluding these items, other expenses increased by $13 million for the year
ended December 31, 2004. This increase is attrioutable to higher interest expense of $61 milion as a result of the issuance of senior notes at the end of
2003 and during 2004, as well as higher interest credited to bank holder deposits of $22 million as a result of growth in MetLife Bank, N.A., (“MetLife
Bank’), a national bank’s, business. This increase is partially offset by a decrease of $54 milion from lower interast expense on surplus notes, as well as
lower expenses from policyhcider benefits and claims of $43 million, a charge related to unoccupied space of $15 million, as well as expenses
associated with the piloting of a new product of $11 milion.

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — Corporate & Other

Income (Loss) from continuing operations increased by $478 million, or 108%, to $37 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from
{$4471) million for the comparable 2002 period. The 2003 period includes a $92 milion benefit, net of income taxes, from a reduction of a previously
established fiabiiity releted to the Company's race conscious underwriting settiernent and a $36 milion benefit from a revision of the estimate of income
tax for 2002. The 2002 period includes a $189 milion charge, net of iIncome taxes, to-cover costs associated with asbestos-related claims, a $48 million
charge, net of income taxes, to cover costs associated with the resolution of a federal govermnment investigation of General American Life Insurance
Company's ("General American”) former Medicare business, and a $30 million reduction, net of income taxes, of a previously established liability related
to the Company's sales practice class action settflernent in 1999, Excluding the impact of these items, the increase in eamings year over year is mainly
due 1o higher investment income.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, mcreased by $W 90 miflion, or 1,267%, to $205 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $15 million for the comparaple 2002 period. This variance is mainly due to higher investment income resutting from the change in capital
allocation methodology, as well as increases in income from corporate joint ventures, equity-linked notes and securities lending.

Total expenses decreased by $374 million, or 51%, to $355 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $72¢ million for the comparable
2002 period. The 2003 period includes a $144 million reduction of & previously established liability related to the Company's race-conscious underwriting
settlement. The 2002 period includes a $266 million charge to increase the Company’s asbestos-related tiability and expenses to cover costs associated
with the resolution of federal govermment investigations of General American's former Medicare business.

MetLife Capital Trust |

In connection with MetLife, Inc.'s, initial public offering in April 2000, the Holding Company and MetLife Capital Trust | {the "Trust") issued equity
security units (the "units”). Each unit originally consisted of (i) a contract to purchase, for $50, shares of the Holding Company's common stock (the
"purchase contracts”) on May 15, 2003; and (ii) & capital security of the Trust, with a stated liquidation amount of $50. '

In accordance with the terms of the units, the Trust was dissolved on February 5, 2003, and $1,006 million aggregate principal amount of
8.00% debentures of the Holding Company {the “MetLife debentures"), the sole assets of the Trust, were distributed to the owners of the Trust's capital
securities in exchange for their capital securities. The Metlife debentures were remarketed on behalf of the debenture owners on February 12, 2003 and
the interest rate on the Metlife debentures was reset as of February 15, 2003 to 3.811% per annum for a vield to maturity of 2.876%. As a result of the
rernarketing, the debenture owners received $21 milion ($0.03 per diluted common share) in excess of the carmying value of the capital securities. This
excess was recorded by the Company as a charge to additional paid-in capital and, for the purpose of calculating eamings per share, is subtracted from
net income to arive at net income avallable to common shareholders.

On May 15, 2003, the purchase contracts associated with the units were settled. in exchange for $1,006 milfion, the Company issued 2.97 shares
of MetLife, Inc. common stock per purchase contract, or 58.8 million shares of treasury stock. The excess of the Company’s cost of the treasury stock
($1,662 million) over the contract price of the stock issued to the purchase contract holders (31,006 milion) was $656 million, which was recorded as a
direct reduction to retained eamings.

Due to the dissolution of the Trust in 2003, there was no interest expense on capital securities for the year ended December 31, 2004. Interest
expense on the capital securities is included in other expenses and was $10 million and $81 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Subsequent Events

On January 31, 2005, the Holding Company entered into an agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of certain indirect
subsidiaries of Citigroup Inc., including the majority of The Travelers Insurance Company ({Travelers”), and substantially all of Ciigroup Inc.'s international
insurance businesses for a purchase price of $11.5 billion, subject to adjustment as described in the acauisition agreement. As a condition to closing,
Citigroup Inc. and the Holding Company will enter into ten-year agreements under which the Company will expand its distribution by making products
avallable through certain Citigroup distribution channels, subject 1o appropriate suitability and other standards. The transaction is expected to close in the
summer of 2005, Approximately $1 bilion to $3 billion of the purchase price will be paid in MetLife stock with the remainder paid in cash which will be
financed through a combination of cash on hand, debt, mandatorily convertible securities and selected asset sales depending on market conditions,
timing, valuation considerations and the relative attractiveness of funding alternatives.

The Company has entered into brokerage agresments relating to the possible sale of two of its real estate investments, 200 Park Avenue and One
Madison Avenue in New York City. The Company is also contemplating other asset sales, including selling some or all of its beneficially owned shares in
RGA.
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On January 31, 2005, the Holding Company complsted the sale of SSRM 1o a third party for $328 million of cash and stock. As a resutt of the sale
of SSRM. the Company recognized income from discontinued operations of approximately $150 miflion, net of income taxes, comprised of a realized
gain of $166 million, net of income taxes, and an operating expehse related to a lease abandonment of $18 milion, net of income taxes. Under the terms
of the agreement, MetLife will have an opportunity to recaive, prior to the end of 2008, additional payments aggregating up to approximately 25% of the
base purchase price, based on, among other things, certain revenue retention and growth measures. The purchase price is also subject to reduction
over five years, depending on retention of certain MetLife-related business. The Company has reclassified the assets, liabiliies and operations of SSRM
into discontinued operations for all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements, Additionally, the sale of SSRM resulted in the elimination of
the Company’s Asset Management segment. The remaining asset management business, which is insignificant, has been reclassified into Corporate &
Cther. The Company's discontinued operations for the vear ended December 31, 2004 also includes expenses of approximately $20 million, net of
income taxes; related to the sale of SSRM.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
For purposes of this discussion, the terms "MetLife" or the “Company refer to Metlife, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Holding Cormpany”), and

its subsidiaries, including Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“Metropolitan Life”),
The Company
Capital

RBC. Section 1322 of the New York Insurance Law requires that New York domestic fife insurers report thelr RBC based on a formula calculated
by applying factors to varous asset, premium and statutory reserve items. Similar rules apply to each of the Company's domestic insurance subsidiaries.
The formula takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate risk and business risk. Section 1322
gives the New York Superintendent of iInsurance (the "Superintendent”) explicit regulatory authority to reduire various actions by, or to take various actions
against, insurers whose total adjusted capital does not excesd certain RBC levels. At December 31, 2004, Metropolitan Life's and each of the Holding
Company's domestic insurance subsidiaries’ total adjusted capital was in excess of each of the RBC levels required by each state of domicile.

The NAIC adopted the Caodification of Statutory Accounting Principles ("Caodification”) in 2001, Codification was intended to standardize regulatory
accounting and reporting to state insurance departments. However, statutory accounting principles continue o be established by individua! state laws
and pemitted practices. The New York State Department of Insurance (the “Department”) has adopted Codification with certain modifications for the
preparation of statutory financial statements of insurance companies domiciled in New York. Modifications by the various state insurance departments
may impact the effect of Codification on the statutory capital and surplus of Metropolitan Life and the Holding Company's other insurance subsidiaries.

Asset/Liability Management

The Company actively manages its assets using an approach that balances quality, diversification, asset/liability matching, liquidity and investment
retum. The goals of the investment process are to optimize, net of income taxes, risk-adjusted investment income and risk-adjusted total retum while
ensuring that the assets and lidbilities are managed on a cash flow and duration basis. The asset/liability management process is the shared responsibility
of the Portfolio Management Unit, the Business Finance Asset/Liability Management Unit, and the operating business segments under the supervision of
the various product line specific Asset/Liability Management Committees ("A/LM Committees”). The A/LM Committees’ duties include reviewing and
approving target portfolios on a periodic hasis, establishing investment guidelines and limits and providing oversight of the asset/liability management
process. The portfolic managers and asset sector specialists, who have responsibility on a day-to-day basis for risk management of their respective
investing activities, implement the goals and objectives established by the A/LM Committees.

The Company establishes target asset portiolios for each major insurance product, which represent the investment strategies used to profitably fund
its liabilities within acceptable levels of risk. These strategies include objectives for effective duration, yield curve sensitivity, convexity, liquidity, asset
sector concentration and credit quality. In executing these asset/liability-matching strategles, management regularly re-evaluates the estimates used in
determining the approximate amounts and timing of payments to or on behalf of pé)icyho!ders for insurance ligbilities. Many of these estimates are
inherently subjective and could tmpact the Company's ability to achieve its asseV/liability management geoals and objectives.

Liquidity

Liquidity refers to a company's ability to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet its needs. The Company's liquidity position (cash and cash
squivalents and short-term investments, excluding securities lenaing) was $5.5 billion and $4.5 bilion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
Liguidity needs are determined from a rolling 12-month forecast by portfolio and are monitored daily. Asset mix and maturities are adjusted based on
forecast. Cash flow testing and stress testing provide additional perspectives on liquidity. The Company believes that it has sufficiert liquidity to fund its
cash needs under various scenarios that include the potential risk of earty contractholder and policyholder withdrawal. The Company includes provisions
imiting withdrawal rights on many of ‘its products, including general account institutional pension products (generally group annuities, including
guaranteed investment contracts ("GICs"), and certain deposit funds liabiites) sold to employee benefit plan sponsors. Certain of these provisions
pravent the customer from making withdrawals prior to the maturity date of the product.

In the event of significant unanticipated cash requirements beycond normal liquidity, the Company has multiple liquidity altematives available based on
market conditions and the amount and timing of the liguidity need. These options include cash flow from operations (insurance premiums, annuity
considerations and deposit funds), borrowings under committed credit facilitles, secured borrowings, the ability to issue commercial paper, long-term
debt, capital securities, common equity and, if necessary, the sale of liguid long-term assets.

The Company's ability to sell investment assets could be limited by accounting rules including rules re\atmg 1o the intent and abmty te hold impaired
securities until the market value of those securities recovers.

In extreme circumstances, ail general account assets within a statutory legal entity are available to fund any cbligation of the general account within
that legal entity.

Liquidity Sources

Cash Flow from Qperaticns.  The Company's principal cash inflows from its insurance activities come from insurance premiums, annulty considera-
tions and deposit funds. A primary liquidity concern with respect to these cash inflows is the risk of early contractholder and policyholder withdrawal. The
Company includes provisions limiting withdrawal rights on many of its products, including general account institutional pension products (generally group
annuities, including GICs and certain deposit fund liabilities) sold to employee benefit plan sponsars.
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. The Company's principal cash inflows from its investment activities come from repayments of principal, proceeds from maturties and sales of
Jinvested assets and investment income. The primary liquidity concems with respect to these cash inflows are the risk of default by debtors and market
volatilities. The Company closely monitors and manages these risks through its credit risk management process.

Liquid Assets.  An integral part of the Company's liquidity management is the amount of liquid assets it holds. Liquid assets include cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments, marketable fixed maturity and equity securities. Liquid assets exclude assets relating to securities lending and dollar
roll activities. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had $136 billion and $125 billion in liquid assets, respectively.

Global Funding Sources. Liguicity is also. provided by a variety of beth short- and ong-term instruments, including repurchase agreements,
commercial paper, medium- and long-term debot, capital securities and stockholders' equity. The diversification of the Company’s funding sources
enhances funding flexibility, limits dependence on any one source of funds and generally lowers the cost of funds.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had $1.4 bilion and $3.6 bilfion in short-term debt outstanding, and $7.4 biion and $5.7 Gilion in
long-term debt outstanding, respectively.

MetLife. Funding, Inc. (‘Metlife Funding”), a subsidiary of Metropolitan Life, serves as a centralized finance unit for the Company. Pursuant to a
support agreement, the Company has agreed to cause MetLife Funding to have a tangible net worth of at least one dollar. At December 31, 2004 and
2003, Metlife Funding had a tangible net worth of $10.9 million and $10.8 million, respectively. Metlife Funding raises funds from various funding
sources and uses the proceeds to extend loans, through Metlife Credit Corp., another subsidiary of Metropolitan Life, to the Holding Company,
Metropolitan Life and other affilates. Metlife Funding manages its funding sources to enhance the financial flexibility and liguidity of Metropolitan Life and
other affliated companies. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, Metlife Funding had total outstanding liabilities, including accrued interest payable, of
$1,448 milion and $1,042 million, respectively, consisting primarily of commercial paper.

Credit Faciiies. The Company maintains committed and unsecured credit facilities aggregating $2.8 bilion ($1.1 bilion expiring in 2005,
$175 million expiring in 2006 and $1.5 billion expiring in 2009). If these facilities were drawn upon, they would bear interest at varying rates in accordance
with the respective agreements. The facilities can be used for general corporate purposes and $2.5.billion of the facilities also serve as back-up fines of
credt for the Company's commercial paper programs. At December 31, 2004, the Company had drawn approximatety $56 million under the facilities
expirng in 2005 at interest rates ranging from 5.44% to 6.38% and approximately $50 million under a facility expiring in 2006 at an interest rate of 2.99%.

Liquidity Uses
Insurance Liabilties. The Company's principal cash outflows primarily relate to the liabllities associated with its various life insurance, property and
casualty, annuity and group pension products, operating expenses and income taxes, as well as principal and interest on its outstanding debt

obligations. Liabilities arising from its insurance activities primarily relate to benefit payments under the aforementioned products, as well as payments for
policy surrenders, withdrawals and loans.

investment and Other.  Additional cash cutflows include thoss related to obligations of securities lending and dollar roll activities, investments in real
estate, limited partnerships and joint ventures, as well as litigation-related liabilities.
The following table summarizes the Company’s major contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004:

Payments Due By Period

Less Than Three to #ore than

Contractua! Obligations . Total Three Years Five Years Five Years
’ : {Dollars in millions}

Other long-term liabilitles(12) . . ..o ovve e e $80,167  $ 9,408 $8,901 $61,858
Longterm debt(3) ... P 7,368 2,110 104 5,154
Partnership IMVESIMENTSIA) . .o\ o ettt e e e 1,324 1,324 - -
Operating leases®) ................... R P PR [ 1,084 347 317 420
MOMGAGE COMMIIMENES . . . .+« vttt ettt ettt e e et 1,189 . 1,189 - —
Shares subject to mandatory redemption(3) . ..o ov et ' - 380 — - 350
Capital leases . .. .......ooeeiia... P e 66 18 35 13
Total..... S e . 591,848 514,396 $9,357 $67,795

(1) Ctner long-term liabilities include various investment-type products with contractually scheduled maturities, including guaranteed interest contracts,
structured settlements, pension closeouts, certain annuity policies and certain indemnities.

(2) Other long-term liabilities include benefit and claim liabilities for which the Company believes the amount and timing of the payment is essentially fixed
and determinable. Such amounts generally relate 10 (i) policies or coniracts where the Company is currently making payments and will continue 1o do
so until the occurrence of a specific event, such as death and {ii) life insurance and property and casualty incurred and reported claims. Liabilities for
future policy benefits of approximately $71.5 billion and policyholder account balances of approximately $77.8 tilion at December 31, 2004, have
been excluded from this table. Amounts excluded from the table are generally comprised of policies or contracts where () the Company is not
curently making payments and will not make payments in the future until the occumrence of an insurable event, such as death or disability or (i) the
occurrence of a payment triggering event, such as a surrender of a policy or contract, is outside of the control of the Company. The determination of
these llability amounts and the timing of payment are not reasonably fixed and determinable since the insurable event or payment triggering event has
not yet occurred, Such excluded liabiiities primarily represent future policy benefits of approximately $60.3 billion relating to traditional life, health and
disability insurance products and pelicyhclder account balances of approximately $28.3 billion relating to deferred annuities, approximately $21.8 bil-
lion for group and universal fife products and approximately $13.8 billion for funding agreements without fixed maturity dates. Significant uncertainties
refating to these fiabilities include mortality, morbidity, expenses, persistency, investment retums, infiation and the timing of payments. See “— The
Company — Asset/Liabllity Management.”

Armounts included in other long-term liabilities refiect estimated cash payments to be made.to policyholders. Such cash outfliows reflect adjustments
for the estimated timing of mortality, retirement, and other appropriate factors, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. The amount shown in the
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more than five years column represents the sum of cash flows, also adjusted for the estimated timing of mortality, retirement and other appropriate
factors and undiscounted with respect to interest, extending for more than 100 years from the present date. As a result, the sum of the cash outflows
shown for all years in the table of $80.2 billion exceeds the comesponding liability. amounts of $36.2 billion included in the consolidated financial
statements at December 31, 2004. The liability amount in the consolidated financial statements reflects the discounting for Interest, as well as
adjustments for the timing of other factors as described above.

{3) Amouints differ from the balances presented on the consolidated balance sheets. The amounts above do not include related premiums and discounts
or capital leases which are presented separately.

{4} The Company anticipates that these amounts could be invested in these partnerships any time over the next five years, but are presented in the
current period, as the timing of the fulfiliment of the obligation cannot be predicted.

(5) Excluded from operating leases in the above contractual obligations table is $117 milion, $26 million, $38 million, and $53 million for total, less than
three years, three to five years, and more than five years, respectively, related to discontinued operations pertaining to SSRM.

As of December 31, 2004, and relative to its liquidity program, the Company had no material (individually or in the aggregate) purchase .obligations or
material {individually or in the aggregate) unfunded pension or cther postretirement benefit obligations due within one year.

On April 11, 2003, an affiiate of the Company elected not to make future payments required by the terms of a non-recourse loan obligation. The
book value of this loan was approximately $17 milion at December 31, 2004. The Company's exposure under the terms of the applicable loan
agreement is limited solely to its investment in certain securities held by an afflliate. Subseguent to December 31, 2004, in connection with the sale of the
related equity investment, the loan was forgiven and the affiliate was discharged and released from its obligations thereunder.

Letters of Credit. - At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had outstanding $961 milion and $828 million, respectively, in letters of credit
from various banks, all of which expire within one year. Since commitments associated with letters of credit and financing arrangements may expire
unused, these amounts do not necessarily reflect the actual future cash funding requirements.

Support Agreements.  Metropolitan Life entered into a net worth maintenance agreement with New England Life Insurance Company ("NELICO") at
the time Metropolitan Life merged with New England Mutual Life Insurance Company. Under the agreement, Metropolitan Life agreed, without limitation
as 1o the amount, to cause NELICO to have a-minimum capital and surplus of $10 million, total adjusted capital at a level nat less than the company
action level RBC, as defined by state insurance statutes, and liquidity necessary to enable it 1o mest its cument obligations on a timely basis. At
December 31, 2004, the capital and surplus of NELICO was in excess of the minimum capital and surplus amount referenced above, and its total
adjusted capital was in excess of the most recent referenced RBC-based amount calculated at December 31, 2004.

In connection with the Company's acauisition of GenAmerica Financial Corporation ("GenAmerica'), Metropoiitan Life entered into a net worth
maintenance agreement with General American. Under the agreement,. Metropolitan Life agreed, without limitation as to amount, to cause General
American to have a minimum capital and surplus of $10 million, total adjusted capital at a level not less than 180% of the company action level RBC, as
defined by state insurance statutes, and tiquidity necessary to enable it to meet its current obligations on a timely basis. The agreement was subseguently
amended to provide that, for the five year period from 2003 through 2007, total adjusted capital must be maintained at a level not less than 200% of the
company action level RBC, as defined by state insurance statutes. At December 31, 2004, the capital and surplus of General American was in excess of
the minimum capital and surplus amount referenced above, and its total adjusted capital was in excess of the most recent referenced RBC-based
amaunt calculated at December 31, 2004,

Metropolitan Life has also:entered into arrangements for the benefit of some of its other subsidiaries and affiiates to assist such subsidiaries and
affiiates in meeting various- jurisdictions’ regulatory requirements regarding capital and surplus and security deposits. In additicn, Metropolitan Life has
enterad into a support arrangement with respect to a subsidiary under which Metropolitan Life may become responsibie, in the event that the subsidiary
becomes the subject of insolvency proceedings, for the payment of certain reinsurance recoverables due from the subsidiary to one or more of its
cedents in accordance with the terms and conditions of the applicable reinsurance agreements.

General American has agreed to guarantee the contractual obligations of its subsidiary, Paragon Life Insurance Company, and certain contractual
obligations of its former subsidiaries, MetLife Investors Insurance Company {‘MetLife Investors”), First MetLife Investors insurance Company and Metlife
Investors Insurance Company of Califormia. In addition, General American has entered into a contingent reinsurance agreement with MetLife Investors.
Under this agreement, in the event that MetLife Investors’ statutory capital and surplus is less than $10 million or total adjusted capital falis below 150% of
the company action level RBC, as defned by state insurance statutes, General American would assume as assumption reinsurance, subject to
regulatory approvals and required consents, all of MetlLife Investors’ life insurance policies and annuity contract liabilities. At December 31, 2004, the
capital and surplus of MetLife Investors was in excess of the minimum capital and surplus amount referenced above, and its total adjusted capital was in
excess of the most recent referenced RBC-based amount calculated at December 31, 2004,

Management does not anticipate that these arrangements will place any significant demands upon the Company’s liquidity resaurces.

Litigation.  Various litigation, claims and assessments against the Company in addition to those discussed elsewhere herein and those otherwise
provided for in the Company's consclidated financial statements, have arisen in the course of the Company's business, including, but not limited to, in
connection with its activities as an insurer, employer, investor, investment advisor and taxpayer. Further, state insurance regulatory authorities and other
federal and state authorities regularly make inquiries and conduct investigations conceming the Company's compliance with applicable insurance and
other laws and regulations. ‘

It is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or provide reasconable ranges of
potential losses except as noted elsewhere herein in connection with specific matters. In some of the matters referred to herein, very large and/or
indeterminate amounts, including punitive and treble damages, are sought. Although in light of these considerations, it is possible that an adverse
outcome in certain cases could have a material adverse effect upon the Company's consolidated financial position, based on information currently known
by the Company's management, in its opinion, the outcomes of such pending investigations and legal proceedings are not likely to have such an effect.
However, given the large and/or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters and the inherent unpredictability of fitigation, it is possible that
an adverse outcome in certain'matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated net income or cash flows
in particular quarterly or annual periods.
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Other. - Based on management's analysis of its expected cash inflows from operating activities, the dividends it receives from subsidiaries, including
Metropofitan Life, that are pemitted 1o be paid without pricr insurance regulatory approval and its portfolio of liguid assets and other anticipated cash
flows, management believes there will be sufficient liquidity to enable the Company to make payments on debt, make cash dividend payments on its
common stock, pay all operating expenses, and mest its cash needs. The nature of the'Company's diverse product portiolio and customer base lessens
the likelihood that normal operations will result in any significant strain on liquidity.

SUDSGQ-UGFi?.E\'/enfS See ! —The Hoiding Company — Liquidity Uses — Subsequent Events.”

. Consolidated cash flows.  Net cash provided by operating activities was $8,066 milion and $7,030 million for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003 respectiveiy The $1 036 million increase in operating ‘cash flows in 2004 over the comparable 2003 period is primarily attributable to
continued growth in the group life, long- -term care, dental and disability businesses, as well as an increase in retirement & savings' structured settlements
due to a large multi-contract sale in 2004. Also, the late 2003 aoqwsrtron of John Hancock's group life business and the acquisition of TIAA-CREF's long-
term care business contributed 1o growth in the 2004 pericd. in addition, an increase in MetLife Bank's custorner deposits, particularly in the personal
and business savings accounts, contributed to the increase in operating ¢ash flovs,

Net cash provided by operating activities was $7,030 milion and $4,180 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The $2,850 pillion increase-in operating cash flow in 2003 over the comparable 2002 period is primarily attributable to sales growth in the group life,

dental, disabiiity ‘and long-term care businesses, as well as higher sales in retirement & savings’ structured settiement products. The acauisition of John
Hancock’s group business also cohtributed to sales growth in the 2003 period. In addition, growth in MetLife Bank's customer deposits, accelerated
prepayments of mortgage-backed securities that have been previously purchased at a premium, and an increase-in funds withheld related to reinsurance
activity contributed to the increase in operating cash flows. These items were partially offset by the Company's contribution to its qualified defined benefit
plans in December 2003.

Net cash used in investing activities was $13,015 million and $1 7 ,688 miliion for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
$4,673 million decrease in net cash used in investing activities in 2004 over the comparable 2003 pericd is primarily due to less cash provided by
financing activities, partially offset by an increase in cash generated from operations. This decrease in available cash resulted in reduced investments in

“fixed maturitie$ for the curent year versus the prior year. Additionally, there was a decrease in securnities lending cash collateral invested in 2004 as
cormpared to 2003. These ftems are partlally offset by an increase in‘mortgage and other loan origination as the Company continues to take advantage of
favorable market oonditions in this sector as well as an increase in cash used for equity securities and short-term investments for the comparable
periods.

Net cash used in investing actiVit ies was $17,688 milion and $16, 21 3 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively The

- $1,475 million increase in net cash used in investing activities.in. 2003 over the comparable 2002 pericd is primarly attributable to an increase in the
purchase of fixed maturities and cemmercial mortgage loan origination, as well as an increase in the amount of securities lending cash collateral invested,
which resulted from an expansion of the program. In addition, the Company invested income generated from operations and cash raised through the
issuance of GICs. These items were partially offset by lower income resulting from lower market rates and the June 2002 acquiisition of Hidalgo. In
addition, the 2003 period had less proceeds from sales of equity securities and real estate to use in investing activities. The 2002 period included
proceeds from a significant sale of equity securities and cash generated by the Company's real estate sales program.

) Net cash provided by financing activiies was $5,322 million and $12,068 million for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,.respectively.

" The $6,746 milion decrease in net cash provided by financing activiies in 2004 over the comparable 2003 period is primarily due to repayments of

“shortiterm debt assdciated with ‘dollar roll activity, and an increase in cash used-in the Company's stock repurchase program. In addition, net cash
provided by policyholder account’ balances decreased for the comparable 2003 périod mainly as a result of a decrease in GICs sold in 2004 as
compared to 2003. The 2003 period included payments of $1,008 million received on the settlement of commion stock purchase contracts (see “— The

~ Holding Company — Liduidity Sotirces — Global Funding Sources”), and $317 million nét cash’proceeds associated with RGA's issuance of common
stock. The Company also doubled its annual dividend per share in 2004. These items were partially offset by additional proceeds from the issuance of
senior notes by the Holding Company and a decresse in répayments of long-term debt for the comparable periods.

Net-cash provided by financing activities was '$12,068 millior and $6,883 miliion for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The 35,185 millon increase in net'cash provided by financing activities In 2003 over thé comparable 2002 period is due to an increase in policyholder

account balances primarily from sales of annuity preducts, as well as additional short-term debt issued related to dollar roll activity. In 2003, the Company
received $1,006 milion on the settiement of common stotk purchase contracts (see = The Holding Company — Liquidity Sources — Global Funding

Sources”), issued $700 million of sénior notes and had a decrease in cash used’in the stock repurchase program as compared to 2002, The 2003

period also includes $317 million net cash prooeeds associated with RGA's issifance of common stock. These cash flows were partialiy offset by

addrtionai repayments of long- -term debt and a 10% ncrease in cash diVidends per share in 2003 as compared to 2002.

The Holdmg Company
Capital

Restrictions and Limitations ‘on Bank Ho/d/ng Companies and Financial Holding Companies — Gap/tal MetLife, Inc. and its insured depository
institution subsidiary, MetLife Bank, are subject to risk-based and leverage capital guidelines issued by the federal banking regulatory agencies for banks
and financial holding companies. The federal banking regulatory agencies are reguired by law to take specific prompt corrective actions with respect to
institutions that do not mest minimum capital standards, At December 31, 2004, Metlife, Inc. and MetLife Bank were in compliance with the
aforementioned guidelines.

!
o
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The following table contains the RBC ratios as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the regulatery requirements for Metlife Inc., as a bank holding

company, and MetlLife Bank: :
MetLife, Inc.-
RBC Ratios — Bank Holding Company

As of December 31,

Regulatory Regulatory
Requirements Requirements
2004 2003 Minimum “Well Capitalized”
Total RBC Ralio . v 10.20% 11.19% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier 1 RBC Ratio ..o e . 8.73% 9.19% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier TLeverage Ratio . ... e L 8.06% 6.12% . 3.00% ‘ 5.00%

MetLife Bank
RBC Ratios — Bank

As of December 31,

Regulatory Regulatory '
Requirements Requirements
2004 2003 Minimum “Well Capitalized”
Tota BBO Ratio v v L 17.09%  13.12% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier TRBC Ratio /v e e L S 16.38% 12.50% =~ 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Leverage Ratio . ...t e e 10.84% 8.81% 3.00% 5.00%

Liquidity

Liquidity is managed to preserve stable, reliable and cost-effective sources of cash to meet ali current and future fi nanmal obhganons and is provided
by a variety of sources, including a portfolio of liquid assets, a diversified mix of short- and long-term funding sources from the wholesale financial markets
and the ability to borrow through committed credit facilities. The Holding Company is an active participant in the global financial markets through-which it
obtains a significant ameunt of funding. These markets, which serve as cost-effective sources of funds, are critical components of the Holding
Company's liquidity management. Decisions to access these markets are based upon relative costs, prospective views of balance sheet growth and a
. targeted liquidity profile. A disruption in the financial markets could limit the Holding Company's access 1o liquidiity,

The Holding Company's ability to maintain regular access to competitively priced wholesale funds is fostered by its current credit ratings from the
major credit rating agencies. Management views its capital ratios, credit quality, stable and diverse eamings streams, diverS/ty of liquidity sources and its
liquidity monitoring procedures as critical to retaining high credit ratings.

- Liquidity is monitored through the use of intemal liquidity risk metrics, including the composition and fevel of the liquid asset por‘tfoho Ummg
differences in short-term cash flow obligations, access to the ﬂnanolal markets for capital and debt transactions and exposure to contingent draws on the
Holding Company's liquidity. ‘

Liquidity Sources

Dividends.  The primary source of the Holding Company’s liguidity is dxvndends it receives from Metropolitan Life. Under New York State Insurance
Law, Metropolitan L\fe is permitted, without prior insurance regulatory clearance, to pay a dividend to the Holding Gompany as long as the aggregate
amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the lesser of () 10% of its surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding
calendar year; and {ij its statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year (excluding realized capital gains). Metropolitan Life
_ will be permitted to pay a dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the lesser of such two amounts only if it fles notice of its intention to declare

such a dividend and the amount thereof with the Superintendent and the Superintendent does not disapprove the distribution. Under New York State

‘Insurance Law, the Superintendent has broad discretion in determining whether the financlal condition of a stock life insurance company would support
the payment of such dividends 1o its stockholders. The New York State Department of Insurance has established informal guidefines for such
determinations. The guidelines, among other things, focus on the insurer's overall financial condition and profitability: under statutory accounting practices.
Management of the Holding Company cannot provide assurance that Metropolitan Life will have statutory eamings to support payment of dividends to the
Holding Company in an amount sufficient to fund its cash requirements and pay cash dividends or that the Superintendent will not disapprove any
dividends that Metropolitari Life must submit for the Superintendent's consideration.

In addition, the Holding Company receives dividends from its other subsidiaries. The Holding Company’s other insurance subsidiaries are also
subject to similar restrictions on the payment of dividends to thelr respective parent companies. The dividend limitation is based on statutory financial
results. Statutory accounting practices, as prescribed by insurance regulators of vartous states in which the Company conducts business, differ in certain
respects from accounting principles used in financial statements prepared in conformity with GAAP. The significant differences relate to the treatment of
DAC, certain deferred income taxes, required investment reserves, reserve calculation assumptions, goodwill and surplus notes.

As of December 31, 2004, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be paid to the Holding Company by Metropolitan Life, Metropolitan
Property and Casualty Insurance Company and Metropolitan Tower Ufe insurance Company in 2005, without prior regulatory approval, is $880 million,
$187 milion and $119 miilion, respectively, :

Liquid Assets.  An integral part of the Holding Company's liquidity management is the amount of liquid assets that it holds. Liquid assets inc!ude
cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, marketable fixed maturity and equity securities. Liguid assets exclude assets relating to securities lending
and dollar roll activities. At'‘December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Holding Company had $2,090 milion and $1,302 million in liquid assets, respectively,

Global Funding Sources. Liquidity is also provided by a varisty of both short and long-term instruments, including repurchase agreements,
commercial paper, medium and long-term debt, capital securities and stockholders’ equity. The diversification of the Holding. Company’s funding sources
enhances funding fiexibllity and limits dependence on any one source of funds, and generally lowers the cost of funds.

At December 31, 2004, the Holding Company had no short-tenm debt outstanding as compared to $106 milion at December 31, 2003. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Holding Company had $5.7 bilion and $4.0 billion in long-tem debt outstanding, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2004, the Holding Company has issued an aggregate principal amount of senior debt of $1.2 billion under the $5.0 bilion shelf
registration staterment filed with the SEC during the first quarter of 2004, The shelf registration will permit the registration and issuance of a'wide range of
debt and equity securities. Approximately $44 milion of registered but unissued securities remaining from the Company's 2001 $4.0 bilion shelf
registration statement was carried over to this shelf registration. The Holding Company issued senior debt in the aggregate principal amount of
$2.95 hifion under the 2001 ‘$4.0 bilion shelf registration statement from November 2001 through November 2003. In addition, under this shelf
registration statement, in February 2003, the Holding Company remarketed debentures in the aggregate principal amount of $1.01 billion in accordance
with the terms of the then-outstanding equity security units.

On December 9, 2004, the Holding Company issued 350 million pounds stering aggregate principal amount of 5.375% senior notes due
December 9, 2024. The senior notes were initially offered and sold outside the United States in reliance upon Regulation S under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. Up to 35 million pounds sterling, or $66.8 million (translated from pounds sterling to U.S. dollars using the noon buying rate for
pound sterfing on November 30, 2004 as announced by the U.S. Federal Reserve Bank of New York) of the senior notes Initially offered and sold outside
the United States may be resold in the United States pursuam to the Company's shelf registration statement

The following table summarizes the Holding Company's senior debt issuances:

Interest
Issue Date ‘ ‘ Principal Rate Maturity
. {Dollars in millions)
December 2004(1) ... e $671 5.38% . 2024
JUne 2004(2) . .o e $350 5.50% 2014
JUNE 2ODA(D) <o TR $750 6.38% 2034
November 2003, . ... S PP $500 500% . 2013
Novembear 2003, . .. e $200 588% 2033
DECAMBEr 2002 ..\ ittt e . $400 538% 2012
DEcambEr 2002 . o e e $600 6.50% 2032
November 2007 . .. .. e e $500 . 5.25% 20086
November 2007 ... e $750 8.13% 2011

(1) This amount represents the translation of 350 million pounds sterfing into U.S. Dollars using the noon buying rate on December 31, 20040 1.916 as
announced by the U.S. Federal Reserve Bank of New York.
(2} On July 23, 2004, the Holding Company reopened its June 3, 2004 senior notes offering and increased the principal outstanding on the
5.50% notes due June 2014, from $200 million to $350 million and on the 6.38% notes due June 2034, from $400 milion to $750 million,
{3) This table excludes the remarketed debentures of $1.01 bilion and any premiurn or discount on the senior debt issuances.
’ Other sources of the Holding Company's liquidity include programs for short- and long-term borrowing, as needed, arranged through Metropolitan
Life. '

Credit Facilties.  The Holding Company maintaing committed and unsecured credit facilities aggregating $2.5 billion ($1 billion expiring in 2005 and
"$1.5 billion expiring in 2008) which it shares with Metropolitan Life and MetLife Funding. Borrowings under these facilities bear interest at varying rates
stated in the agreements These facilities are primarily used for general corporate purposes and as back-up tines of credit for the borowers’ commercial
paper programs.'At December 31, 2004, none of the Holding Comparny, Metropolitan Life or MetLife Funding had borrowed against these credit faclities.

Liquidity Uses

The primary uses of liquidity of the Holding Company include service on debt, cash dividends on common stock, capital contributions to
subsidiaries, payment of general operating expenses and the repurchase of the Holding Company’s common stock.

Dividends.  On September 28, 2004, the Holding Company's Board of Directors approved an annual dividend for 2004 of $0.46 per share payable
on December 13, 2004 to shareholders of record on November 5, 2004, The 2004 dividend represents a 100% increase from the 2003 annual dividend
of $0.23 per share. Future dividend decisions will be determined by the Holding Company's Board of Directors after taking into consideration factors
such as the Holding Company's current eamings, expected mediun- and long -term eamings, financial condition, regulatory capital position, and
applicable governmental regulations and pohcwes :

Capital Contributions to Subsidiaries. During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Holding Company contributed an aggrégate of
$761 million and $239 million to various subsidiaries, respectively.

Share Repurchase.  On October 26, 2004, the Holding Company's Beard of Directors authorized a $1 bilion common stock repurchase program.
This program began after the completion of the February 19, 2002 and March 28, 2001 repurchase programs, each of which authorized the repurchase
of $1 bilion of common stock. Under these authorizations, the Holding Company may purchase its common stock from the MetLife Policyholder Trust, in
* the open market and in privately negotiated transactions.

On December 18, 2004, the Holding Company repurchased 7,281,553 shares of its outstanding common stock at an aggregate cost of
approximately $300 milion under an accelerated share repurchase agreement with a major bank. The bank bomowed the stock sold to the Holding
.Company from third parties and is purchasing the shares in the open market over the next few months to return to the lenders. The Holding Company will
either pay or receive an amount based on the actual amount paid by the bank to purchase the shares. The final purchase price is expected 0 be
determined in Aprit 2005 and will be setiled in either cash or Holding Company stock at the Holding Company's option. The Holding Company recorded
the initial repurchase of shares as treasury stock and will record any amount paid or received as an adjustment to the cost of the treaéUry stock.
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The following table summarizes the 2004, 2003 and 2002 repurchase activity, which includes the accelerated share repurchase activity in the fourth
quarter of 2004

December 31,
¢ {Doliars in millions)
Shares Repurchased. . ............ PP FE P 26,373,952 2,997,200 15,244,492
GO0t ottt 3 1000 % 97 % 471

At December 31, 2004, the Holding Company had approximately $710 million remaining on its existing share repurchase program. As a result of the
Holding Company's agreement to acquire Travelers from Chtigroup, the Holding Company has suspended its share repurchase activity.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, RGA offered to the public 12,075,000 shares of its common stock at $36.65 per share. Mettife and its affilates
purchased 3,000,000 shares of the common stock offered by RGA. As a result of this offering, MetLife's ownership percentage of outstanding shares of
RGA common stock was reduced from approximately 59% at December 31, 2002 to approximately 52% at Deoember 31, 2003. MetlLife's ownership
percentage of the outstanding shares of RGA common stock remains approximately 52% at Decemiper 31, 2004, )

Letters of Credit. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Holding Company had outstanding $369 milion and $208 milion, respectively, in the
letters of credit from various banks, all of which expire within one year. Since commitments assoclated with letters of credit and financing arangements
may sxpire unused, these amounts do not necessarily reflect the actual future cash funding requirements.

Support Agreements. In 2002, the Holding Company entered into a net worth maintenance agreement with three of its insurance subsidiaries,
MetLife Investors Insurance Company, First MetLife Investors Insurance Company and MetLife Investors Insurance Company of Califomia. Under the
agreaments; as subsequently amended, the Holding Company agreed, without limitation as to the amount, to cause each of these subsidiaries to have a
minimum capital and surplus of $10 million, total adjusted capitel at a level not less than 150% of the company action level RBC, as defined by state
insurance statutes, and liquidity necessary to enable it to mest its current obligations on a timely basis. At December 31, 2004, the capital and surplus of
each of these subsidiaries is in excess of the minimum capital and surplus amounts referenced above, and their total adjusted capital was in excess of
the most recent referenced BBC-based amount calculated at December 31, 2004.

Based on management's analysis and comparigon of its current and future cash inflows from the dividends # receives from subSIdlanes including
Metropolitan Life, that are permitted to be paid without prior insurance regulatory approval and its portfolio of liouid assets and other anticipated cash
flows, management believes there will be sufficient liquidity to enable the Holding Company to make payments on debt, make cash dividend payments
on its common stock, contribute capital to its subsidiaries, pay all operating expenses, and meet its cash needs,

Subsequent Events.  On January 31, 2005, the Holding Company entered into an agreement to acquire al of the outstanding shares of capital
stock of certain indirect subsidiaries of Citigroup Inc., including the maijority of Travelers, and substantially all of Gitigroup Inc.'s international insurance
businesses for a purchase price of $11.5 billion, subject to adjustment as described in the acquisition agreement. As a condition to closing, Citigroup Inc.
and the Holding Company will enter into ten-year agreements under which the Company will expand its distribution by making products avaitable through
certain Citigroup distribution-channels, subject to appropriate suitability and other standards. The transaction is expacted to close in the summer of 2005.
Approximately $1 bilion to $3 bilion of the purchase price will be paid in MetLife stock with the remainder paid in cash which will be financed through a
combination of cash on hand, debt, mandatorily convertible securities and selected asset sales depending on market conditions, timing, valuation
considerations and the relafive attractiveness of funding alternatives.

The Company has entered Into brokerage agreements relating to the possible sale of two of its real estate investments, 200 Park Avenue and One
Madison Avenue in New York City. The Company is also contemplating other asset sales, including selling some or all of its beneficially owned shares in
RGA.

Insolvency Assessments

Most of the jurisdictions in which the Company is admitted to transact business require life insurers doing business within the jurisdiction to
participate in guaranty associations, which are crganized to pay contractual benefits owed pursuant to insurance policies issued by impaired, insolvent or
failed life insurers. These assoclations levy assessments, up to prescribed limits, on all member insurers in a particular state on the basis of the
proportionate share of the premiums written by member insurers in the lines of business in which the impaired, insolvent or failed insurer engaged. Some
states permit member insurers to recover assessments paid through full or partial premium tax offsets. Assessments levied against the Company from
January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2004 aggregated $20 million. The Company maintained a liability of $73 million at December 31, 2004 for future
assessments in respect of currently impaired, insolvent or failed insurers.

In the past five years, none of the aggregate assessments levied against Metlife's insurance subsidiaries has been material. The Compary has
established liabilities for guaranty fund assessments that it considers adequate for assessments with respect to insurers that are currently subject to
insolvency proceedings.

Effects of Inflation
The Company daes not believe that inflation has had a material effect on its consolidated results of operations, except insofar as wnﬂatlon may affect
interast rates.

Application of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Staff Position Paper (‘FSP") 108-2, Accounting and Disclosure
Guidance for the Foreign Eamings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 ("AJCA"). The AJCA introduced a one-time
dividend received deduction on the repatriation of certain eamings to a U.S. taxpayer. FSP 109-2 provides companies additional time beyond the
financial reporting period of enactment to evaluate the effects of the AJCA an their plans to repatriate forelgn earnings for purposes of applying SFAS 108,
Accounting for Income Taxes. The Company Is currently evaluating the repatriation provision of the AJCA. If the repatriation provision is implemented by
the Company, the impact én the Company’s income tax expense and deferred income tax assets and liabllities would be immaterial,

in December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 183 Exchange of Nonmonetary Assets, an amendment of Accounting Principles Board ("APB")
Opinion No. 29 ("SFAS 153"). SFAS 153 amends prior guidance to eliminate the exception for nonmoenetary exchanges of similar productive assets and
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replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has
commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The provisions of SFAS 153
are effective for nonmaonetary asset exchanges ocourring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005 and shall be applied prospectively. SFAS 153 is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements at the date of adoption.

In December 2004, FASB revised SFAS No. 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS 123") to Share-Based Payment
("SFAS 123(n)"). SFAS 123(r) provides additional guidance on determining whether certain financial instruments awarded in share-based payment
transactions are liabilities. SFAS 123(r) also requires that the cost of all share-based transactions be recorded in the financial statements. The revised
pronouncement must be adopted by the Company by July 1, 2005, As all stock options currently accounted for under APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employess ("APB 25") will vest prior to the effective date, implementation of SFAS 123(n) will not have a significant impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements,

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure
("SFAS 148"}, which provides guidance on how to apply the fair value method of accounting for share-based payments. As permitted under SFAS 148,
the Company elected to use the. prospective.method of accounting for stock options granted subseauent to December 31, 2002. Options granted prior
to January 1, 2003 will continue to be accounted for under the intrinsic value method until the adoption of SFAS 123(), and the pro forma impact of
accounting for these options at fair value will continue to be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements until the last of those options vest in 2008.

i March 2004, the Emerging lssues Task Force ("EfTF") reached further consensus on issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impaiment and lts Application to Certain Investments (“"EITF 03-1"), EITF 03-1 provides accounting guidance regarding the determination of when an
impairment of debt and marketable equity securities and investments accounted for under the cost method should be considered other-than-temporary
and recognized in income. An EMTF 03-1 consensus reached in November 2003 also requires certain quantitative and qualitative disclosures for debt and
marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity under SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities, that are impaired at the balance shest date but for which an other-than-temporary impairment has not been recognized. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements of EITF 03-1 which were effective December 31, 2003. The accounting guidance of EITF 03-1 relating to
the recognition of investment impairment which was to be effective in the third quarter of 2004 has been delayed pending the development of additional
guidance. The Company is actively monitoring the deliberations relating to this issue at the FASB and currentiy is unable to determine the ultimate impact
EITF 03-1 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2004, the EITF reached consensus on Issue No. 03-6, Participating Securties and the Two — Class Method under FASE Statement
No. 128 ("EITF 03-6"). ETF 03-8 provides guidance in determining whether a security should be considered a participating security for purposes of
complting eamings per share and how eamings should be allocated to the participating security. EITF 03-6 did not have an impact on the Company's
eamings per share calculations or armnourts.

In March 2004, the EITF reached consensus on Issue No. 03-18, Accounting for investments in Limited Liability Companies (‘EITF 03-18").
EITF 03-16 provides guidance regarding whether a limited liability company should be viewed as similar to & corporation or similar to a partnership for
purposes of determining whether a noncontroling investment should be accounted for using the cost method ar the equity method of accounting.
EMTF 03-16 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted SOP 03-1, as Interpreted by Technical Practices Aids issued by the American nstitute of Certified
Public Accountants. SOP 03-1 provides guidance on (i) the classification and valuation of long-duration contract fiabilities; (i) the accounting for sales
inducements; and (i) separate account presentation and valuation. In June 2004, the FASB released FSP No. 97-1, Situations in Which
Paragraphs 17(b) and 20 of FASB Statement No. 97, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for
Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments, Permit or Require Accrual of an Unearnad Revenue Liability ("FSP 97-1") which included
clarffication that uneamed revenue liabilities should be considered in determining the necessary insurance benefit liability required under SOP 03-1. Since
the Company had considered uneamed revenue in determining its SOP 03-1 bengfit liabilities, FSP 97-1 did not impact its consolidated financial
statements. As a result of the adoption of SOP 03-1, effective January 1, 2004, the Company decreased the liability for future policyholder benefits for
changes in the methodology relating to various guaranteed death and annuitization benefits and for determining liabilities for certain universal life insurance
contracts by $4 million, which has been reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting. This amount is net of corresponding changes in DAC,
inctuding VOBA and uneamed revenue liability ("offsets”) under certain variable annuity and life contracts and income taxes. Certain other contracts sold
by the Company provide for a retum through pericdic crediting rates, surender adiustments or termination adjustments based on the total return of a
contractually referenced pool, of assets owned by the Company. To the extent that such contracts are not accounted for as derivatives under the
provisions of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ("SFAS 133") and not already credited to the contract account
balance, under SOP 03-1 the change relating to the fair value of the referenced pool of assets is recorded as a liability with the change in the fiability
recorded as policyholder benefits and claims. Prior to the adoption of SOP 03-1, the Company recorded the change in such liability as other
comprehensive income. At adoption, this change decreased net income and increased other comprehensive income by $63 million, net of income
taxes, which were recorded as cumulative effects of changes in accounting. Effective with the adoption of SOP 03-1, costs associated with enhanced or
bonus crediting rates to contractholders must be deferred and amortized over the life of the related contract using assumptions consistent with the
amortization of DAC. Since the Company followed a similar approach prior to adoption of SOP 03-1, the provisions of SOP 03-1 relating to sales
inducements had no significant Impact on the Comipany's consolidated financial statements. At adoption, the Company reclassified $155 million of
ownership in its own separate accounts from other assets 1o fixed maturities, equity securities and cash and cash equivalents. This reclassification had
no significant impact on net income or other comprehensive income at adoption. In accordance with SOP 03-1's guidance for the reporting of certain
separate accounts, at adoption, the Company also reclassified $1.7 billion of separate account assets to general account investments and $1.7 billion of
separate account liabiiies to future policy benefits and policynolder account balances. This reclassification decreased net income and increased other
comprehensive income by $27 million, net of income taxes, which were reported as cumulative effects of changes in accounting. The application of SOP
03-1 decreased the Company's 2004 net income by $67 million, including the cumulative eﬁect of adoption of a decrease in net income of $86 million
as described above.

In December 2003, FASB revised SFAS No. 132, Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirernent Beneﬁz‘s — an Amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88.and 106 ("SFAS 132()"). SFAS 132(r) retains most of the disclosure requirements of SFAS 132 and requires additional
disclosure about assets, obhgatlons cash ﬂows and net penodlc benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement plans.
SFAS 132() was primarily effective for fiscal'years endmg after December 15, 2003; however, certain disclosures about foreign plans and estimated
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future benefit payments were effective for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004. The Company's adoption of SFAS 132(r) on December 31, 2003 did
not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements since it only revised disclosure requirements,

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP") No. 108-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 ("FSP 108-2"), which provides accounting guidance to a sponsor of a postretirement
hedlth care plan that provides prescription drug benefits. The Company expects to receive subsidies on prescription drug benefits beginning in 2006
under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 based on the Company’s determination that the prescription drug
benefits offered under certain postretirement plans are actuarially equivalent to the benefits offered under Medicare Part D. FSP 1086-2 was sffective for
interim periods beginning after June 15, 2004 and provides for either retroactive application to the date of enactment of the legisiation or prospective
application from the date of adoption of FSP 106-2. Effective July 1, 2004, the Company adopted FSP 106-2 prospectively and the postretirement
benefit plan assets and accumulated benefit obligation were remeasured to determine the effect of the expected subsidies on net pericdic postretirement
bensfit cost, As a result, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and net periodic postretirement benefit cost was reduced by $213 milion and
$17 million, for 2004, respectivaly.

Effective October 1, 20083, the Company adopted Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. B36, Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance
Amrangements and Debt instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the
Obligor under Those Instruments (“lssue B36"). Issue B36 concluded that (i) a company's funds withheld payable and/or receivable under certain
reinsurance arrangements, and (i} a debt instrument that incorporates credit risk exposures that are unrelated or only partially related to the creditworthi-
ness of the obligor include an embedded derivative feature that is not ciearly and closely related to the host contract. Therefore, the embedded derivative
feature Is measured at fair value on the balance sheet and changes in fair value are reported in income. The Company's application of Issue B36
increased (decrsased) net income by $4 milion and ($12) milion, net of amortization of DAC and income taxes, for 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
2003 impact includes a decrease in net income of $26 million refating to the cumuiative effect of a change in accounting from the adoption of the new
guidance.

Effective July 1, 20083, the Company adopted SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities
("SFAS 149"). SFAS 148 amended and clarified the accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. Except for certain previously issued and effective guidance, SFAS 149 was effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, The Company's adoption of SFAS 149 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated
finaricial statements. ’

During 2003, the Company adopted FASE (“FIN") Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51
("FIN 46"}, and its December 2003 revision (“FIN 46(r)"). Certain of the Company’s investments in real estate joint ventures and other limited partnership
interests meet the definition of a variable interest entity (*VIE") and have been consolidated, in accordance with the transition rules and effective dates,
because the Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary. A VIE is defined as (i) any entity in which the equity investments at risk in such entity do
not have the characteristics of a contralling financial interest, or (i) any entity that does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities without
additional subordinated support from ather parties. Effective February 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN 46 for VIEs created or acguired on or after
February 1, 2008 and, effective December 31, 2003, the Company adopted FIN 46(1) with respect to interests in entities formerly considered special
purpose entities ("SPES”), including interests in asset-backed securities and collateralized debt obligations. The adoption of FIN 46 as of February 1,
2003 did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. The adoption of the provisions of FIN 46(r) at December 31,
2003 did not require the Company to consolidate any additional VIEs that were not previously' consolidated. In accordance with the provisions of
FIN 46(r), the Company elected to defer until March 31, 2004 the cansolidation of interests in VIEs for non-SPEs acquired prior to February 1, 2003 for
which it is the primary beneficiary. As of March 31, 2004, the Company consolidated assets and liabilities relating to real estate joint ventures of
$78 million and $11. million, respectively, and asssts and liabilities relating 1o other imited partnerships of $28 million and less than $1 mition, respectively,
for VIEs for which the Company was deemed to be the primary beneficiary. There was no impact to net income from the adoption of FIN 486,

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN No. 45, Guarantor’s Accouriing and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 45"). FIN 45 requires entities to establish liabllities for certain types of guarantees and expands
financial statement disclosures for cthers. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 were applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued of modified after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements. ‘ ‘

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 146"),
SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recorded and measured initiglly at fair valug only when the liability
is incurred rather than at the date of an entity’s commitrmant to an exit plan as required by EITF Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Beneffts and Other Costs to Exit an Activity Including Certain Costs incurred in a Restructuring (*EITF 94-3"). The Company's activities subject
to this guidance in 2004 and 2003 were not significant. :

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Staternents No. 4, 44, .and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Comrections (“SFAS 145"). In addition to amending or rescinding other existing authoritative pronouncements to make
various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions, SFAS 145 generally precludes companies from
recording gains and losses from the extinguishment of debt as an extracrdinary item. SFAS 145 also requires sale-leaseback treatment for certain
modifications of a capital lease that result in the lease being classified as an operating lease. The adoption of SFAS 148 did not have a signfficant impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. ‘ ‘ '

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144, SFAS 144 provides a single model for accounting for long-lived assets to be
disposed of by superseding SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of
(“SFAS 121”), and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the Resutts of Operations — Reporting the Effects of
Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extracrdinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions ("APB 30"} Under SFAS 144,
discontinued operations are measured at the lower of carmrying value or fair value less costs to sell, rather than on a net realizable value basis. Future
operating losses relating to discontinued operations also are no longer recognized before they occur. SFAS 144: () broadens the definttion of a
discontinued operation to include a component of an entity (rather than a segment of a business); (i) requires long-lived assets to be disposed of other
than by sale to be considered held and used until disposed; and (iii) retains the basic provisions of (&) APB 30 regarding the presentation of discontinued
operations in the statements of income, (o} SFAS 121 relating to recognition and measurement of impaired long-lived assets (other than gooadwill), and
(c) SFAS 121 relating to the measurement of long-lived assets classified as held-for-sale. Adoption of SFAS 144 did not have a material impact an the
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Company's consolidated financial statements other than the presentation as discontinued operations of net investment income and net investment gains
related to operations of real estate on which the Company initiated disposition activities subsequent to January 1, 2002 and the classification of such real
estate as held-for-sale on the consolidated balance sheets.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company- adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, ("SFAS 142"), SFAS 142 eliminates the
systematic amortization and establishes criteria for measuring the impairment of goodwill and certain other intangible assets by reporting unit. There was
no impairment of identified intangibles or significant reclassifications between goodwill and other intangible assets at January 1, 2002. Amortization of
other intangible assets was not material for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,

Investments

The Company's primary investrent objective is to optimize, net of income taxes, risk-adjusted investment income and risk-adjusted total retumn while
ensuring that assets and liabilities are managed on a cash flow and duration basis. The Company is exposed to three primary sources of investment risk:

* Credit rigk, relating to the uncertainty associated with the continued ability of a given obligor to make timely payments of principal and interest;

* Interest rate risk, relating to the market price and cash flow variability asscciated with changes in market interest rates; and

* Market valuation risk. ‘

The Company manages risk through in-house fundamental analysis of the underlying obligors, issuers, transaction structures and real estate
properties. The Company also manages credit risk and market valuation risk through industry and issuer diversification and asset allocation. For real
estate and agricultural assets, the Company manages credit risk and valuation risk through geographic, property type and product type diversification and
asset allocation. The Company manages interest rate risk as part of its asset and liability management strategies, product design, such as the use of
market value adjustment features and surender charges, and proactive monitoring and management of certain non-guaranteed elements of its products,
such as the resetting of credited interest and dividend rates for policies that pemmit such adjustments.
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Composition of Portfolio and Investment Results

The following table ilustrates the net investment income and annualized vields on average assets for each of the components of the Company's
investment portfalio for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The decline in annualized yields is due primarily to the decline in interest

rates during these periods.

Fixed Maturities
Yield(2)
Investment income
Net investment gains (losses)
ENdINg 8888t . . e
Mortgage and Other Loans

Yield(2)
VB SIMIENt NGO B) .« vt et e e e e
Net investment gains (losses)
BN BB . . o o oo ittt e e e
Real Estate and Real Estate Joint Ventures(4)

Yield(2)
Investment income(5)
Net investment gains {losses)
ENAiNg @888t8(0) . . . o« ottt e e
Policy Loans

Yield(2)

S BN MO . L\ ottt e e e e e e e e e .

Ending assets
Equity Securities and Other Limited Partnership Interests
Yield(2)
IMVEStMENt INCOME(E) . . . ottt e e e e e
Net investment gains {losses)
ENAINg B8BTS 0] .+ - o ve et e e e e e
Cash and Short-Term Investments

Yield(2)
IVESIMENI INCOME(D) i+ vttt et et et ettt e e e
Net investment gains (losses)
ENAING B8BTS0 .+ v v\t e e e
Other Invested Assets(7)

Yield(2)
IMVESIMIBNT INCOME D) .« oot e
Net investment gains (losses)(810)
Ending assets(6)
Total Investments

Gross investment income yield(2)
Investment fees and expenses yield

Net Investment INCOME ViBld . . ..« o e e e e e

Gross investment income
Investment fees and expenses

Net investment income(1)(4)(5)(7)(9)
ENAiNG 88S8tS( 1) . i
Net investment gains (losses)(1){4)(7)(8)(9)

December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions})
6.55% 6.89% 7.46%
$ 9042 $ 8502 $ 8076
3 71 % (398) $  (©17)
$178,763 $167,752  $140,288
6.86% 7.48% 7.84%
$ 1961 $ 1,903 3 1883
$ @7 8 ©6) $ (22)
$ 32406 $ 26249 $ 25086
11.64% 10.90% 11.48%
$ 516 $ 513 $ 637
$ 182 § 440 $ 578
$ 4829 $ 4680 $ 4,837
6.15% 6.40% 6.49%
$ 541 $ 554 B 543
$ 889 $ 8748 $ 8,580
9.90% 3.02% 2.66%
$ 404 & 111 B 99
$ 208 § 43 & 222
$ 5,144 $ 4,198 $ 4,096
2.99% 2.73% 4.17%
$ 153 $ 165 $ 232
$ 1 8 18 -
$ 6802 $ 5559 $ 4,244
6.38% . 8.58% 8.82%
$ 259 $ 200 $ 218
$ (149 $ (180) 3 (206
$ 49468 $ 4645 $ 3,727
8.67% 6.86% 7.40%
0.14)% 0.15)% (0.15)%
6.53% 6.71% 7.25%
$ 12,876 $ 12,038 3 11,688
(262) (266) (235)
$ 12,814 $ 11,772  $ 11,453
$239,280 $221,832 $190,658
$ 244§ (236) $ (347)

(1} Included in ending assets, investment income and investment gains (losses) is $2,139 million, $86 milion and $25 million, respectively, refated to the

consolidation of separate accounts under SOP 03-1 for the year ended December 31, 2004.

(2) Yields are based on quarterly average asset carrying values, excluding recognized and unrealized investment gains (lossas), and for vield calculation

purposes, average assets exclude collateral associated with the Company's securities lending program.

(8) Investment income from mortgage and other loans includes prepayment fees.

(4) Real estate and real estate joint venture income includes amounts classified as discontinued, operations of $54 milion, $33 million and $180 milion for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Net investrment gains (osses) include $139 milion, $420 milion and $582 milion of gains
classified as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(5) Included in investrment income from real estate and real estate joint ventures, equity securities and other limited partnership interests, cash and short-
term investments, other invested assets, and investment expanses and fees is a total of $65 million, $56 milion and $59 milion for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, related to discontinued operations pertaining to SSRM.

(6} Included in ending assets for real estate and real estate joint ventures, equity securities and other limited partnership interests, cash and short-term
investments and other invested assets is a total of $96 milion, $49 milion, $88 milion and $20 milion, respectively, pertaining to SSRM at
December 31, 2004. Included in ending assets for real estate and real estate joint ventures, equity securities and other limited partnership interests,
cash and short-term investments, and othér invested assets is a total of $3 milion, $14 million, $67 milion and $8 million, respectively, pertaining to
SSRM at December 31, 2003. Included In ending assets for real estate and real estate joint ventures, equity securities and other limited partnership
interasts, cash and short-term investments, and other invested assets is a total of $19 milion, $7 million, $54 milion and $5 milion, respectively,

pertaining to SSRM at December 31, 2002,
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(7) Investment income from other invested assets includes scheduled periodic settlement payments on derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting under SFAS 133 of $51 million, $84 milion and $32 milion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These amounts are excluded from net investment gains (losses).

{8) included in net investrment gains flosses) from other invested assets is $O million, $10 mifion and ${(4) million for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively, related to discontinued operations pertaining to SSRM.

Q) Included in net investment gains (losses) from other invested assets for the year ended December 31, 2004, is a charge of $26 million related to a
funds withheld reinsurance treaty that was converted to a coinsurance agreement. This amount is classified in net investment income in the
consolidated statements of income.

Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities

Fixed maturities consist principally of publicly traded and privately placed debt securities, and represented 73.9% and 75.7% of total cash and
invested assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Based on estimated fair value, public fixed maturities represented $154,456 million, or
87.4%, and $147,489 million, or 87.9%, of total fixed maturities at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Based on estimated fair value, private
fixed maturities represented $22,307 million, or 12.6%, and $20,263 million, or 12.1%, of total fixed maturities at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

In cases where guoted market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using present value or valuation techniques. The fair value estimates
are made at a specific point in time, based on available market information and judgments about the financial instruments, including estimates of the
timing and amounts of expected future cash flows and the credit standing of the issuer or counterparty. Factors considered in estimating fair value
include: coupon rate, maturity, estimated duration, call provisions, sinking fund requirements, credit rating, industry sector of the issuer and quoted
market prices of comparable securities.

- The Securities Valuation Office of the NAIC evaluates the fixed maturity investments of insurers for regulatory reporting purposes and assigns
securities to one of six investment categories called “NAIC designations.” The NAIC ratings are similar to the rating agency designations of the Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations for marketable bonds. NAIC ratings 1 and 2 include bonds generally considered investment grade (rated
"Baa3" or higher by Moody's Investors Services ("Moody's”), or rated "BBB-" or higher by Standard & Poor's ("S&P”) by such rating organizations. NAIC
ratings 3 through 6 include bonds generally considered below investment grade (rated “Bal" or lower by Moody's, or rated "BB+" or lower by S&P).

The following table presents the Company’s total fixed maturities by Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations designation and the
equivalent ratings of the NAIC, as well as the percentage, based on estimated fair value, that each dasignation is comprised of at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
: Cost or Cost or
NAIC Rating Agency Amortized Estimated % of Amortized Estimated % of
Rating Designation(1} Cost Fair Value Total Cost Fair Value Total
{Dollars in millions)
1 AB/RBIA . $113,071  $118,779 67.2% $106,779 $112,333 67.0%
2 Baa .o S 42,165 456,311 258 39,006 42,057 250
3 Ba 6,807 7,500 4.2 7,388 8,011 4.8
4 B e 4,097 4,414 ° 2.5 3,678 3814 2.3
5 Cazandlower ... ... 329 366 0.2 630 629 04
6 Inorneardefaull ... o 101 90 0.1 341 371 0.2
Subtotal. .. 166,670 176,460 938.8 167,722 167,215 Q9.7
Redeemable prefermed stock. .\ .o v i 326 303 0.2 611 537 03
Total fixed maturifies. ... ... o $166,996 $178,763 100.0% $158,333 F167,752 100.0%

(1) Amounts presented are based on rating agency designations. Comparisons between NAIC ratings and rating agency designations are published by
the NAIC. The rating agency designations are based on availability and the lower of the applicable ratings between Moody's and S&P. The current
period ratings are presented so that the consolidated rating is equal to the Moody's or S&P rating, whichever is more conservative. If no rating is
available from a rating agency, then the MetLife rating will be used.

The following table shows the amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturities, by contractual matunty dates (excluding scheduled sinking
funds) at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Cost or Cost or
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
{Dollars in millions)
DUB N 0N YA OF 1888 v vt ittt e e e e $ 6751 $ 6845 $ 5381 § 5542
Due after one year through five Years . ... ..o e e 29,850 31,168 30,893 32,431
Due after five years through ten years ... ..o e 33,543 36,008 29,342 31,830
DUB AftEr 18N YBAIS vttt e e 41,960 45,832 39,011 43,064
U oAl . 112,104 120,853 104,627 112,867
Mortgage-backed, commercial mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securtties . . 54,566 55,607 53,085 54,348
U Al .. e 166,670 176,460 157,722 167,215
Redeemable preferred StoCK .. ... oo 326 303 611 537
Total fixed matuities ... $166,996 $176,763  B158,333 $167,752

Bonds not due at a single maturity date have 'been included in the above table in the year of final contractual maturity. Actual maturities may differ
from contractual maturities due to the exercise of prepayment options.
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The following tables set forth the cost or amortized cost, gross unrealized gain and loss, and estimated fair value of the Company's fixed maturities
by sector and equity securities, as well as the percentage of the total fixed maturities holdings that each sector represents and the percentage of the total
equity securities at:

December 31, 2004

Asl‘::srii:;d iossu_nrea!ifg_d_ Estimated % of
Cost Gain Loss - Fair Value Total
{Dollars mions)—— -
U.S. treasury/agency SBCUMIBS . . ...t e ettt e e e $ 16534 $ 1314 $22 $ 17,826 10.1%
State and political subdivision securities . . . ... e 3,683 220 4 3,899 2.2
U.S. COMporate SECUMES . ...\ttt e e et e 58,022 3,870 172 81,720 34.9
Foreign govemment SECUMHIES . . ..t e e i e e 7,637 974 26 8,585 49
FOreign Comporate SEOUMIES . . oo oottt et ettt e e e 25,341 2,582 85 27,838 157
Residential mortgage-backed securities .. ... oo 31,683 812 65 32,230 18.2
Commercial morigage-backed securities ... i 12,099 440 38 12,501 7.1
ASSEt-DaCKEd 'SECUMIES . .« v e e 10,784 125 33 10,876 6.1
Other fixed maturity SECUMIES . ...ttt e e e e s 887 131 33 985 0.6
Ot DONAS et e e 166,670 10,268 478 176,460 99.8
Redeemable prefemed StOCKS oot e i e e 326 — 23 303 - 02
Total fixed MatUrties . .. ..o e $166,996 $10,268 $501 $176,763 100.0%
Common stocks ........... e e $ 1,412 & 244 $ 5 $ 1651 75.5%
Nonredeemable prefermred SIOCKS ... e 501 39 3 537 245
Total equity securties(1) . .......oiiiii U $ 1913 $ 283 § 8 $ 2188 100.0%
December 31; 2003
Amonived  _GrossUnrealized  piuioied o of
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value Total
(Dollars in millions)
U.S. treasuny/agency SECUMIES . ...ttt e e $ 14,707 B 1264 $ 26 $ 150945 9.5%
State and political subdiVISION SECUMIES . . ..o oot e e 3,165 209 15 3,349 2.0
U.S. COMOrate SECUMTES oottt s e e e e e 56,757 3,886 252 60,391 36.0
Foreign govemnment SECUMTIES . . .. ..ottt e 7,789 1,003 28 8,764 52
Foreign Corporate SECUMIIES . . ... v vt e e e s 21,727 2,194 79 23,842 14.2
Residential mortgage-backed securities ... oo 30,836 720 102 31,4564 188
Commercial mongage-backed SeCurties .. ... vt 10,523 530 22 11,031 6.6
Asset-backed SECUMIES . ... vt v e e e 11,736 187 60 11,863 7.1
Other fixed maturity seCUties .. ... i 492 167 83 578 0.3
Total DONAS e 157,722 10,160 667 167,215 99.7
Redeemable prefermed StOCKS . ..o i e e e 611 2 76 537 03
Total fixed MAaUMIES .« .. e $158,333 $10,162 $743 $167,752  100.0%
COMMON STOCKS . v et e et et e et e e e e e e $ 6183 $ 327 $ 2 $ 938 B92%
Nonredeemable preferred StoCKS ... i e e 602 48 4 646 40.8
Total equUity SECUMES(T) « vt e e e e e $ 1295 $ 375 ¢ 6 $ 1,584 100.0%

(1) Equity securties primarily consist of investments in common and preferred stocks and mutual fund interests. Such securities include private equity
securities with an estimated fair value of $332 million and $432 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Fixed Maturity and Equity Security Impairment.  The Company classifies all of its fixed maturities and equity securities as available-for-sale and
marks them to market through other comprehensive income, except for non-marketable private equities, which are generally carried at cost. Al securities
with gross unrealized losses at the consolidated balance sheet date are subjected to the Company's process for identifying other-than-temporary
impairments. The Company writes down to fair value securities that it deems to be other-than-temporarily impaired in the period the securities are
deemed to be so impaired. The assessment of whether such impairment has occurred is based on management's case-by-case evaluation of the
undertying reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors, as described in “Summary of Critical Accounting
Estimates — Investments,” about the security issuer and uses its best judgment in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the
security and in assessing the prospects for near-term recovery. Inherent in management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates
abaut the operations of the issuer and its future eamings potential. )

The Company's review of its fixed maturities and equity securities for impairments includes an analysis of the total gross unrealized losses by three
categories of securities: () securities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by less than 20%;
(i) securtties where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by 20% or more for less than six months; and
(if) securities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by 20% or more for six months or greater. While all
of these securities are monitored for potential impairment, the Company's experience indicates that the first two categories do net present as great a risk
of impaiment, and often, fair values recover over time as the factors that caused the declines improve.

The Company records impairments as investment losses and adjusts the cost basis of the fixed maturities and equity securities accordingly. The
Company does not change the revised cost basis for subsequent recoveries in value. Impairments of fixed maturities and equity securities were
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$102 million, $355 milion and $1,375 miliion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company's three largest
impairments totaled $53 million, $125 million and $352 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The circum-
stances that gave rise to these impaiments were either financial restructurings or bankruptey filings. During the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, the Company sold or disposed of fixed maturities and equity securities at a loss that had a fair value of $29,53¢ million, $21,884 milion and
$10,128 milion, respectively. Gross losses excluding impairments for fixed maturities and equity securities were $516 million, $500 million and $979
million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The following table presents the cost or amortized Cost, gross unrealized losses and number of securities for fixed maturities and eguity securities
where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by less than 20%, or 20% or more for:

December 31, 2004

Cost or Gross Unrealized Number of
Amortized Cost Losses Securities
Less than 20% or Less than 20% or Less than 20% or
20% more 20% more 20% more
. {Dollars in millions})

Less than SiX MONthS. . ..o e $27178 $ 79 $246 $18 3,188 117
Six months or greater but less thannine months. . ... 8,477 9 111 2 687 5
Nine months or greater but less than twelve months. . .................. 1,505 19 33 4 206 5
Twelve months or greater ... . .o - 2798 19 _ 80 15 395 7
TOtal L L $40,048  $126 $4_70_ @ 4,476 E@

U

The gross unrealized loss related to the Company's fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, 2004 was $509 milion. These securities
are concentrated by sector in United States corporates (34%); foreign corporates (17%); and residential mortgage-backed {13%); and are concentrated
by industry in mortgage-backed (20%); finance (10%); and services (10%) (calculated as a percentage of gross unrealized loss). Non-investment grade
securities represent 4% of the $39,6865 miillion fair value and 12% of the $508 miflion gross unrealized loss.

The Company did not hold any single fixed maturity or equity security with a gross unrealized loss at Decembber 31, 2004 ‘greater than $10 million.

’ Corporafe Fixed Maturities.  The table below shows the major industry types that comprise the corporate fixed maturity holdings at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Estimated % of Estimated % of

Fair Value Total Fair Value Tota}
_ (Dollars in millions) ’
OGUSHAL . oo TR $35785  G9.9% $34474  40.9%
Uy e e e 10,800 12.1 0,855 11.8
L1077 O AP 14,481 18.2 14,287 17.0
L0110 27,838 31.1 23,842 28.3
Other .o e e e 654 0.7 1,675 20

Total oo e $89,558 100.0% $B84,233 100.0%

(1) Includes U.S. dollar-denominated debt obligations of foreign obligors, and other foreign investments.

The Company maintains a diversified corporate fixed maturity portfolio across industries and issuers. The portfolio does not have exposure t© any

" single issuer in excess of 1% of the total invested assets of the portfolio. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company's combined holdings in the ten

issuers to which it had the greatest exposure totaled $4,967 million and $4,683 million, respectively, both of which was less than 3% of the Company’s
total invested assets at such date. The exposure o the largest single issuer of corporate fixed maturities held at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was
$631 million and $518 milion, respectively.

The Company has hedged all of its material exposure to foreign currency risk in its invested assets. In the Company's intemational insurance
operations, both its assets and liabilities are generally denominated in locat currencies.

Structured Securties.  The following table shows the types of structured securities the Company held at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Estimated % of Estimated % of
Fair Value Total Fair Value Total

{Doflars in millions)

Residential morigage-backed securities: - .
Pass-through securities . .......covvtiinein.n. e $12,478 22.4% $15,427 28.4%

Collateralized montgage oblgations . . ... .t e 19,752 355 16,027 295

Total residential mortgage-backed securities ... 32,230 579 31,454 57.9

Commercial mortgage-backed SeCUMtES . . ...t e 12,501 22.5 11,031 20.3

Asset-backed securities . ... L P 10,876 19.6 11,863 21.8
TOtBl L $55,607 100.0% $54,348  100.0%

The majority of the residential mortgage-backed sacurities are guarantead or otherwise supported by the Federal National Mortgage Association, the

" Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or the Govemment National Mortgage Association. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $31,768 milion and

$31,210 million, respectively, or 98.6% and 89.2%, respectively, of the residential mortigage-backed securities were rated Aaa/AAA by Moody's or S&P.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, $8,750 milion and $6,992 million, respectively, or 70.0% and 63.4%, respectively, of the commercial mortgage-
backed securities were rated Aaa/AAA by Moody's or S&P.

The Company's asset-backed securities are diversified both by sector and by issuer. Credit card and home equity loan securttizations, accounting

for about 26% and 32% of the total holdings, respectively, constitute the largest exposures in the Company's asset-backed securities portfolio.
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Approximately $6,775 milion and $7,528 million, or 62.3% and 63.5%, of total asset-backed securtties were rated Aaa/AAA by Moody's or S&P at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Structured Investment Transactions,  The Company participates in structured investment transactions, primarily asset securitizations and structured
notes. These transactions enhance the Company’s total retum of the investment portfolio principally by generating management feg income on asset
securitizations and by providing equity-based returns on debt securities through structured notes and similar instruments.

The Company sponsors financial asset securitizations of high yield debt securfties, investment grade bonds and structured finance securities and
also is the collateral manager and a beneficial interest holder in such transactions. As the collateral manager, the Company eams management fees on
the outstanding securitized asset balance, which are recorded in income as eamed. When the Company transfers assets to a bankruptcy-remote SPE
and surrenders control over the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a sale. Gains or losses on securitizations are determined with
reference to the carrying amount of the financial assets transferred, which is allocated 1o the assets sold and the beneficial interests retained based on
relative fair values at the date of transfer. Beneficial interests in securitizations are caried at fair value in fixed maturities. Income on these beneficial
interests is recognized using the prospective method. The SPEs used to securitize assets are nct consolidated by the Company because the Company
has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of these entities. Prior to the adoption of FIN 48(r), such SPEs were not consolidated because they
did not meet the criteria for consolidation under previous accounting guidance. '

The Company purchases or receives beneficial interests in SPEs, which generally acquire financial assets, including corporate equities, debt
securifies and purchased options. The Company has not guaranteed the performance, liquidity or obligations of the SPEs and the Company's exposure
to loss is limited to its camrying value ¢f the beneficial interests in the SPEs. The Company uses the beneficial interests as part of its risk management
strategy, including asset-liability management. These SPEs are not consolidated by the Company because the Company has determined that it is not the
primary beneficiary of these entities based on the framework provided in FIN 46(r). Prior to the adoption of FIN 46(r), such SPEs were not consclidated
because they did not meet the criteria for consolidation under previous accounting guidance. These beneficial interests are generally structured notes,
which are included in fixed maturities, and their income is recognized using the retrospective interest method or the level yield method, as appropriate.
Impaimments of these beneficial interests are included in net investment gains (osses).

The Company has sponsored four securitizations with a total of approximately $1,341 million and $1,431 milion in financial assets as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company's beneficial interests in these SPEs as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related
investment income for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were insignificant.

The Company invests In structured notes and similar type instruments, which generally provide equity-based returns on debt securities. The carrying
value of such investments was approximately $666 milion and $880 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The related net investment
income recognized was $45 milion, $78 milion and $1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Mortgage and Other Loans .

The Company's mortgage and other loans are principally collateralized by commercial, agricuitural and residential properties, as well as automobiles.
Mortgage and other loans comprised 13.6% and 11.8% of the Company's total cash and invested assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The camying value of mortgage and other loans is stated at original cost net of repayments, amortization of premiums, accretion of discounts
and valuation allowances. The foliowing table shows the camying value of the Company's mortgage and other loans by type at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Carrying % of Carrying % of

Value Total Value Total

(Dollars in millions)

Commercial MOMGAgE I0BMNS « .« .o\t h vt ettt et e e e $24,990  77.1% $20300 < 77.3%
Agricultural MOMgagE 108N . . ..ttt e 5,907 18.2 5,327 203

T (08NS . o e e 1,508 4.7 622 2.4
Tt e $32,406 100.0% 326,249 100.0%
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Commercial Mortgage Loans.  The Company diversifies its commercial mortgage loans by both geographic region and property type. The following
table presents the distribution across geographic regions and property types for commercial mortgage loans at: ’

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Total Value Total
{Dollars in millions)
Region
SOUtN AaNTIC . o e e $ 5,606 228% § 4,978 24.5%
P e e e e 8,075 24.3 5,005 24.7
Middle AHaNTC . . .o e 4,057 18.2 3,455 17.0
East North Gentral .. ... T 2,550 10.2 1,821 8.0
New England .. ... e e e 1,412 56 1,278 6.3
West SOUth Cantral . ... e e 2,024 8.1 1,370 6.8
MOUNEIN . . 778 3.1 740 3.6
West North Central .. .. e e 667 2.7 619 3.0
International ......... i e P 1,364 55 838 4.1
Fast SoUth Central . ... o 268 1.1 . 198 1.0
(107" PPN e} 0.4 — —
o) - PPN $24,990 100.0%  $20,300 100.0%
Property Type '
O oo e i $11,500 46.0% $ 9170 45.2%
Retall . . s e 5,688 22.8 5,006 24.7
ADAMIIEIS . e 3,264 13.1 2,832 13.9
NAUSIN] .« . e e 2,489 10.0 1,911 9.4
Ot . Lo e . 1,245 . 50 1,032 51
(12 = 784 3.1 349 1.7
Total. e e $24,990 100.0% 320,300 100.0%
The following table presents the scheduled maturities for the Company's commercial mortgage loans at:
) December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Total Value Total
(Dollars in millions)
DUB N ONE YBEN O 888 v ottt vttt e e et e e e e e e $ 93¢ 37% 3 708 3.5%
Due after one year throUgh WO YBaIS . .o . oottt et e e e e 1,800 7.2 1,065 5.2
Dug after two vears through three years................ e 2,372 9.5 2,020 10.0
Due after three years throUugh f0Ur YEaIS . . . vttt e e e et 2,943 11.8 2362 - 118
Due after four years through Ve Years .. ... .o e 4,578 18.3 3,167 15.6
Due afterfiveyears ............... e [ 12,358 49.5 10,988 54.1
o= $24,900 100.0% $20,300 100.0%

Restructured, Potentially Delinquent, Delinquent or Under Foreclosure.  The Company monitors its mortgage loan investments on an ongoing basis,
including reviewing loans that are restructured, potentially delinguent, delinguent or under foreclosure. These loan classifications are consistent with those
used in industry practice. -

The Company defines restructured mortgage loans as loans in which the Company, for economic or legal reasons related to the debtor's financial
difficulties, grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider. The Company defines potentially delinguent loans as loans that, in
management's opinion, have a high probability of becoming delinquent. The Company defines delinquent mortgage loans, consistent with industry
practice, as loans in which two or more interest or principal payments are past due. The Company defines mortgage loans under foreclosure as loans in
which foreclosure proceedings have formally commenced.

The Company raviews all mortgage loans on an ongoing basis. These reviews may include an analysis of the property financial statements and rent
roll, lease rollover analysis, property inspections, market analysis and tenant creditworthiness.

The Company records valuation allowances for loans that it deems impaired. The Company's valuation allowances are established both on a loan
specific basis for those loans where a property or market specffic risk has been identified that could likely result in a future default, as well as for pools of
loans with similar high risk characteristics where a property specific or market risk has not been identified. Such valuation allowances are established for
the excess carmying value of the mortgage loan over the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's original effective interest
rate, the value of the loan's collateral or the loan's market value if the loan is being sold. The Company records valuation allowances as investment losses.
The Company records subsequent adjustments to allowances as investment gains (losses}.
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The following table presents the amortized cost and valuation allowance for commercial mortgage loans distributed by loan classification at;

December 31, 2004

December 31, 2003

% of %
Amortized % of Valuation Amortoized Amontized % of Valuation Amortoi;ed
Cost(1) Total  Allowance Cost Cost(1) Total  Allowance Cost
{Dollars in millions)
Performming ..o $25077  99.8% $128 0.5% $20,315 99.5% $ 95 0.5%
Restructured. .. ... iuen e 556 0.2 18 32.7% 77 0.4 23 29.9%
Potentially delinquent. . ............. . .. 7 — 3 42 .9% 30 01 4 13.3%
Delinquent orunder foreclosure . .. ... — — — — — —
Total $25,139 - 100.0% $149 0.6% $20,422 100.0% $122. 0.6%

(1) Amortized cost is equal to camrying value before valuation allowances.

The following table presents the changes in valuation allowances for commercial mortgage loans for the:

Balance, beginning Of Year « . ... e e

" Years Ended December 31,

2t L 10 )4 1= PP

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
$122 $119 3134
53 51 38
26) (48) (63)
$149  $122  $119

Agricultural Mortgage Loans.  The Company diversifies its agricultural mortgage loans by both geographic region and product type.
Approximately 69% of the $5,807 milion of agricultural mortgage loans outstanding at December 31, 2004 were subject to rate resets prior to
maturity. A substantial portion of these loans generally is successfully renegotiated and remain outstanding to maturity. The process and policies for
monitaring the agricuttural mertgage loans and classifying them by performance status are generally the same as those for the commercial toans.
The following table presents the amortized cost and valuation allowances for agricultural mertgage loans distributed by loan classification at:

December 31, 2004

December 31, 2003

% of

% of

Amortized % of Valuation = Amortized Amortized % of Valuation = Amortized
Cost(t) Total  Allowance Cost Cost{1) Total  Allowance Cost
{Dollars in millions})

PErfOMING . ...t e et $5803 98.1% $ 4 01%  $5162 96.7% $— 0.0%
Restructured . ..o e 67 1.1 - 0.0% 111 2.1 1 0.9%
Potentially delinquent. . ... 4 0.1 1 25.0% 24 05 3 12.5%
Delinquent or under foreclosure . . ... .o v i 40 0.7 2 5.0% 30 0.7 2 5.6%
TOWl o $5914 1000% $ 7 01%  $5333 100.0% $ 6 0.1%

{1). Amortized cost is equal to carrying value before valuation allowances.

The following table presents the changes in valuation allowances for agricultural mortgage loans for the:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

{Dollars in millions)
Balance, DegINNiNg Of YOar « .ottt e e e s %6 36 $9
AL OIS .« o e e e 5 1 3
DU ONS .« . e e e e e e e _ @ _m B
BalaNCe, BN Of VAN . .ottt e s 7 36 %6

Other Loans.  Other loans consist of residential mortgages and auto loans. .

Real Estate and Real Estate Joint Ventures

The Company's real estate and real estate joint venture investments consist of commercial properties located primarily throughout the United States.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the camying value of the Company's real estate, real estate joint ventures and real estate held-for-sale was
$4,233 million and $4,677 milion, respectively, or 1.8%, and 2.1% of total cash and invested assets, respectively. The camying value of real estate is
stated at depreciated cost nét of impairments and valuation allowances. The carrying value of real estate joint ventures is stated at the Company's equity
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in the real estate joint ventures net of impaiments and valuation aliowances. The following table presents the camying value of the Company's real estate,
real estate joint ventures, real estate held-for-sale and real estate acquired upon foreclosure at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
.. Carrying % of Canying % of
Type . - _Value Total Value Total
- {Dollars in millions)
Real estate held-for-investment ... .. e $3,592 84.9% $3,193 68.2%
Real estate joint ventures held-for-investment .. ......... ... ... ... L. T, 386 9.1 312 8.7
Foreclosed real estate held-for-Investment ... ... ot i 3 01 2 01
3,981 941 3507 . 750
Real estate held-for-sale . ... v 251 5.9 1,169 25.0
Foreclosed real estate held-for-sale. . ... ... o 1 — 1 —
_ 252 59 1,170 25.0
Total real estate, real estate joint ventures and real estate held-for-sale ............... e $4,233 100.0% $4,677 100.0%

The Company's carrying value of real estate held-for-sale; including real estate acquired upon foreclosure of commercial and agricuitural mortgage
loans, in the amounts of $252 million and $1,170 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are net of valuation allowances of $4 million and
$12 million, respectively, and net of prior year impairments of $6 million and $151 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company records real estate acquired upon foreclosure of commercial and agricuttural mortgage loans at the lower of estimated fair value or the
carrying value of the morigage loan at the date of foreclosure. )

Certain of the Company's investments in real estate joint ventures meet the definition of a VIE under FIN 48(1). See "“— Investments — Variable
Interest Entities.”

. Other Limited Partnership Interests :

The carrying value of ofher imited partnership interests (which primarily represent ownership interests in pooled investment funds that make private
equity investments in companies in the United States and overseas) was $2,907 million and $2,600 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The Company uses the equity method of accounting for investments in limited partnership interests in which it has more than a minor
interest, has influence over the partnership’s operating and financial policies and does not have a controliing interest. The Company uses the cost
method for minor interest investments and when it has virtually no influence over the partnership's operating and financial policies. The Company's
investments in other limited partnerships represented 1.2% of cash and invested assets at both December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Some of the Company's investments in other limited partnership interasts mest the definition of a VIE under FIN 48(r). See "— Investments —
Variable Interest Entities.”

. Other Invested Assets

The Company's other invested assets consist principally of leveraged leases and funds withheld at interest of $3.9 bilion at both December 31,
2004 and 2003. The leveraged leases are recorded net of non-recourse debt. The Company participates in lease transactions, which are diversified by
industry, asset type and geographic area. The Company regularly reviews residual values and writes down residuals to expected values as needed.
Funds withheld represent amounts contractually withheld by ceding companies in accordance with reinsurance agreements, For agreements written on a
modified coinsurance basis and certain agreements written on a coinsurance basis, assets supporting the reinsured policies equal to the net statutory
reserves are withheld and continue to be legally owned by the ceding company. Other invested assets also include the fair value of embedded
derivatives related to funds withheld and modified coinsurance contracts. Interest accrues to these funds withheld at rates defined by the treaty terms and
may e contractually specified or directly related to the investment portfolio. The Company's other invested assets represented 2.1% of cash and
invested assets at both December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Derivative Financial instruments

The Company uses a variety of derivatives, including swaps, forwards, future and option contracts, t© manage its various risks. Additionally, the
Company enters into income generation and replication derivative transactions as permitted by its insurance subsidiaries’ Derivatives Use Plans approved
by the applicable state insurance departments.

The table below provides a summary of the notional amount and current market or fair value of derivative ﬁnanCIaI instruments held at

’ December 31, 2004 December 31, 200@
Current Market Current Market
Notional or Fair Value Notional or Falr Value

Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets  Liabilities
(Dollars in millions)

IMHErESE FAIE SWADS + . o e vttt ettt e e e e e e $126817 $284 $ 22 P 9944 $189 $ 36
Interestrate lOOrS . ... oo 3,325 38 — 325 5 -
IMEIESE A1 CaDS vttt e e s 7,045 12 - 9,345 29 -
Financial fulures ...t - 611 - . 13 1,348 8 30
FOraign CUTENCY SWADS . .« oottt et e e e e e 8214 150 1,302 4,710 ] 796
Foreign cumency forwards . . ..o 1,013 5 57 695 5 32
OBlONS o 825 37 "7 - 5065 7 -
Financial forwards .. ... 326 - - 1,310 2 3
Credit defaull SWapS .. v e e 1,897 11 5 615 2 1
SYnthetic GICS ..t e 5,869 — - 5177 — —
OMNBT e 450 1 1 - - =

Ot o $42,256  $538 $1,407 $39,534 $256 $898
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Variable Interest Entities

The Company has adopted the provisions of FIN 46 and FIN 46(r). See " — Application of Recent Accounting Pronouncements.” The adoption of
FIN 46(} required the Company to consolidate certain VIEs for which it is the primary beneficiary. The following table presents the total assets of and
maximum exposure to loss relating to VIEs for which the Company has concluded that (i) it is the primary beneficiary and which are consolidated in the
Company's consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2004, and {ii) It holds significant variable interests but it is not the primary beneficiary and
which have not been consolidated:

December 31, 2004

Primary Not Primary
Beneficiary Beneficiary
Maximum Maximum
Total Exposure Total Exposure
Assets(1) to Loss{2) Assets{(1) to Loss(2)

{Dollars in millions})

Asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations ... o oL $ - F - $1418 $ 3
Real estate JoiNt VaNIUIES(3) . ...t e e 15 13 132 -
Other limited panmnershiDS(4) . . ..ot e e 249 191 914 146
Other structured INMVESIMENTS D) . .. ettt e e e e et e — - 856 103

Ol e e e e 3264 3204 $3,320 252

(1) The assets of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations are reflected at fair value at December 31, 2004. The assets of the
real estate joint ventures, other limited partnerships and other structured investments are reflected at the carrying amounts at which such assets
would have been reflected on the Company's balance sheet had the Company consolidated the VIE from the date of its initial investment in the entity.

{(2) The maximum exposure fo loss of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized: debt obligations is equal to the carrying amounts of retained
interests. In addition, the Company provides coliateral management services for certain of these structures for which it collects a management fee.
The maximum exposure 10 loss relating 1o real estate joint ventures, other limited partnerships and other structured investments is equal to the
carying amounts plus any unfunded commitments, reduced by amounts guaranteed by other partners.

(3) Real estate joint ventures include partnerships and other ventures, which engage in the acquisition, development, management and disposal of real
estate investments.

(4) Other limited partnerships include partnerships established for the purpose of investing in real estate funds, public and private debt and equity
securities, as well as limited partnerships established for the purpose of investing in low-income housing that qualifies for federal tax credits.

(6) Other structured investments include an offering of a collateralized fund of funds based on the securitization of a pool of private equity funds.

Securities Lending

The Company participates in a securities fending program whereby blocks of securities, which are included in investments, are loaned to third
parties, primarily major brokerage firms. The Company requires a minimum of 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities 1o be separately maintained
as collateral for the loans. Securities with a cost or amortized cost of $26,564 million and $25,121 milion and an estimated fair value of $27,974 million
and $26,387 million were on'loan under the program at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company was liable for cash collateral under
its control of $28,678 milion and $27,083 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, Security collateral on deposit from customers may not
be sold or repledged and is not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Separate Accounts

The Company had $86.8 bilion and $75.8 bilion held in its separate accounts, for which the Company generally doses not bear investment risk, as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company manages each separate account's assets in accordance with the prescribed investment
policy that applies to that specific separate account. The Company establishes separate accounts on a single client and multi-client commingled basis in
compliance with insurance laws. Effective with the adoption of SOP 03-1, on January 1, 2004, the Company reports separately, as assets and liabilities,
investments held in separate accounts and liabilities of the separate accounts If () such separate accounts are legally recognized; (i) assets supporting
the contract ligbilities are legally insulated from the Company's general account liabilities; (i) investments are directed by the contractholder; and (iv) &l
investment performance, net of contract fees and assessments, is passed through to the contractholder. The Company reports separate account assets
meeting such criteria at their fair value. Investment performance (including investment income, net investment gains (losses) and changes in unrealized
gains {losses)) and the corresponding amounts credited to contractholders of such separate accounts are offset within the same ling in the consclidated
statements of income. In connection with the adoption of SOP 03-1, separate account assets with a fair value of $1,7 bilion were reclassified to general
account investments with a corresponding transfer of separate account liabilities to future policy benefits and policyholder account balances. See
" — Applicatiory of Recent Accounting Pronouncements.”

The Company's revenues reflect fees charged to the separate accounts, including mortality charges, risk charges, policy administration fees,
investment management fees and surrender charges. Separate accounts not meeting the above criteria are combined on a ling-by-line basis with the
Company's general account assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Commitments to Fund Partnership Investments )

The Company makes commitmenits to fund partnership investments in the normal course of business. The amounts of these unfunded commit-
ments were approximately $1,324 million and $1,380 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, The Company anticipates that these
amounts will be invested in the partnerships over the next three to five years.

Mortgage Loan Commitments
The Company commits to lend funds under mortgage loan commitments. The amounts of these mortgage loan commitments were $1,189 million
and $679 milion, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Guarantees
In the course of its business, the Company has provided certain indemnities, guarantees and commitments to third parties pursuant to which it may
be required to make payments now or in the future.
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In the context of acquisition, disposition, investment and other transactions, the Company has provided indemnities and guarantees, including those
related to tax, environmental and other specific liabilities, and other indemnities and guarantees that are triggered by, among other things, breaches of
representations, warranties or covenants provided by the Company. in addition, in the normat course of business, the Company provides indemnifica-
tions to counterparties in contracts with triggers similar to the foregoing, as well as for certain other liabiliies, such as third party lawstits. These
obligations are often subject to time limitations that vary in duration, including contractual limitations and those that arise by operation of taw, such as
applicable statutes of limitation. In some cases, the maximum potential obligation under the indemnities and guarantees is subject to a contractual
fimitation ranging from less than $1 milion to $80C million, while in other cases such limitations are not specified or applicable. Since certain of these
obligations are not subject to limitations, the Company does not beheve that it is possible to determine the maximum potential amount due under these
guarantees in the future.

In addition, the Company indemnifies its directors and officers as provided in its charters and by-laws. Also, the Company indemnifies other of its
agents for fiabilities incurred as a result of their representation of the Company's interests. Since these indemnities are generally not subject to limitation
with respect to duration or amount, the Company does not believe that it is possible to determine the maximum potential amount due under these
indemnities in the future.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recorded ligbllities of $10 million with respect to indemnities provided in certain
dispositions. The approximate term for these liabilities ranges from 12 to 18 months, The maximum potential amount of future payments that MetlLife
could be required to pay is $73 million. Due to the uncertainty in assessing changes to the liabilities over the term, the liability on the balance sheet will
remain untit either expiration or settlement of the guarantes unless evidence clearly indicates that the estimates should be revised. The fair value of the
remaining indemnities, guarantees and commitments entered into during 2004 was insignificant and thus, ne liabilities were recorded. The Company's
recorded liability at December 31, 2004 and 2003 for indemnities, guarantees and commitments, excluding amounts recorded during 2004 as
described In the preceding sentences, is insignificant.

Accelerated Share Repurchase '

On December 16, 2004, the Holding Company repurchased 7,281,553 shares of its outstanding common stock at an aggregate cost of
approximately $300 million under an accelerated share repurchase agreement with a magjor bank, The bank barrowed the stock sold to the Holding
Company from third parties and is purchasing the shares in the open market ovar the next few months to retum to the lenders. The Holding Company will
gither pay or receive an amount based on the actual amount paid by the bank to purchase the shares. The final purchase price is expected to be
determined in April 2005, and will be settled in either cash or Holding Company stock at the Holding Company’s option. The Holding Company recorded
the initial repurchase of shares as treasury stock and will record any amount paid or received as an adjustment to the cost of the treasury stock.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company must effectively manage, measure and monitor the market risk associated with its invested assets and interest rate sensitive
insurance contracts. It has developed an integrated process for managing risk, which it conducts through its Corporate Risk Management Department,
Asset/Liability Management Committees (“*A/LM Committees”) and additional specialists at the business segment level. The Company has established
and implemented comprehensive policies and procedures at both the oorporate and business segment level 1o minimize the effects of potential market
volatility.

Market Risk Exposures
The Company has exposure to market risk through its insurance operations and investment activities, For purposes of this disclosure, “market risk”
is defined as the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rates.  The Company's exposure o interest rate changes results from its significant holdings of fixed maturities, as well as its interest rate
sensitive liabiities. The fixed maturities include U.S.-and foreign government bonds, securities issued by govemment agencies, corporate bonds and
mortgage-backed securities, all of which are mainly exposed to changes in medium- and long-term treasury rates. The interest rate sensitive liabilties for
purposes of this disclosure include guaranteed interest contracts and fixed annuities, which have thé same type of interest rate exposure (medium- and
long-term treasury rates) as the fixed maturities. The Company employs product design, pricing and asset/liability management strategies to reduce the
adverse effects of interest rate volatility. Product design and pricing strategies include the use of surrender charges or restrictions on withdrawals in some
products. Asset/liability management strategies include the use of derivatives, the purchase of securities structured 1o protect agairist prepayments,
prepayment restrictions and related fees on mortgage loans and consistent monitoring of the pricing of the Company's products in order to better match
the duration of the assets and the liabilities they support.

Equity prices.  The Company’s investments in equity securities expose it to changes In equity prices, as do certain liabilities which involve long term
guarantess on equity performance. it manages this risk on an integrated basis with other risks through its asset/liability management strategies. The
Company also manages equity price risk through industry and issuer diversification, assst allocation techniques and the use of derivatives.

Foreign currency exchange rates.  The Company's exposure to fiuctuations in foreign currency exchange rates against the U.S. dollar results from
its holdings in non-U.S. dollar denominated fixed maturity securities, equity securities and liabilities, as well as through its investments in foreign
subsidiaries, The principal currencies which create foreign currency exchange rate risk in the Company's investment portfolios are the Euro, Canadian
dollars and British pounds. The Company mitigates the majority of its fixed maturities' foreign currency exchange rate risk through the utilization of foreign
currency swaps and forward contracts. Through its investments in foreign subsidiaries, the Company is primarily exposed to the Mexican peso, South
Korean won, Chilean peso and Taiwanese dollar. The Company has matched substantially all of its foreign currency fiabilties in its foreign subsidiaries
with their respective foreign currency assets, thereby reducing its risk to currency exchange rate fluctuation. In some counties, local surplus is held
entirely or in part in U.S. dollar assets which further minimizes exposure to exchange rate fluctuation risk. Selectively, the Company uses U.S. dollar
assets to support certain long duration foreign currency liabilities.

Risk Management . .

Corporate risk management. Metlife has established several financial and non-financial senior management committees as part of its risk
management process. These committees manage capital and risk positions, approve asset/liability management strategies and establish appropriate
corporate business standards.
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MetLife also has a separate Corporate Risk Management Departient, which is responsible for risk throughout MetLife and reports to MetLife's Chief
Financial Officer. The Corporate Risk Management Department’s primary responsibilities consist of:

« implementing a board of directors-approved comporate risk framework, which outlines the Company's approach for managing risk on an
enterprise-wide basis;
developing policies and procedures for managing, measuring and monitoring those risks identified in the corporate risk framework;
establishing appropriate corporate risk tolerance levels;
deploying capital on an economic capital basis; and
reporting on a pericdic basis to the Govemance Committee of the Holding Company's Board of Directors and various financial and non-financial
senior management committees.

- Asset/liability management. The Company actively manages its assets using an approach that balances quality, diversification, asset/liability
matching, liquidity and investrent retum. The goals of the investment process are to optimize, net of income taxes, risk-adjusted investment income and
risk-adjusted total retum while ensuring that the assets and liabilities are managed on a cash flow and duration basis. The asset/liability management
process is the shared responsibility of the Portfolio Management Unit, the Business Finance Asset/Liability Management Unit, and the operating business
segments under the supervision of the various product line specific A/LM Committees. The A/LM Committees’ duties include reviewing and approving
target portfolios on a periodic basis, establishing investrnent guidelines and limits and providing oversignt of the asset/liability management process. The
portfolio managers and asseét sector specialists, who have responsibility on & day-to-day basis for risk management of their respective investing activities,
implement the goals and objectives establisned by the A/LM Committees.

Each of Mellife’s business segments has an asset/liability officer who works with portfolio managers in the investment department to monitor
investment, product pricing, hedge strategy and liability management issues. MetLife establishes target asset portfolios for each major insurance product,
which represent the investment strategies used to profitably fund its liabilities within acceptable levels of risk. These strategies include objectives for
effective duration, yield curve sensitivity, convexity, fiquidity, asset sector concentration and credit quality.

To manage interest rate risk, the Company performs perlodic projections of asset and llabiiity cash flows to evaluate the potential sensitivity of its
securities investments and liabilities to interest rate movements. These projections involve evaluating the potential gain or loss on most of the Company's
in-force business under various increasing and decreasing interest rate environments. New York State Department of Insurance regulations require that
MetLife perform some of these analyses annually as part of MetLife's review of the sufficiency of its regulatory reserves, Far several of its legal entities, the
Company maintaing segmented operating and surpius asset portfolios for the purpose of asset/liability management and the allocation of investment
income to product lines. For each segment, invested assets greater than or equal to the GAAP liabilities less the DAC asset and any non-invested assets
allocated to the segment are maintained, with any excess swept 1o the surplus segment. The operating segments may reflect differences in legal entity,
statutory line of business and any product market characteristic which may drive a distinct investment strategy with respect to duration, liquidity or credit
guality of the invested assets. Certain smaller entities make use of unsegmented general accounts for which the investment strategy reflects the
aggregate characteristics of liabilities in those entities. The Company measures relative sensitivities of the value of its assets and liabiiities to changes in
key assumptions utilizing Company models. These models reflect specific product characteristics and include assumptions based on current and
anticipated experience regarding lapse, mortality and interest crediting rates. In addition, these models include asset cash flow projections reflecting
interest payments, sinking fund payments, principal payments, bond calls, martgage prepayments and defaults, B

Common industry metrics, such as duration and convexity, are also used to measure the relative sensitivity of assets and liability values to changes
in interest rates. In computing the duration of liabilities, consideration is given to all policyholder guarantees and to how the Company intends to set
indeterminate policy elements such as interest credits or dividends. Each operating assst segment has a duration constraint based on the liability duration
and the investment objectives of that portfolic. Where a liability cash flow may exceed the maturity of available assets, as is the case with certain
retirement and non-medical health products, the Company may support such liabilities with equity investments or curve mismatch strategies.

Hedging activities.  MetLife's risk management strategies incorporate the use of various interest rate derivatives to adjust the overall duration and
cash flow profile of its invested asset portfolios to better match the duration and cash flow profile of its liabilities to reduce interest rate risk. Such
instruments include financial futures, financial forwards, interest rate and credit default swaps, caps, floors and options, MetLife also uses foreign
currency swaps and foreign currency forwards to hedge its foreign currency denominated fixed income investrments. in 2004, MetLife initiated a hedging
strategy for certain equity price risks within its liabilities using equity futures and options.

Economic Capital. - Beginning in 2003, the Company changed its methodology of allocating capital to its business segments from Risk-Based
Capital ("RBC") to Economic Capital. Prior to 2003, the Company's business segments’ allocated equity was primarily based on RBC, an intemally
developed formula based on applying a muttiple to the NAIC Statutory Risk-Based Capital and included certain adjustments in accordance with GAAP.
Economic Capital is an intemally developed risk capitat model, the purpose of which is to measure the risk in the business and to provide a basis upon
which capital is deployed. The Economic Capital model accounts for the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in MetLife's businesses. This is
in contrast to the standardized regulatory RBC formula, which is not as refined in its risk calculations with respect to the nuances of the Company’s
businesses.

This change in mathodology is being applied prospectively. This change has and will continue to impact the level of net investment income and nat
income of each of the Company’s business segments. A portion of net investment income is credited to the segments based on the level of allocated
eguity. This change in methodology of allocating equity does not impact the Company’s consolidated net investment income or net income.

Risk Measurement; Sensitivity Analysis

The Company measuras market risk related to its holdings of invested assets and other financial instruments, Including certain market risk sensitive
insurance contracts, based on changes in interest rates, equity prices and currency exchange rates, utilizing a sensitivity analysis. This analysis estimates
the potential changes in fair value, cash flows and eamings based on a hypothetical 10% change (increase or decrease) in interest rates, equity prices
and currency exchange rates. The Company believes that a 10% change (increase or decrease) in these market rates and prices is reasonably possible
in the near-term. In performing this analysis, the Company used market rates at December 31, 2004 to re-price its invested asssts and other financial
instrurments. The sensilivity analysis separately calculated each of Metlife's market risk exposures (interest rate, equity price and foreign cumency
exchange rate) related to its non-trading invested assets and other financial instruments. The Company does not maintain a trading portfolio.
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The sensitivity analysis performed included the market risk sensitive holdings described above. The Company modeled the impact of changes in
market rates and prices on the fair values of its-invested assets, eamings and cash fows as follows:

Fair values. The Company bases its potential change in fair values on an immediate change (increase or decrease) in:

» the net present values of its interest rate sensttive exposures resulting from a 10% change (increase or decrease) in interest rates;

« the U.S. dollar equivalent balances of the Company's currency exposures due to a 10% change (increase or decrease) in curency exchange

rates; and

« the market value of its equity positions due to a 10% change (increase or decrease) in equity prices.

Earnings and cash flows.  Metlife calculates the potential change in eamings and cash flows on the change in its eamings and cash flows over a
one-year period based on an immediate 10% change (increase or decrease) in market rates and equity prices. The following factors were incorporated
into the eamings and cash flows sensitivity analyses: ‘

+ the reinvestment of fixed maturity securtties;

¢ the reinvestment of payments and prepayments of principal related to mortgage-backed securities;

s the re-estimation of prepayment rates on mortgage-backed securities for each 10% change {increase or decreass) in the interest rates; and

* the expected tumover (sales) of fixed maturities and equity securities, including the reinvestment of the resulting proceeds.

The sensitivity analysis is an estimate and should not be viewed as predictive of the Company's future financial performance. The Company cannot
assure that its actual losses in any particular year will not exceed the amounts indicated in the table below. Limitations related 1o this sensitivity analysis
include:

* the market risk information is limited by the assumptions and parameters established in creating the related sensitivity analysis, including the

impact of prepayment rates on mortgages;

e for derivatives which qualify as hedges, the impact on reported eamings may be materially different from the change in market values;

* the analysis excludes other significant real estate holdings and liabilities pursuant to insurance contracts; and

« the model assumes that the composition of assets and liabilities remains unchanged throughout the vear.

Accordingly, the Company uses such models as tools and not substitutes for the experience and judgment of its corporate risk and asset/liability
management personnel.

Based on its analysis of the impact of a 10% change (increase or decrease} in market rates and prices, MetLife has determined that such a change
could have a material adverse effect on the fair value of its interest rate sensitive invested assets. The equity and foreign currency portfolios do not expose
the Company to material market risk.

The table below illustrates the potential loss in fair value of the Company's interest rate sensitive financial instruments at December 31, 2004. In
addition, the potential loss with respect to the fair value of currency exchange rates and the Company's equity price sensitive positions at December 31,
2004 is set forth in the table below.

The potential loss in fair value for each market risk exposure of the Company’s portfolio, all of which is non-trading, as of the pericd indicated was:

‘ ’ Dscember 31, 2004
(Dollars in millions)

ISt TS 8K . o vttt et e e e $3,650
EQUItY PICE MK ..ot e e e $ 167
FOraIgN CUIMENCY EXCNENGE T MO . oottt e e et e e e e e e e e v & 601
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The table below provides additional detail regarding the potential loss in fair value of the Company's interest sensitive financial instruments at

December 31, 2004 by type of asset or liability.
As of December 31, 2004

Assuming a

10% increase
Notional in the yield
Amount Fair Value curve

{Dollars in miliions)

Assets
T 207 111117 O S 3 —  $176,763 $(3,651)
Morgage 108NS ON 188l ESIATE . . ...t — 33,902 (634)
Uy SETUNIES . L L it e e e — 2,188 -
SOt VSIS L L ot e et e e e e - 2,663 §]
Cash and cash equivalents .. ... o P — 4,061 —
POlICY I0BNS e e e — 8,899 {290
Mortgage 1oan COMMIMENES . ..o vt e e e e e v D 1,189 4 5)
Ot BBt L\ o it e ettt $(4,474)
Liabilities
Policyholder @CCOUNt DAIANCES . .\ttt e e e e e e e $ - $ 69,688 $ 450
IS o T 1= — 1,445 -
LONG-EIM bt Lot e e e — 7,818 264
Shares subject 10 Mandatory redemPtion . .. .o\ttt e e $ - & 365 $ 1
Payable under secunities 10aned transactionS . . . . .. it e — 28,678 —
o=t = 1173 R O O $ 715
Other
Derivative instruments (designated hedges or otherwise)
72T 1 $22792 $  (884) $ 95
U TS o ottt e e e e e 611 - (13 8
) Vo [ U P Lo 1,339 (52) —
1011 1= e 17,514 80 6
172 e n < OO $ 109
Net Change ... ... 5(3,650)

In addition to the analysis discussed above, the Company also performs an analysis of the sensitivity of its insurance and interest sensitive liabilities
to changes in interest rates as a part of its asset liability management program. As of December 31, 2004, a hypothetical instantanecus 10% decrease in
interest rates applied to the Company's insurance and interest sensitive liabilities and their associated operating asset portfolios would reduce the fair
value of equity by $227 million. Management does not expect that this sensitivity would produce a liquidity strain on the Company.

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of MetLife, Inc. and subsidiaries is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting. In
fulfiling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of control
procedures. The objectives of intermal control include providing management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded
property to permit the preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Financial management has documented and evaluated the effectiveness of the intemal control of the Company as of Decermber 31, 2004 pertaining
to financial reporting in accordance with the criteria establishied in “Intemal Control — Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

In the opinion of management, MetLife, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited the cansolidated financial statements and consolidated
financial statement schedules included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004. The Report of the Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm on their audit of management’s assessment of the Company's intemal control over financial reporting and thelr audit
on the effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting is included at page F-2. The Report of the Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm on their audit of the consolidated financial statements is included at page F-3.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of MetLife, inc.
New York, New York

We have audited management's assessment, included in management's annual report on internal control over financial reporting that MetLife, Inc.
and subsidiaries (the "Company”) maintained effective intemal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on ¢riteria established in
intemal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company's manage-
ment is responsibie for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys
intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective intemal control over financiat reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is & process designed by, or under the supenvision of, the company's principal executive and
principal financial officers, or:persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company's board of directors, management, and other personnel
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautnorized acquiisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of coliusion or improper managemert override of
contrals, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
effectiveness of the intermal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Intermnal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Crganizations of the Treadway Commission. Alsc in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective intemal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 of the Company and our report dated March 4, 2005 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company's change of its accounting method for certain non-
traditional long duration cortracts and separate accounts as required by new accounting guidance which became effective on January 1, 2004.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE Lip

New York, New York
March 4, 2005
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of MetLife, Inc.
New York, New York ’ ’

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MetLife, Inc. and subsidiaries {the “Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenial misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audtt also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial staterment presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MetLife, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations. and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, the Company changed its method of accounting for certain non-traditional long duration contracts and separate accounts,
and for embedded derivatives in certain insurance products as required by new accounting guidance which became effective on January 1, 2004 and
QOctober 1, 2003, respectively, and recorded the impact as cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the
Company's intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in Intemal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoering Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 4, 2005 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over financial reporting and an ungualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE P

New York, New York
March 4, 2005
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
{Dollars in millions, except share and per share data)

2004 2003
ASSETS
Investments:
Fixed maturities availlable-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost: $166, 996 and $158,333, respechvely) ............... $176,763%  $167,752
Equity securities, at fair value {(cost: $1,913 and $1,215, raspectively) ..ot e 2,188 1,684
Mortgage and other Ioans ..................................................... N 32,406 26,249
POlCY J08NS .« .« e e 8,899 8,749
Real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment . ... ... 3,981 3,607
Real estate held-for-Sale 1. ... o 262 1,170
Other lImited parnershiD IErES S . . . Lo e 2,807 2,600
eI (= Y1310 T £ PP 2,663 1,809
ONer INVESIEA B8BTS .. ..ottt e 4,926 4,637
Lo = 01V Y 7= PP 234,985 218,057
Cash and cash equIVaIENtS . . .. . ...ttt e e e . 4,051 3,683
Accrued investmentincome .. ... o il e e e e e e e 2,338 2,186
Premiums and Other reCaIVaDIES . . . oo o 6,696 7,024
Deferred policy aCaUISHION COStS . . oo 14,336 12,943
Assets of subsidianes NEld-TOr-Sale . .. .. e 379 183
OBl B8SEIS o ittt e S 7,254 7,008
Separate a0COUNt BSSEIS . ..\ttt e e S e e e . 86,769 75,756
]2 ==Y P $356,808  $326,841
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities: -
FUtUrE oLy DENEIS . ottt e e e $100,189  $ 94,148
Policyholder account balances . ...t et P N 83,570 75,901
Other policynalderfunds ... AP 6,984 6,343
Policyholder dividends payable . . .. ..o o 1,071 1,049
Policyholder dividend obligation. .. ... . e 2,243 2,130
Short-term debt ... e e [ 1,445 3,642
OG- QO . 7,412 5,703
Shares subject to mandatory redemption .......... . ... ... e 278 277
Liabiliies of subsidiaries held-Tor-8ale . . ... .. . i e 240 70
Curmrent INCoME taXaS PAYADIE . . . ...t e 421 651
Defermed INComME 18XES DAYADIE . . . o\ttt e 2,473 2,397
Payables under securities 1oaned fransactions . ... ... i e 28,678 27,083
Other Iabilies . . . e 12,241 10,542
Separate aCCoUNt HaIHIES . . . vt e 86,769 75,756
Total fiabillties . . ..o e e 333,984 305,692
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, par value:$0.01 per share; 200,000,000 shares authorized, noneissued ... — -
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 3,000,000,000 shares authorized; 786,766,664 shares issued at
December 31, 2004 and 2003; 732,487,999 shares outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 757,186,137 shares
outstanding at December 371, 2008 . . it 8 8
AAGItional DAIA-IN CADAl . ..t e e e e e e 15,037 14,991
RetaiNed BaMINGS . . 6,608 4,193
Treasury stock, at cost; 54,278,665 shares at December 31, 2004 and 29,580,527 shares at December 31, 2003. .. (1,785) (835)
Accumulated other COmpPrenenSIvE INCOME . .« .. .t e i eas D 2,956 2,792
Total StOCKNOIAErS BOUILY . . . oo ot e 22,824 21,149
Total liabilities and StOCKNOIABIS' BAUIRY . ...ttt e e $356,808 $326,841
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
' ' (Doliars in millions, except per share data)

2004 2003 2002
REVENUES )
o =001 0 P $22,316  $20673 $19,077
Universal life and investment-type product policy 188S . . ... o 2,900 2,496 2,147
Net investmentincome .........c.ovoiias. e e 12,418 11,538 11,183
OB TBVBNUSS © .+ o o ettt e e et e e e e e e e e e e 1,198 1,199 1,166
Net investment gains (losses) ... ... A O 182 (682) {(882)
Totalrevenues . ... e e e e 38,014 35,325 32,681
EXPENSES _ ‘
Policyholder benefits and Claims . . ..o oo e 22,662 20,665 19,373
Interest credited to policyholder acCouNnt DaIANCES . . .. oottt 2,998 3,035 2,950
Pollcynolder AMIdENAS . ...t 1,814 1,975 1,942
L@ g o T T PP L e 7,761 7,091 8,813
Oal BB GBS ottt ettt e e 35,235 32,766 31,078

Income from continuing operations before provision for NCOME taxes . . ... oo vt 3,779 2,559 1,603
PrOVISION fOr INCOMIE 18XES . .+ v vttt et et e et et e e e e e P 1,071 660 490
INCome from CoONtINUING ODEIEHIONS . . . o ot e e e e e e e e e 2,708 1,809 1,113
income from discontinued operations, net of INCOME taXES. . ... o 136 344 492
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting ... ... . e 2,844 2,243 1,605
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of INCOMEB 8XES &+ .. vt e e (80) (26) -
AN oo 4= P $2758 § 2217 $ 1,605
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders per share

BaSIC ottt . % 361 8 255 & 1.88

19 1= R S R $ 359 251 $ 1.53
Net income available to common shareholders per share

Basic ,...... e S e et P e e $ 368 $ 208 F 228

Diluted ... e e e e e e e e e $ 365 $ 204§ 220
Cash diVIGENAS PO SNAIE . . ot et e e e e $ 046 $ 023 & 021

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income {Loss)

. Net Foreign Minimum

Additional Treasury Unrealized Currency Pension

Common Paid-In Retained Stock Investment Translation Liability

Stock Capitat Earnings at Cost  Gains {Losses) Adjustment Adjustment Total
Balance at January 1, 2002 <. ..ot 88 314,966 $1,349 $(1,934) 31,879 $(160) $ (48) $16,082
Treasury stock transactions, net ...l 2 471) (469)
Dividends on-common stock. . ... (147) (147)
Comprehensive income {loss):

Netincome ... 1,605 1,605

Cther comprehensive income (loss):
" Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments,
netof incCometaxes ......cvvviiininnnnon.. 60) (80)
Unrealized investment gains (losses), net of related
offsets, reclassification adjustments and income

BB vttty e 463 463
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........... ‘ (69) ) (69)
Other comprehensive income (10ss) ............... 334

Comprehensive income (108S) . .o v vve v . ‘ 1,839
Balance at December 31, 2002 ... ..o v, 8 14,968 2,807 (2,405) 2,282 (229) (46) 17385
Treasury stock transactions, net ...t 20 . (92) : (72)
Issuance of shares — by subsidiary . .................. 24 24
Dividends oncommon stock. . ... (175) (175)
Settlement of common stock purchase contracts ... .. . 656) 1,662 1,006
Premium on conversion of company-obligated mandatorily

redesmable securities of a subsidiary trust ........... (21) (21)
Comprehensive income {loss): . . ’

Netincome ........... e 2,217 - 2,217

Other comprehensive income {(0ss):
Unrealized gains {losses) on derivative instruments,
net of INCOME tEXES .. vv i i iiieeiee s (250) (250)
Unrealized investiment gains (iosses), net of related
offsets, reclassification adjustments and income

BBXES e 940 940
Foreign currency translation adjustments . .......... 177 177
Minimum pension liability adjustment .............. ; (82) (82)
Other comprehensive income (Ioss) ......ovoveent 785

Comprehensive iNComMe (I0SS) ..ot vvv vt eennenn., . ) 3,002
Balance at December 31, 2003 ... ... oviiii it 8 14,091 4,183 (835) 2,972 52) (128) 21,149
Treasury stock transactions, net ...........o i 46 (950) (904)
Dividends on common stock. ... (343) (343)
Comprehensive income (0ss):

Netincome ........ e e 2,758 2,758

Cther comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains {losses) on derivative instruments,
netofincometaxes ... (62) 62)
Unrealized Investment gains (losses), net of related
offsets, reclassification adjustments and income

723 6) (6}
Cumulative effect of a change In accounting, net of
ncometaxes. ...oovve i e 90 g0
Foreign currency transiation adjustments ........... ) 144 144
Minimum pension liability adjustment .............. 2) (2)
Other comprehensive income (108S) ..o oot 164
Comprehensive incoms (oss) ... ..... T 2,922

$16037 $8,608 §(1,785)  $2,994 $ 92 $(130) $22,.824

g |

Bélamce at December 31,2004 .................. e

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MetLife, inc.




et |

" METLIFE, INC.
. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS -

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

{Dollars in millions)

Cash flows from operating activities
gl = NSO
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expenses........ e e e e s
Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts associated with investments, net
(Gains) losses from sales of investments and businesses, net
Interest credited to other policyholder account balances
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees
Change in premiums and other reCaivabIES . . oottt e e e
- Change in deferred policy acquisition costs, net
Change in insurance-related liabilities
Change in income taxes payable
Change In Other SSEIS. . ..o v e
Change in other fiabilities

Cash flows from investing activities
Sales, maturities and repayments of:
Fixed maturities
CEquity SECURtIES . Lo
Mortgage and Other [0aNS ... . ottt e e e s
Real estate and real estate joint ventures
Other limited partnership interests
Purchases of:
Fixed maturities
By SOOI . o o oottt e e e
Mortgage and Other I0aNS . .. ..o e
Real estate and real estate joint ventures
Other fimited partnership INBrestS .. ... .. . i e
Net change in-shomt-temm INVESIMENtS . .. .o e e e e
Purchase of businesses, net of cash received of $0, $27 and $71, respectively
Proceeds from Sales Of DUSINESSES . ...ttt e e e e
Net change in payable under securities loaned transactions
Net change in other invested assets

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MetLife, Inc.

2004 2003 2002
$ 2758 B 2217 $ 1605
441 478 498
(110) (180) (519)
.(302) 152 317
2,098 3,035 2,950
(2,900) 2,496).  (2,147)
- 78 (334) (473)
(1,331) (1,332) (741)-
5,330 4,687 3,104
(135) 241 479
(178) @74y (1,071)
1,682 1,131 104
(265) (195) 74
8,066 7,030 4,180
87,451 76,200 64,602
1,686. 612 2,703
3,054 3,483 2,638
1,214 866 831
799 331 213
(94,275). . (101,582)  (85,155)
2,178) 232)  (1,260)
(9,931) (4,975)  (3,208)
619) (289) (148)
(894) {643) (616)
(740) 08 477)
(7) 18 (879)

20 5 -
1,595 9,221 5,201
(958) (629) (451)
(147) (222) (309)
$(13,015) $ (17,688) $(16,213)
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)
. FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002
. (Dollars in millions)

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from financing activities
Policyholder account balances:
o1t PP $36416 $ 37,023 $31,081
Ao = L T (29,333) - (28,667) (25/151)
Net change in Shom-tam Qebt. ..o e i e e e (2,178) 2,481 806
Long-term debtissued ... IR e - 1,825 934 1,008
LONG-tEmN debt rEPAIH . vttt i i e e . (119) (763) 211
TreasUNY SIOCK ACAUINE &\t vttt ittt et et e et ettt e e e e - (1,000) @n {471
Settlement of commMEN SIOCK PUIChASE COMTACTS « v v vt ettt et e v e et et aireees - 1,006 -
Proceeds from offering of common stock by subsidiary, net. ... o i i - 317 -
DIVIdENdS 0N COmMMON STOCK . ..ottt i i e e e e e e (343) (175) (147)
StOCK OpHONS BXEICISEA . o ettt it et e e e e 51 1 —
Cther, net.......... et e et e e e e e et e 3 8 . (12)
Net cash provided by financing activities ....... .. .. oo 5322 12,088 ©,883
Change in cash and cash'véquivalents ...................... . e e e h 373 1,410 (5,180)
Cash and cash equivalents; beginning Of Year ... ...t i e i b e 3,733 2,823 7473
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year . ......... ... ... ...t ... $ 4106 '3 3733 $°2.323
Cash and cash equivalents, subsidiaries held-for-sale, beginning .
ofyear............ e e e e $ 50 8 54 $ &0
- Cash and cash equivalents, subsidiaries held-for-sale, endof year ............................ . 8 55 &% 50 $ 54
Cash and cash equivalents, from continuing operations, beginning ’ ‘
oY= $ 3683 $ 2260 § 7,423
Cash and cash equivalents, from continuing operations,end ofyear............................ $ 4051 $ 3683 $ 2,269
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: ‘ '
- Net cash paid during the year for: _
Interest .......... b e e e e e $ 362 § 468 $ 400
OB BB .ttt et e ettt e e e e $ 977 & 702 $ 193
Non-cash transactions during the year: ‘ . _ ‘
Purchase money mortgage onreal estate sale ........ ... il $ 2 8 196 & 954
Metlife Capital Trust | ransactions . ..o o i e e e i i S $ - % 1037 & -~
Realestateacquiredin‘satisfaotionofdebt.,....................4..........,.....: ............. 8 7 3 14 % 30
Transfer from funds withheld at interest to fixed maturities .......... ..o $ 606 B - 8 —
Contribution of equity SECUMtISs 10 MtLIfe FOUNTAION - . .+ v e et e e e $ 5 § - - % —~
Business acquisitions:
ASSEIS ACOUINET . . .0 sttt e e et s s 3 20 % 153  § 2,701
a8 PBI . o et e e (7) ©) (850)
Liabiffies aSSUME .« ..\ttt R $ 183 $ 144 $ 175

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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.METLIFE, INC.
J . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Accounting Policies

Business
"MetLife” or the “Company” refers to MetlLife, Inc., a Delaware corporation incorporated in 1899 (the “Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries,
including Metropolitan Life insurance Company (“Metropolitan Life"), MetLife is a leading provider of insurance and other financial services to individual
and institutional customers. The Company offers life insurance, annuities, automobile and homeowner's insurance and retail banking services to
individuals, as well as group insurance, reinsurance and ratirement & savings products and services to comorations and other institutions.

Basis'of Presentation .
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of (i) the Holding Company and its subsidiaries; (i) partnerships and joint
ventures in which the Company has control; and (i) variable interest entities {"VIEs") for which the Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary.
- Closed block asssts, liabilities, revenues and expenses are combined on a ling-by-line basis with the assets, liabilties, revenues and expenses outside
the closed block based on the nature of the particular item (see Note 6). Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the general account for 2004
include amounts related to certain separate accounts previously reported in separate account assets and liabilities. See "— Application of Recent
Accounting Pronouncements.” Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
) The Company uses the equity method of accounting for investreants in equity securities in which it has more than a 20% interest and for real estate
joint ventures and other limited partnership interests in which it has more than a minor equity interest or more than mincr influence over the partnership’s
operations, but does not have a controliing interest and is not the primary beneficiary. The Company uses the cost method of accounting for real estate
joint ventures and other limited partnership interests in which it has a minor equity investment and virtually no influence over the partnership's operations.
Minority interest refated to consolidated entities included in other habmnes was $1,145 million and $950 miflion at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.
-Certain amounts in the prior years' consolldated financial statements have been rectass;f ed to conform w4th the 2004 presentatron

8ummary of Critical Accountmg Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accountrng principles generale accepted in the United States of Amenca ("GAAP“) requires
management to adopt accounting policies and make estimates and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
The most critical estimates include those used-in dete:mmmg (i) investment impaiments; (i} the fair value of investments in the absence of quoted market
values; (i} application of the consolidation rules to certain investments; (v) the fair value of and accountlng for derivatives; (v) the capitalization and
amortization of defermed policy acquisition costs ("DAC"), including value of business acquired ("VOBA"); (vi) the liability for future policyholder benefits;
{vil) the liability for fitigation and regulatory matters; and {viil} accounting for reinsurance transactions and employee benefit plans. In applying these policies,
management makes subjective and complex judgments that frequently require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain, Many. of these
policies, estimates and related judgments are common in the insurance and financlal services industries; others are specific to the Company's
businesses and operations. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

lnvestments

The Companys pnncnpal investments, are in ﬁxed maturities, mortgage and other loans and real estate all of whrch are exposed to three primary
sources of investment risk: credit, interest rate and market valuation, The financial statement risks are those assoclated with the recognition of
impaimments and income, as well as the determination of fair values. The assessment of whether impairments have occurred is based on management's
case-by-case evaluation of the undertying, reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors about the security issuer
and uses its best Judgment in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair vallie of the security and in assessing the prospects for near-term
recovery. Inherent in management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the issuer and its future earnings
potential. Considerations used by the Company in the impaimment evaluation process-include, but are not limited to: {i) the length of time and the extent to
which the market value has been below cost or amortized cost; (i) the potential for impairments of securities when the issuer is experiencing significant
financial difficulties; (i) the potential for impaiments in an entire industry sector or sub-sector; (iv) the potential for impairments in certain econcmically
depressed geographic locations; (v) the potential for impaimments of securities where the issuer, series of issuers or industry has suffered a catastrophic
type of loss or has exhausted natural resources; (vi) the Company’s ability and -intent to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to allow for the
recovery of its value to an amount equal to or greater than cost or amortized cost; (vif) unfavorable changes in-forecasted cash flows on asset-backed
securities; and (vili) other subjective factors, including concentrations and information obtained from regulators and rating agencies. In addition, the
eamings on certain investments are dependent upon market conditions, which could result in prépayments and changes in amounts to be eamed due o
.changing interest rates or equity markets. The determination of fair values in the absence of quoted market values is based on: () .valuation
methodologies; (i) securities the Company deems to be comparable; and (i) assumptions deemed appropriate given the circumstances.. The use of
different methodologies and assumptions may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. In addition, the Company enters into certain
structured investment transactions, real estate joint ventures and limited partnerships for which the Company ‘may be deemed to be the primary
beneficiary and, therefore, may be required to consolidate such investments. The accounting rules for the determination of the primary beneficiary are
complex and require evaluation of the contractual rights and obligations asscciated with each party involved in the-entity, an estimate of the entity's
expected losses and expected residual retums and the allocation of such estimates to each party.

Dervatives

The.Company enters into freestanding derivative transactions primarily to manage the risk associated with variability in cash flows or changes in fair

. values related to the Company's financial assets and lighilities. The Company also uses derivative instruments to hedge its currency exposure associated
with net investments in certain foreign operations. The Company also purchases investment securities, issues certain insurance policies and engages in
certain-reinsurance contracts that have embedded derivatives. The associated financial statement risk is the volatility in net income which can result from
(i) changes in fair value of derivatives not qualifying as accounting hedges; (i) ineffectiveness of designated hedges; and (i) counterparty default. In
addition, there is a risk that embedded derivatives requiring bifurcation are not identified and reported at fair value in the consolidated financial statements.
Accounting for derivatives is complex, as evidenced by significant authoritative interpretations of the primary accounting standards which continue to
evolve, as well as the significant judgments and estimates involved in determining fair value in the absence of quoted market values. These estimates are
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METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

based on valuation methodologies and assumptions deemed appropriate in the circumstances. Such assumptions include estimated volatility and
interest rates used in the détermination of fair value where quoted market values are not available. The use of different assumptions may have a material
effect on the estimated fair. value amounts. '

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs -

The Company incurs significant costs in connection with acquiring new and renewal insurance business. These costs, which vary with and are
primarily related to the production of that business, are deferred. The recovery of such costs is dependent upon the future profitability of the related
business, The amount of future profit is dependent principally on investment retums In excess of the amounts credited to policynolders, mortality,
morbidity, persistency, interest crediting rates, expenses to administer the business, creditworthiness of reinsurance counterparties and certain economic
variables, such as inflation. Of these' factors, the Company anticipates that investment retums are most fikely to impact the rate of amortization of such
costs. The aforementioned factors enter into management's estimates of gross margins and profits, which generally are used to amortize such costs,
Revisions to estimates resuit in changes to the amounts expensed in the reporting period in which the revisions are made and could result in the
impaiment of the asset and a charge to income if estimated future gross margins and profits are less than amounts deferred. In addition, the Company
utilizes the reversion 1o the mean assumption, a common industry practice, in its determination of the amortization of DAC, including VOBA. This practice
assumes that the expectation for fong-term appreciation in equity markets Is not changed by minor short-term market fluctuations, but that it does change
when large interim deviations have occurred.

Liability for-Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses

The Company establishes liabilities for amounts payable under insurance policies, including traditional life insurance, traditional annuities and non-
medical health insurance. :Generally, amounts are payable over an extended period of time and fiabilties are established based on methods and
underlying assumptions in accordance with GAAP and applicable actuarial standards. Principal assumptwons used in the establisnment of liabilities for
future policy benefits are mortality, morbidity, exoenses, persistency, investment retums and inflation.

The Company also establishes liabilities for unpaid claims and claim expenses for property and casualty claim insurance which represent the amount
estimated for claims that have been reported but not settled and claims incurred but not reported. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated based upon
the Company's historical experience and other actuarial assumptions that consider the effects of current developments, anticipated trends and risk
management programs, reduced for anticipated salvage and subrogation.

‘Differences between actual experience and the assumptions used in pricing these pohcxes and in the establishment of liabilities resutt in variances in
profit and could result in losses. The effects of changes in such estimated reserves are Included in the results of operations in the pericd in which the
changes occur. '

Reinsurance

The Company enters into reinsurance transactions as both a provider and a purchaser of reinsurance. Accounting for reinsurance requires extensive
use of assumptions and estimates, particularly related to the future performance of the underlying business and the potential impact of counterparty credit
risks. The Company pericdically reviews actual and anticipated experience compared to the aforementioned assumptions used to establish assets and
liabilities relating to cedediand assumed reinsurance and evaluates the financial strength of counterparties to its reinsurance agreements using criteria
similar'to that evaluated infthe security impairment process discussed previously. Addlt;onally, for each of its reinsurance contracts, the Company must
determine if the contract provides indemnification against loss or liabllity relating to insurance risk, In accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The Company must review all contractual features, particularly those that may limit the amount of insurance risk to which the reinsurer is subject or
features that delay the timely reimbursement of claims. If the Company determines that a reinsurance contract does not expose the reinsurer to a
reascnable possibility of a significant loss from insurance risk, the Company records the contract using the deposit method of accounting.

Litigation ) .

The Company is a party to a number of legal actions and regulatory investigations. Given the inherent unpredictability of these matters, it is difficutt to
estimate the impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position: Liabilities are established when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the
. amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities related to certain lawsuits, including the Company's asbestos-related liability, are especially
difficult to estimate due 1o the limitation of available data and uncertainty regarding numerous variables used to determine amounts recorded. The data
and variables that impact the assumptions used to estimate the Company's asbestos-related llability include the number of future claims, the cost o
resolve claims, the disease mix and severity of disease, the jurisdiction of claims filed, tort reform efforts and the impact of any possible future adverse
verdicts and their amounts. On a quarterly and annuat basis the Company reviews relevant information with respect to liabilities for fitigation, regulatory
investigations'and litigation-related contingencies to be reflected in the Company's consolidated financial statements. The review includes senior legal
and financial personnel. It:is possible that an adverse outcome in‘certain of the Company's litigation and regulatory investigations, including asbestos-
related cases, or the use of different assumptions in the determination of amounts recorded could have a matertal effect upon the Company's
consolidated net income or cash flows in particular guarterly or annual periods.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering employees who meet specified eligibility requirements. The
reported expense and lialility associated with these plans reguires an extensive use of assumptions which include the discount rate, expected retum on
plan assets and rate of future compensation increases as determined by the Company. Management determines these assumptions based upon
- currently available market and industry data, historical performance of the plan and its assets, and consuftation with an independent consuiting actuarial
fim. These assumptions used by the Company may differ materialty from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower
withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of the pamcwpams These dlﬁerences may have a significant effect on the Company's consclidated
financial statements and quuxdlty -
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METLIFE,:INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies
Investments

The Company's fixed maturity and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at thelr estimated fair value. Unrealized
investment gains and losses on securities are recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive income or (0ss, net of policyholder related
amounts and deferred income taxes. The cost of fixed maturity and equity securities is adjusted for impairments in value deemed to be otner-than-
temporary in the period that determination is made. These adjustments are recorded as investment fosses. The assessment of whether such impairment
has occurred is based on management's case-by-case evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide
range. of factors, as described in “"Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates-investments,” about the. security issuer and uses its best judgment in
evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the security and in assessing the prospects for near-term recovery. Inherent in
management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the issuer and its future eamings potential.

The Company's review of iis fixed maturities and equity securities for impairments also includes an analysis of the total gross unrealized losses by
three categories of securities: (i) securities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by less than 20%, (i)
securiies where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by 20% or more for less than six months; and
(i) securities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by 20% or more for six months or greater.

Investment gains and losses on sales of securities are determined on a specific identification basis. All security transactions are recorded on a trade
date basis. Amortization of premium and accretion of discount on fixed maturity securities is recorded using the effective interest method.

Mortgage loans on real estate are stated at amortized cost, net of valuation allowances. Valuation allowances are recorded when it is probable that,
based upon current information and events, the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due under the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Such valuation allowances are established for the excess carmrying value of the mortgage loan over the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate, the value of the loan’s coliateral or the loan's market value if the loan is being sold. The Company
also establishes allowances for foan loss when a loss contingency exists for pools of loans with similar characteristics based on property types and loan
to value risk factors, A loss contingency exists when the likslihood that a future event will occur is probable based on past events, Changes in valuation
afowances are included in net investment gains and losses. Interest income eamed on impaired loans is accrued on the principal amount of the foan
based on the loan’s contractual Interast rate. However, interest ceases to be accrued for ioans. on which interest is generally more than 60 days past due
and/or where the collection of interest is not considered probable: Cash receipts on impaired loans are recorded as a reduction of the recorded
investment.

Real astate held-for-investment, including related improvements, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset (typically 20 to 55 years). Once the Company identifies a property that is expected to be sold
within cne year and commences a firm plan for marketing the property, the Company, if applicable, classifies the property as held-for-sale and reports the
related net investment income and any resulting investment gains and losses as discontinued operations. Real estate held-for-sale is stated at the lower
of depreciated cost or fair value less expected disposition costs, Real estate is not depreciated while it is classified as held-for-sale. Cost of real estate
held-for-investment is adjusted for impairment whenever everits or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be
recoverable. Impaired real estate is written down to estimated fair value with the mpanrment loss being included in net investment gains and losses.
Impairment losses are based upon the estimated fair value of real estate, which is generally computed using the present value of expected future cash
flows from the real estate discounted at a rate commensurate with the underlying risks. Real estate acquired upon foreclosure of commercial and
agricultural mortgage loans is recorded at the lower of estimated fair value -or the camying value of the mortgage loan at the date of foreclosure.

Policy loans are stated at unpaid principal balances.

Short-term investments are stated at amortized cost, which approxsmates fair va!ue

Other invested assets consist principally of leveraged leases and funds withheld at interest. The leveraged leases are recorded net of non-recourse
debt, The Company participates in lease transactions which are diversified by industry, asset type and geographic area. Tne Company regularly reviews
residual values and impairs residuals to expected values as needed. Funds withheld represent amounts contractually withheld by ceding companies in
accordance with reinsurance agreements. For agreesments wiitten on a modified coinsurance basis and certain agreements wiitten on & coinsurance
basis, assets supporting the reinsurad policies and equal 1o the net statutory reserves are withheld and continug to be legally owned by the ceding
companies, Other invested assets also includes the fair value of embedded derivatives related to funds withheld and modified coinsurance contracts.
The Company recognizes interest on funds withheld in accordance with the treaty terms as investrment income is eamed on the asssts supporting the
reinsured policies.

The Company participates in structured investment transections, primarily asset securitizations and structured notes. These transactions enhance
the Company's total retum cf the investment portfolio principally by generating management fee income on asset securitizations and by providing equity-
pased retums on debt securities through structured notes and simitar instruments.

The Company sponsors financial asset securitizations of high vield debt securities, investment grade bonds and structured finance securities and
also is the collateral manager and a beneficial interest holder in such transactions. As the collateral manager, the Company eams management fees on
the outstanding securitized asset baiance, which are recorded in income as earned. When the Company transfers assets to a bankruptey-remote special
purpose entity ("SPE") and surrenders control over the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a sale. Gains or losses on securitizations
are determined with reference to the carrying amount of the financial assets transferred, which is allocated 1o the assets sold and the beneficial interests
retained based on relative fair values at the date of fransfer. Beneficial interests in securitizations are cared at fair value in fixed matunties. Income on
these beneficial interests is recognized using the prospective method. The SPEs used to securitize assets are not consalidated by the Company
because the Company has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of these entfities. Prior to.the adoption of FIN 46(r), such SPEs were not
consolidated because they did not mest the critenia for consolidation under previous accounting guidance.

The Company purchases or receives beneficial interests in SPEs, which generally acquire financial assets, including corporate equities, debt
securities and purchased options, The Company has not guaranteed the performance, liquidity or obligations of the SPEs and the Company's exposure
1o foss is fimited to fts carmying value of the beneficial interests in the SPEs. The Company uses the beneficial interests as part of its risk management
strategy, including asset-liability management. These SPEs are not consolidated by the Company because the Comparny has datermined that it is not the
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primary beneficiary of these entities based on the framework provided in FIN 48(). Prior to the adoption of FIN 46(), such SPEs were not congolidated
because they did not meet the criterla for consolidation under previous accounting guidance. These beneficial interests are generally structured notes,
which are included in fixed maturities, and their income is recognized using the retrospective interest method or the level vield method, as appropriate.
impaiments of these beneficial interests are included in net investment gains (osses).

Denvative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are financial instruments whose values are derived from interest rates, foreign exchange rates, or other financial indices. Dervatives may
be exchange traded or contracted in the over-the-counter market, The Company uses a variety of derivatives, including swaps, forwards, futures and
option contracts, to manage its various risks. Additionally, the Company enters into income generation and replication derivatives as permitted by iis
insurance subsidiaries’ Derivatives Use Plans approved by the applicable state insurance departments. Freestanding derivatives are camed on the
Company's consolidated balance sheet either as assets within Other invested assets or as liabilities within Other liablities at fair value as determined by
guoted market prices or through the use of pricing modets. Values can be affected by changes in interest rates, foreign exchangs ratas, financial indices,
credit spreads, market volatility, and liquidity. Values can also be affected by ¢hanges in estimates and assumptions usad In pricing models. If a derivative
does not qualify for hedge accounting pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instrurments
and Hedging Activities ("SFAS 133"), as amended, changes in the fair value of the derivative are reported in Net investment gains (Iosses), or in Interest
credited to policyholder account balances for hedges of liabilities embedded in certain variable annuity products offered by the Company.

To qualify for hedge accounting, at the inception of the hedging relationship, the Company formally documants its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedging transaction, as well as its designation of the hedge as either (i} a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or an unrecognized firrn commitment (“fair value hedge”); (i) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or
paid related to a recognized .asset or liability (“cash flow hedge™); or (iii) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation, In this documentation, the
Campany sets forth how the hedging instrument is expected to hedge the risks related to the hedged item and sets forth the method that will be used to
retrospectively and prospeciively assess the hedging Instrument's effectivenass and the method which will be used to measure ineffectiveness. A
derivative designated as a hedging instrument must be highly effective in offsetting the designated risk of the hedged item. Hedge effectiveness is
formally assessed at inception and throughout the life of the hedging relationship. The ineffective portion of the changes in fair value of the hedging
instrument is recorded in Net investment gains (losses). )

Under a fair valle hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative, along with changes in the fair value of the hedged ftem related to the risk being
hedged, are reported in Net investment gains (lossss).

in a cash flow hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in Other comprehensive income (ioss), a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, and the deferred gains or losses on the derivative are reclassified into the income statement when the Company’s eamings are
affected by the variability in cash fliows of the hedged item.

In a hedge of a net invéstment in a foreign operation, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded in Other comprenensive income (0ss).

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when: () it is detenmined that the derivative is no longer highly effective in offsetting
changes in the fair value or cash flows of a hedged item: (il the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (ifiy it is no longer probabtle that the
forecasted transaction will oceur; (V) a hedged fimn commitment no longer meets the definition of a firn commitment; or (V) the derivative is de-designated
as a hedging instrument.

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the derivative is not highty effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or
cash flows of a hedged item, the derivative continues to be carried on the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, with changes in fair value
recognized currently in Netiinvestment gains (losses). The carrying value of the hedged recognized asset or liability under a fair value hedge is no fonger
adjusted for changes in its fair value due to hedged risk, and the cumulative adjustment to its carrying value is amartized into income over the remaining
life of the hedged item. The changes in fair value of derivatives recorded in Other comprehensive income (joss) related to discontinued cash flow hedges
are amortized into income aver the remaining life of the hedging instruments,

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is probable that the forecasted transactions will not occur by the end of the specified time period
or the hedged item no Jonger meets the definition of a firm commitment, the derivative continues to be carried on the consolidated balance sheet at its fair
value, with changes in fair value recognized cumently in Net investment gains (fosses). Any asset or liability associated with a recognized firm commitment
is derecognized from the consolidated balance sheet, and recorded currently In Net investment gains (losses). Deferred gains and losses of a derivative
recorded In Other comprehensive income (loss) pursuant to the cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction are recognized immediately in Net
investment gains (losses).

in all other situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivative Is carried at its fair value on the consolidated balance sheet, with
changes in its falr value recognized in the current period as Net investment gains {losses).

The Company s also a party to firiancial instruments in which a derivative is “embedded.” For each financial instrument in which a derivative is
‘embedded, the Company assesses whether the economic characteristics of the embedded derivative are clearly and closely related to those of the host
contract, and determines whether a separate instrument with the same tems as the embedded instrument would meet the definition of a derivative, as
defined in SFAS 133. If it-is determined that the embedded derivative possesses economic characteristics that are not clearly and closely related to the
economic characteristics of the host contract, and that a separate instrument with the. same terms would qualify as a derivative instrument, the
embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a freestanding derivative, Such embedded derivatives are carried on the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value with the host contract and changes in their fair value are reported currently in Net investment gains (losses). If the
Company is unable to properly identify and measure an embedded derivative for separation from its host contract, the entire contract is carried on the
balance sheet at fair value, with changes in fair vaiue recognized in the cument period in Net investment gains (losses).
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Cash and Cash Equivalents . .
The Company considers all investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Propenty, Equipment, Leasehold Improvements and Computer Software

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, which are included in other assets, are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation Is determined using elther the straight-ine or sum-of-the-years-digits method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
estimated life for company occupied real estate property is generally 40 years. Estimated lives generally range from five to ten years for leasehold
improvements and three to five years for all other property and equipment. Accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, equipment and
leasehold improvements was $566 milion and $530 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Related depreciation and amortization
expense was $112 milion, $117 milion and $81 milion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Computer software, which is included in other assets, is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Purchased software costs, as well as intemal
and external costs incurred to develop intemal-use computer software during the application development stage, are capitalized. Such costs are
amortized generally over a four-year period using the straight-line method. Accumulated amortization of capitalized software was $552 milion and
$434 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Related amortization expense was $139 milion, $154 million and $154 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The costs of acguiring new and renewal insurance business that vary with, and are primarily related to, the production of that business are deferred.
Such costs, which consist principally of commissions, agency and policy issus expenses, are amortized with interest over the expected life of the
contract for participating traditional life, universal life and investment-type products. Generalty, DAC is amortized in proportion to the present value of
estimated gross margins or profits from investment, mortality, expense margins and surrender charges. Interest rates used to compute the present value
of estimated gross margins and profits are based on rates in effect at the inception or acquisition of the contracts.

Actual gross marging or profits can vary from management's estimatés resulting in increases or decreases in the rate of amortization. Management
utilizes the reversion to the mean assumption, a common industry practice, in its determination of the amortization of DAC. This practice assumes that the
expectation for long-term equity investment appreciation is not changed by minor short-term market fluctuations, but that it does change when large
interim daviations have occurred. Managerment periodically updates these estimates and evaluates the recoverability of DAC. When appropriate,
management revises its assumptions of the estimated gross margins or profits of these contracts, and the cumulative amortization is re-estimated and
adjusted by a cumulative charge or credit to cument operations. '

DAC for non-participating traditional life, non-medical health and annuity policies with life contingencies is amortized in proportion to anticipated
premiums. Assumptions as to anticipated premiums are made at the date of policy issuance or acquisition and are consistently applied during the lives of
the contracts. Deviations from estimated experience are included in operations when they occur. For these contracts, the amartization period is typically
the estimated life of the policy.

Policy acquisition costs related to internally replaced contracts are expensed at the date of replacement.

DAC for property and casualty insurance contracts, which is primarily comprised of commlsaons and certain underwriting expenses, are deferred
and amortized on a pro rata basis over the applicable contract term or reinsurance treaty.

VOBA, included as part of DAC, represents the present value of estimated future profits 1o be generated from existing insurance contracts in-force at
the date of acquisition and is amortized over the expected policy or contract duration in relation to the estimated gress profits or premiums from such
policies and contracts. '

Sales Inducemenis

The Company has two different types of sales inducements: () the policyholder receives a bonus whereby the policyholder's initial account batance
is increased by an amount equal to a specified percentage of the customer's deposit and (i) the policyholder receives a higher interest rate using a dollar
cost averaging method than would have been received based on the normal general account interest rate credited. The Company defers sales
inducements and amortizes them over the life of the: policy using the same methodology and assumptions used to amortize DAC.

Goodwill

The excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired ("goodwill”) is included in other assets. On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, ("SFAS 142"). In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill is not amortized but is tested
for impairment at least anntally to determine whether a writedown of the cost of the asset Is required. Impairments are recognized in operating resuits
when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period ranging from 10 to 30 years and impéirments were recognized in operating results when permanent diminution in value was deemed to
have occurred.

Changes in net goodwill were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)
Balance, beginning of year ...l e $628 $750 $609
A CQUISIIONS . e 4 3 166
AT 0SS . « o ottt e — — 8
Disposition and Other . . ..o e 1 (125) (17)
Balance, end of year .......... ... L S $633 $628 3750
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Liability for Future Policy Benefits and Folicyholder Account Bafances

Future policy benefit liabilities for participating traditional life insurance policies are equal to the aggregate of () net leve! premium reserves for death
and endowment policy benefits (calculated based upon the non-forfeiture interest rate, ranging from 3% to 11%, and mortality rates guaranteed in
calculating the cash surrender values described in such contracts), (i) the liability for terminal dividends, and (i) premium deficiency reserves, which are
established when the liabilities for future policy benefits plus the present vaiue of expected future gross prémiums are insufficient to provide for expected
future policy benefits and expenses after DAC is written off. Future policy benefits for non-participating traditional life insurance policies are equal to the
aggregate of () the present value of future benefit payments and related expenses less the present value of future net premiums and (i) premium
deficiency reserves. Assumptions as to mortality and persistency are based upon the Company's experience when the basis of the liability is established.
Interest rates for the aggregate future policy benefit liabilities range from 5.0% to 6.5%.

Participating business represented approximately 14% and 14% of the Company's life insurance in-force, and 56% and 57% of the number of life
insurance policies in-force, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Participating policies represented approximately 35% and 34%, 38% and
38%, and 39% and 41% of gross and net life insurance premiums for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
percentages indicated are calculated excluding the business of the Reinsurance segment.

Future policy benefit liabilities for individual and group traditional fixed annuities after annuitization are equal to the present value of expected future
payments and premium deficiency reserves. Intsrest rates used in establishing such liabiities range from 2% to 11%. '

Future policy benefit liabilities for non-medical health insurance are calculated using the net level premium methed and assumptions as to future
morbidity, withdrawals and interest, which provide a margin for adverse deviation. Interest rates used in establishing such liabilities range from 2% to 11%.

Future policy benefit liabilities for disabled lives are estimated using the present value of benefits method and experience assumptions as to claim
terminations, expenses and Interest. Interest rates used in establishing such liabilities range from 3% to 11%.

Liabifities for unpaid claims and claim expenses for property and casualty insurance are included in future policyholder benefits and are estimated
‘based upon the Company's historical experience and other actuarial assumptions that consider the effects of curent developments, anticipated trends
and risk management programs, reduced for anticipated salvage and subrogation. The effects of changes in such estimated liabilities are included in the
results of operations in the period in which the changes occur.

Policyholder account balances relate to investment-type contracts and universal life-type policies. Investment-type contracts principally include
traditiona! individual fixed annuities in the accumutation phase and non-variable group annuity contracts. Policyholder account balances are equal to the
policy account values, which consist of an accumulation of gross premium payments pius credited interest, ranging from 1% to 13%, less expenses,
mortality charges, and withdrawals.

The Company issues fixed and floating rate obligations under its guaranteed investment contract (“GIC") program. During the vears ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company issued $3,941 million, $4,341 million and $500 million, respectively, in such obligations. There have
been no repayments of any of the contracts. Accordingly, the GICs outstanding, which are included in policyholder account balances in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, were $8,978 and $4,862, respectively, at December 31, 2004 and 2003, Interest credited on the
contracts for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $139 million, $56 million and $12 million, respectively.

The Company establishes liabilities for minimum death and income benefit guarantees relating to certain annuity contracts and secondary and pald
up guarantees relating to certain life policies. Annuity guaranteed death benefit liabilities are determined by estimating the expected value of death
benefits in excess of the projected account balance and recognizing the excess ratably over the accumulation period based on total expected
assessments. The Comparny regularty evaluates estimates used and adjusts the additional liability balance, with a related charge or credit to benefit
axpense, if actual experience or other evidence suggests that earlier assumptions should be revised. The assumptions used in estimating the liabilities
are consistent with those used for amortizing DAC, including the rmean reversion assumption. The assumptions of investment performance and volatility
are consistent with the historical experience of the Standard & Poors 500 Index (“S&P”). The benefits used in calculating the liabilities are based on the
average benefits payable over a range of scenarios.

Guaranteed annuitization benefit liabilities are determined by estimating the expected value of the annultxzat\on benefits in excess of the projected
account balance at the date of annuitization and recognizing the excess ratably over the accumulation perfod based on total expected assessments. The
Company regularly evaluates estimates used and adjusts the additional liability balance, with a related charge or credit to beneft expense, if actual
experience cr other evidence suggests that earfier assumptions should be revised. The assumptions used for calculating such guaranteed annuitization
benefit liabilities are consistent with those used for calculating the guaranteed death benefit liabilities. In addition, the calculation of guaranteed
annuitization benefit liabilities. incorporates a percentage of the potential annuitizations that may be elected by the contractholder.

Ligbilities for universal and variable fife secondary guarantees and paid-up guarantess are determined by estimating the expected value of death
benefits payable when the account balance is projected to be zero and recognizing those benefits ratably over the accumulation period based on total
expected assessments. The Company regularly evaluates estimates used and adjusts the additional liability balances, with a related charge or credit to
benefit expense, if actual experience or other evidence suggests that earfier assumptions should be revised. The assumptions used in estimating the
secondary and paid up guarantee liabllities are consistent with those used for amortizing DAC. The assumptions of investment performance and volatility
for variable products are consistent with historical S&P experience. The benefits used in calculating the liabilities are based on the average benefits
payable over a range of scenarios.

Recognition of Insurarice Revenue and Related Benefits

Premiums related to traditional life and annuity policies with fife contingencies are recognized as revenues when due. Benefits and expenses are
provided against such revenues to recognize profits over the estimated lives of the policies. When-premiums are due over a significantly shorter period
than the period over which benefits are provided, any excess profit is deferred and recognized into operations in a constant relationship to insurance in-
force or, for annuities, the amount of expacted future policy benefit payments.

Premiums related to non-medical health and disability contracts are recognized on a pro rata basis over the applicable contract term.

Deposits related to universal life-type and investment-type products are credited to policyholder account balances. Revenues from such contracts
consist of amounts assessed against palicyholder account balances for mortality, policy administration and surrender charges and are recognized in the
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period in which services are provided. Amounts that are charged to operations include interest credited and benefit claims incurred in excess of related
policyholder account balances. _ ‘

Premiums related to property and casually contracts are recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis over the applicable contract term. Unearned
premiums are included in ather liabilities.

Other Revenues

Other revenues include advisory fees, broker/dealer commissions and fees, and administrative service fees. Such fees and commissions are
recognized in the period in which services are performed. Other revenues also include changes in account value relating to corporate-owned life
insurance ("COL"). Under certain COLI contracts, if the Company reports certain uniikely adverse results in its consolidated financial statements,
withdrawals would not be immediately available and would be subject to market value adjustment, which could result in a reduction of the account value.

Policyholder Dividends

Policyholder dividends are approved annually by the insurance subsidiaries’ boards of directors The aggregate amount of policyholder dividends is
related to actual interest, mortality, morbidity and expense experience for-the year, as well as management's judgment as to the appropnate level of
statutory surplus to be retamed by the insurance subsidiaries.

Income Taxes

The Hdiding Company and its includable fife insurance and non-life insurance subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax retumn in
accordance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1886, as amended (the “Code”). Non-includable subsidiaries file either separate tax
retums or separate consolidated tax returns. The future tax conseguences of temporary differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets
and ligbilities are measured at the balance sheet dates and are recorded as deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are
established when management assesses, based on avallable information, that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not be
realized.

Reinsurance

The Company has reinsured certain of its life insurance and property and casualty insurance contracts with other insurance companies under
various agreements. Reinsurance premiums, commissions, expense reimbursements, benefits and reserves related to reinsured long-duration contracts
are accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured contracts using assumptions consistent with those used to account for the underlying
centracts. The cost of reinsurance related to short-duration contracts is accounted for over the reinsurance contract period. Amounts due from
reinsurers, for both short- and long-duration arrangements, are estimated based upon assumptions consistent with those used in establishing the
liabilities related to the underlying reinsured contracts. Policy and contract liabilities are reported gross of reinsurance credits. DAC is reduced by amounts
recovered under reinsurance contracts. Amounts recelved from reinsurers for policy administration are reported in other revenues.

The Company assumes and retrocedes financial reinsurance contracts, which represent low mortality risk reinsurance treaties. These contracts are
reported as deposits and are included in other assets. The amount of revenue reported on these contracts represents fees and the cost of insurance
under the terms of the reinsurance agreement and is reported in other revenues.

Separate Accounts

Separate accounts are established in conformity with insurance laws and are generally not chargeable with liabilities that arise from any other
business of the Company. Separate account assets are subject to general account claims only to the extent the value of such assets exceeds the
separate account liabilities. Effective with the adoption of Statement of Posltion 03-1, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain
Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts ("SOP 03-1"}, on January 1, 2004, the Company reports separately, as assets and
fiabifities, invesiments held in separate accounts and fiabiities of the separate accounts if (i) such separate accounts are legally recognized; (i) assets
supporting the contract liabilities are legally insulated from the Company's general account liabilities; (i) investments are directed by the contractholder;
and (iv) all investment performance, net of contact fees and assessments, is passed through to the contractholder. The Company reports separate
account assets meeting such criteria at their fair value. Investment performance (including investment income, net investment gains (iosses) and changes
in unrealized gains (losses)) and the corresponding amounts credited to contractnolders of such separate accounts are offset within the same line in the
consolidated statements of income. In connection with the -adoption of SOP 03-1, separate account assets with a fair value of $1.7 billion were
reclassified to general account investments with a corresponding transfer of separate account liabilities to future policy benefits and policyholder accourt
balances. See "— Application of Recent Accounting Pronouncements.”

The Company's revenues reflect fees charged {o the separate accounts, including mortality charges, risk charges, policy administration fees,
investment management fees and surrender charges. Separate accounts not meeting the above criteria are combined on a line-by-line basis with the
Company's general account assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. '

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation plans using the prospective fair value accounting method
prescrited by SFAS No. 128, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“"SFAS .123"), as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based-
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure ("SFAS 148"). The fair value method requires compensation cost 1o be measured based on the fair value of
the equity instrument at the grant or award date.

Stock-based compensation grants prior to January 1, 2003 are accounted for using the intrinsic value method prescrbed by Accounting Principles
Board Opinion (“APB") No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ("APB 25"). Note 12 includes the pro forma disclosures required by
SFAS No. 123, as amended. The intrinsic value method represents the quoted market price or fair value of the equity award at the measurement date
less the amount, if any, the employee is required to pay. '

Stock-based compensation is accrued over the vesting period of the grant or award.
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Foreign Curmrency

Balance sheet accounts of foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates in effect at each year-end and income and expense accounts are
translated at the average rates of exchange prevailing during the year. The local currencies of foreign operations are the functional currencies unless the
local economy is highly inflationary. Translation adjustments are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or loss. Gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions are reported in eamings In the respective financial statement lings to which they relate.

Discontinued Operations

The results of operations of a component of the Company that either has been disposed of or is classified as held-for-sale are reported in
discontinued operations if the operations and cash flows of the component have been or will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company
as a result of the disposal transaction and the Company will not have any significant continuing involvement in the operations of the component after the
disposal transaction.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamings per share
includes the dilutive effect of the assumed: (i) conversion of forward purchase contracts; (i) exercise of stock options, and (i) issuance under deferred
stock compensation using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method, conversion of forward purchase contracts, exercise of the stock
options and issuance under deferred stock compensation is assumed with the proceeds used to purchase common stock at the average market price
for the period. The difference betwaen the number of shares assumed issued and number of shares assumed purchased represents the dilutive shares.

Application of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Staff Position Paper (“FSP") 108-2, Accounting and Disclosure
Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 ("AJCA”). The AJCA introduced a one-time
dividend received deduction on the repatriation of certain eamings to a U.S. taxpayer. FSP 109-2 provides companies additional time beyond the
financial reporting period of enactment to evaluate the effects of the AJCA on their plans to repatriate foreign eamings for purposes of applying SFAS 109,
Accounting for income Taxes. The Company is currently evaluating the repatriation provision of the AJCA. If the repatriation provision is implemented by
the Company, the impact on the Company’s income tax expense and deferred income tax assets and liabilitlies would be immaterial.

In Becember 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 163, Exchange of Nonmonetary Assets, an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29 ("SFAS 1583").
SFAS 153 emends prior guidance to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the
future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The provisions of SFAS 1563 are effective for nonmonstary
asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005 and shall be applied prospectively. SFAS 153 is nct expected to have a
material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements at the date of adoption,

In December 2004, FASB revised SFAS 128 to Share-Based Payment ("SFAS 123(r)"). SFAS 123(r) provides additional guidance on determining
whether certain financial instruments awarded in share-based payment transactions are liabilities, SFAS 123(r) also requires that the cost of all share-
based transactions be recorded in the financial statements. The revised pronouncement must be adopted by the Company by July 1, 2005. As all stock
options currently accounted for under APB 25 will vest prior to the effective date, implementation of SFAS 123(r) will not have a significant impact on the
GCompany's consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS 148, which provides guidance on how to apply the fair value method of accounting for
share-based payments. As permitted under SFAS 148, the Company elected to use the prospective method of accounting for stock options granted
subsequent to December 31, 2002. Options granted prior to January 1, 2003 will continue 1o be accounted for under the intrinsic value method until the
adoption of SFAS 123(r), and the pro forma impact of accounting for these options at fair value will continue to be disclosed in the consclidated financial
statements until the last of those options vest in 2005. See Note 12.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") reached further consensus on Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
impairment and fts Application to Certain Investments ("EITF 03-1"). EITF 03-1 provides accounting guidance regarding the determination of when an
impaimment of delbt and marketable equity securities and investments accounted for under the cost method should be considered other-than-temporary
and recognized in income. An EITF 03-1 consensus reached in November 2003 also requires certain quantitative and qualitative disclosures for debt and
marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity under SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities, that are impaired at the balance sheet date but for which an other-than-temporary impaimment has not been recognized. The Compary
has complied with the disclosure reguirements of EITF O3-1, which were effective December 31, 2003, The accounting guidance of EITF 03-1 relating to
the recognition of investment impaimenrt which was to be effective in the third quarter of 2004 has been delayed pending the development of additional
guidance. The Company Is actively monitoring the deliberations relating 1o this issue at the FASB and currently is unable to determine the ultimate impact
EITF 03-1 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2004, the EITF reached consensus on Issue No. 03-8, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB Statement No. 128
("EITF 03-8"). EITF 03-6 provides guidance in determining whether a security should be considered a participating security for purposes of computing
earnings per share and how eamings should be allocated to the participating security. EITF 03-8 did not have an impact on the Company's eamings per
share calculations or amounts. '

In March 2004, the EITF reached consensus on Issue No. 03-16, Accounting for Investments in Limited Liability Companies ("EITF 03-16").
EITF 03-16 provides guidance regarding whether a limited liability company should be viewed as similar to & corporation or similar to a partnership for
purposes of determining whether a noncontroling investment should be accounted for using the cost methed or the equity method of accounting.
EITF 03-16 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted SOP 03-1, as interpreted by Technical Practices Aids issued by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. SOP 03-1 provides guidance on i) the classification and valuation of long-duration contract liabllities; (i) the accounting for sales
inducements; and (i} separate account presentation and valuation. In June 2004, the FASB released FSP No. 97-1, Sitvations in Which
Paragraphs 17(b) and 20 of FASB Statement No. 87, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for
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Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments, Permit or Require Accrual of an Uneamed Revenue Liabiity ("FSP 87-1") which included
clarification that uneamed revenue liabllities should be considered in determining the necessary insurance benefit liability required under SOP 03-1. Since
ihe Company had considered unearmed revenue in determining its SOP 03-1 benefit liabiliies, FSP 97-1 did not impact its consolidated financial
statements. As a result of the adoption of SOP 03-1, effective January 1, 2004, the Company decreased the liability for future policyholder benefits for
changes In the methodology relating to various guaranteed death and annuitization benefits and for determining liabilities for certain universal life insurance
contracts by $4 million, which has been reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting, This amount is net of comesponding changes in DAC,
including VOBA and uneamed revenue liability (“offsets”) under certain variable annuity and life contracts and income taxes. Certain other contracts sold
by the Company provide for a retum through periodic crediting rates, surrender adjustments or termination adjustments based on the total retumn of a
contractually referenced pool of assets owned by the Company. To the extent that such contracts are not accounted for as dervatives under the
provisions of SFAS 133 and not already credited to the contract account balance, under SOP 03-1 the change relating to the fair value of the referenced
pool of assets is recorded as a liability with the change in the liability recorded as policyholder benefits and claims. Prior to the adoption of SOP 03-1, the
Company recorded the change in such liability as other comprehensive income. At adoption, this change decreased net income and increased other
comprehensive income by $63 million, net of income taxes, which were recorded as cumulative effects of changes in accounting. Effective with the
adoption of SOP 03-1, costs associated with enhanced or bonus crediting rates 1o contractholders must be deferred and amortized over the life of the
related contract using assumptions consistent with the amortization of DAC. Since the Company followed a similar approach prior to adoption of
SOP 03-1, the provisions of SOP 03-1 relating to sales inducements had no significant impact on the Company’s consolidated.financial statements. At
adoption, the Company reclassified $155 million of ownership in its own Separate accounts from other assets to fixed maturities, equity securities and
cash and cash eguivalents. This reclassification had no significant impact an net income or other comprehensive income at adoption. In accordance with
SOP 03-1's guidance for the reporting of certain separate accounts, at adoption, the Company also reclassified $1.7 billicn of separate account assets
to general account investments and $1.7 bilion of separate account liabiities to future policy benefits and policyholder account balances. This
reclassification decreased net income and increased other comprehensive income by $27 million, net of income taxes, which were reported as
cumulative effects of changes in accounting. The application of SOP 03-1 decreased the Company's 2004 net income by $67 million, including the
curnulative effect of adoption of a decrease in net income of $86 milion as described above.

In December 2003, FASB revised SFAS No. 132, Emplovers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Posiretirement Benefits — an Amenc/meni of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88 and 106 ("SFAS 132(n)"). SFAS 132(r} retains most of the disclosure requirements of SFAS 132 and requires additional
disciosure about assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement plans.
SFAS 132(r) was primarily effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003; however, certain disclosures about foreign plans and estimated
future benefit payments were effective for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004. The Company's adoption of SFAS 132{) on December 31, 2003 did
not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial staternents since it only revised disclosure reguirements.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP") No. 106-2, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 ("FSP 106-2"), which provides accounting guidance to a sponsor of a postretirement
health care plan that provides prescription drug benefits. The Company expects 1o receive subsidies on prescription drug benefits beginning in 2006
under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemization Act of 2003 based on the Company’s determination that the prescription drug
benefits offered under certain postretirement plans are actuarially equivalent to the benefits offered under Medicare Part D. FSP 108-2 was effective for
interim periods beginning after June 15, 2004 and provides for either retroactive application to the date of enactment of the legislation or prospective
application from the date of adoption of FSP 106-2. Effective July 1, 2004, the Company adopted FSP 106-2 prospectively and the postretirement
benefit plan assets and accumulated benefit obligation were remeasured to determine the effect of the expected subsidies on net periodic postretirement
benefit cost. As aresult, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and net pericdic postretirement benefit cost was reduced by $213 million and
$17 million, for 2004, respectively.

Effective Cctober 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement 133 Implementation Issue No. B38, Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance
Arrangements and Debt Instruments That Incorparate Credit Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Refated to the Creditworthiness of the
Obiigor under Those Instruments (“lssue B36"). Issue B36 concluded that (i) a company's funds withheld payable and/or receivable under certain
reinsurance arangements, and (i) a debt instrument that incorporates credit risk exposures that are unrelated or only partially related to the creditworthi-
ness of the abligor include an embedded derivative feature that is not clearty and closely related to the host contract. Therefore, the embedded derivative
feature is measured at fair value on the balance sheet and changes in fair value are reported in income. The Company's application of Issue B36
increased (decreased) net income by $4 milion and ($12) milion, net of amortization of DAC and income taxes, for 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
2003 impact includes a decrease in net income of $26 million relating o the cumulative effect of a change in accounting from the adoption of the new
guidance.

Effective July 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 148, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aclivities
("SFAS 149"). SFAS 149 amended and clarified the accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments
embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. Except for certain previously issued and effective guidance, SFAS 149 was effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 3G, 2003. The Company's adoption of SFAS 149 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

During 2003, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation ("FIN"} No. 46, Consolidation of \ariable Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51
(“FIN 48", and its Decernber 2003 revision ("FIN 46(r)"). Certain of the Company's investments in real estate joint ventures and other limited partnership
interests meet the definition of a VIE and have been consolidated, in accordance with the transition rules and effective dates, because the Company is
deemed to be the primary beneficiary. A VIE is defined as (i) any entity in which the equity investments at risk in such entity do not have the characteristics
of a controfing financial interest, of {ii) any entity that does not have sufiicient equity at risk to finance its activities without additional subordinated suppon
from other parties.lEﬁective February 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN 48 for VIEs created or acquired on or after February 1, 2003 and, effective
December 31, 2003, the Company adopted FIN 46() with respect {o interests in entities formerly considered special purpose entities ("SPEs"), including
interests in asset-backed securities and collateralized debt obligations. The adoption of FIN 46 as of February 1, 2003 did not have a significant impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements. The adoption of the provisions of FIN 48(r) at December 31, 2003 did not reguire the Company to
consolidate any additional VIEs that were not previously consolidated. In accordance with the provisions of FIN 48(r), the Company elected to defer until
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March 31, 2004 the consolidation of interests in VIEs for non-SPEs acquired prior to February 1, 2003 for which it is the primary bensficiary. As of
March 31, 2004, the Company consclidated assets and liabilities relating to real estate joint ventures of $78 milion and $11 million, respectively, and
assets and liabiities relating to other limited partnerships of $28 million and less than $1 milion, respectively, for VIEs for which the Company was
deemed to be the primary beneficiary. There was no impact to net income from the adoption of FIN 46,

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN No. 48, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ("FIN 48"). FIN 45 requires ertities to establish liabilities for certain types of guarantees and expands
financial statement disclosures for others. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 were applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements. See Note 10.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 146").
SFAS 146 requires that a liability for & cost assaciated with an exit or disposal activity be recorded and measured initially at fair valug only when the liability
is incurred rather than at the date of an entity’s commitment to an exit plan as required by EITF Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring (“EITF 94-3"). The Company's activities subject
to this guidance in 2004 and 2003 were not significant.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB *
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections ("SFAS 145", in addition to amending or rescinding other existing authoritative pronouncements to make
various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions, SFAS 145 generally preciudes companies from
recording gains ‘and losses from the extinguishment of debt as an exiracrdinary item. SFAS 145 also requires sale-leaseback treatment for certain
modifications of a capital lease that result in the lease being classified as an operating lease. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not have a significant impact
on the Company's congolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ('SFAS 144").
SFAS 144 provides a single model for accounting for long-lived assets to be disposed of by superseding SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of ("SFAS 121"), and the accounting and reparting provisions of APB Opinicn No. 30,
Reporting the Resutts of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extracrdinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions ("APB 30"). Under SFAS 144, discontinued operations are measured at the lower of carrying value or fair value less
costs to sell, rather than on a net realizeble value basis. Future operating losses relating to discontinued operations also are no longer recognized before
they occur. SFAS 144: (j) breadens the definition of a discontinued cperation to include a component of an entity (rather than a segment of & business);
(il requires long-lived assets to be disposed of other than by sale to be considered held and used until disposed; and (i) retains the basic provisions of
(&) APB 30 regarding the presentation of discontinued operations in the statements of income, (b) SFAS 121 relating to recognition and measurement of
impaired long-lived assets (cther than goodwifl), and (c) SFAS 121 relating to the measurement of fong-lived assets classified as held-for-sale. Adoption
of SFAS 144 did not'have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements other than the presentation as discontinued aperations
of net investment income and net investment gains related 1o operations of real estate on which the Company initiated disposition activities subsequent to
January 1, 2002 and the classification of such real estate as held-for-sale on the consolidated balance sheets.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, SFAS 142 eliminates the systematic amortization and establishes criteria for
measuring the impaiment of goodwill and certain other intangible assets by reporting unit. There was no impairment of identified intangibles or significant
reclassifications between goodwill and other intangible assets at January 1, 2002. Amortization of other intangible assets was not material for the years
ended Daecember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
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2. Investments

Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities
Fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, 2004 were as follows:
’ Cost or

Amortized ~ _Gross Unrealized — poypaieq
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value

(Dollars in millions)

Fixed Maturities: -

Bonds:
U.S. treasury/agency securites . ........ PP e $18,534 $ 1,314 $ 22 $ 17,826
State and political subdivision securities . . ... oo RO 3,683 220 4 3,899
U.S. corporate securities . .......ooieia. . e © 58,022 3,870 172 61,720
Foreign govermment SECUMIES . .. .. v vt e 7,637 a74 26 8,685
Foreign COrporate SECUMIIBS . . . v vttt e e 25,341 2,582 85 27,838
Residential mortgage-backed secunties . ..o 31,683 612 65 32,230
Commercial mortgage-backed securities .......... e 12,099 440 38 12,501
Asset-backed SECUMIES L .. i i e 10,784 125 33 10,876
Other fixed maturity secunties . ... ... 887 131 33 985
Totalbonds ... e e 166,670 10,268 478 176,480
Redeemable preferred stocks ... o i i 326 - 23 303
Total fixed matunities ... .ot s e $166,996 $10,268 $501 $176,763
Equity Securities: ‘
COmMIMON SIOCKS oottt e $ 1,412 $ 244 $ 5 $ 1,651
Nonredeemable prefemed SIOCKS ...t e 501 39 3 537
Total BQUILY SECUMHIES .. ..ottt et e e e e e e $ 1913 $ 283 $ 8 § 2188
Fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, 2003 were as follows:
Ag%sr;i;;d Gross Unroalized Estimated

Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
{Doliars in millions}

Fixed Maturities:

Bonds:
U.S. treasuny/agency SECUMTIES . . ..t ot vttt e i e eeaa e $ 14707 $ 1264 P26 $ 150945
State and political subdivision securties . .. ... .. o e 3,185 202 15 3,342
U.S. COrporate SECUMIBS . vttt it e i e i e s et iaaneas TR 568,757 3,886 252 60,301
" Foreign government securities ... .......... e 7,789 1,003 28 8,764
Foreign corporate SeCUMties . .. .o 21,727 2,194 79 23,842
Residertial mortigage-tacked SeCUrities . ... i i 30,836 720 102 31,454
Commercial mortgage-backed SBOUMtIES ...t e 10,523 530 02 11,031
Asset-backed securties . ... e e 11,736 187 60 11,863
Other fixed maturity SBCUMHES ... ..ot e e 492 167 83 576
Total DONS .. 157,722 10,160 667 167,215
Redesmable preferred SIOCKS ... i 611 2 76 537
Total fixed maturities ............ R $158,333 $10,162 $743 $167,752
Equity Securities: ' ‘
COMMON SIOCKS . 1+ o et e ettt et e e e e et e S $ 613 $ % $ 2 $ 938
Nonredeemable prefemed stocks ... 602 48 4 646
Total eqUIty SBCUMHES ...t e e e e e $ 1,215 $ 375 $ 6 $ 1,684

The Company held foreign cumency derivatives with notional amounts of $4,720 milion and $3,502 milion to hedge the exchange rate risk
associated with foreign bonds and loans at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Excluding investments in U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. govemment corporations and agencies, the Company is not exposed to
any significant concentration of credit risk in its fixed maturities portfolio. )

The Company held fixed maturities at estimated fair values that were below investment grads or not rated by an independent rating agency that
totaled $12,370 milion and $12,825 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These securities had a net unrealized gain of $936 million
and $888 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, raspectively, Non-income producing fixed maturities were $30 milion and $371 milion at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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The cost or amortized cost and estimated fair value of bonds at December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity date {excluding scheduled sinking
funds), are shown below:

Cost or

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value

{Dollars in miilions)
DUE M ONB YA OT 1888 . e v it et et e et e e e e e e e $ 8,751 § 6845
Due after one year through fve years ... F . L 29,850 31,168
Due after five years through 1en YEarS. . . ..ot e e 33,643 36,008
DUE AHEI TBN YEAIS v o v ettt e ettt 41,960 46,832
U Ot o 112,104 120,853
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed SECUMtES . ... it i 54,566 55,607
Subtotal ... e 166,670 176,460
Redesmable prefemed StOCK ... .. oo e 326 303

Total fixed matuities ............... R P $166,996 $176,763

Bonds not due at a single maturity date have been included in the above table in the year of final contractual maturity. Actual maturities may differ
from contractual maturities due to the exercise of prepayment options.
Sales or disposals of fixed maturities and equity securities classified as available-for-sale were as follows:

' Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Doltars in millions})
Pr OB S .+ . ot e e e $57,604 $54,801 337,427 !
GrOSS IMVESIMBNT GAINS &+ o vt ettt e e et et e e e e e e e e & 844 3 498 $ 1,661
0SS VST BN 08808 + vttt ettt et e et ettt et e e e e e $ 516) $ (BCO) & (979

Gross investment losses above exclude writedowns recorded during 2004, 2003 and 2002 for other-than-temporarily impaired available-for-sale
fixed maturities and equity securities of $102 milion, $355 milion and $1,375 miliion, respectively.

The Company pericdically disposes of fixed maturity and equity securities at a loss. Generally, such losses are insignificant in amount or in relation to
the cost basis of the investment or are aftributable to declines in fair value occurring in the period of disposition,

The following table shows the estimated fair values and gross unrealized losses of the Company's fixed maturities (aggregated by sector) and equity
securities In an unreglized loss position, aggregated by length of time that the securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at
December 31, 2004 and 2003;

December 31, 2004
Equal to or Greater

Less than 12 Months than 12 Months - Total
Gross Gross Gross
Estimated - Unrealized Estimated U lized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss
(Dollars in millions)

U.S. treasury/agency securities. ........... $ 5014 $ 22 $ 4 $ — $ 5,018 $ 22

State and political subdivision securities. . . .. 211 2 72 2 283 4

U.S. corporate securties ... 9,963 120 1,211 52 11,174 172

Foreign govermment securities . ......... ... 8389 21 117 5 1,018 28

Foreign corporate securities. . ............. , 3,979 77 456 14 4,435 85

Residential mortgage-tacked securities . . . .. 8,545 58 375 7 8,920 65

Commercial mortgage-backed securties . . . . 3,920 33 : 225 5 4145 38

Asset-backed securities .. ... o.ooin 3,827 25 209 8 4,136 33

Other fixed maturity securites ............. 48 38 26 - 72 _ 33

Totalbonds .................... 36,504 385 2,695 93 39,199 478

Redeemable preferred sfocks ............. 308 23 — — 303 23

Total fixed maturities ............. $36,807 $408 32,695 . $ 93 339,502 $501

Equity securities ... i $ 136 3 86 $ 27 $ 2 $ 1863 $ 8
Total number of securities in an

unrealized loss position ........ 4,208 402 4,610
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. U.S. treasury/agency securities. ...........
State and political subdivision securities. . ...

U.S. corporate securities . ..

Foreign govermment securities
Foreign corporate securities . .
Residential mortgage-backed securities . . . . .
Commercial mortgage-backed securities . . . .
Asset-backed securities .. ...
Other fixed maturity securities

Total bonds

Redeemable preferred stocks ............. .
Total fixed maturities

Equity securities

December 31, 2003

Equal to or Greater

Securities Lending Program
The Company participates in a securities lending program whereby blocks of securities, which are included in investments, are loaned to third
parties, primarily major brokerage firms. The Company requires a minimum of 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities ¢ be separately maintained
as collateral for the loans. Securities with a cost or amortized cost of $26,564 million and $25,121 million and an estimated fair value of $27,974 million
and $26,387 million were on loan under the program at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company was liable for cash collateral under
its control of $28,678 million and $27,083 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, Security collateral on deposit from customers may not

be sold or repledged and is not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets on Deposit and Held in Trust
The Company had investment assets on deposit with regulatory agencies with a fair market value of $1,391 million and $1,353 milion at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Company securities held in trust to satisfy collateral reguirements had an amortized cost of $2,473 million
and $2,276 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Mortgage and Other

Loans

Mortgage and other loans were categorized as follows:

Commercial mortgage loans
Agricultural mortgage loans
Other loans

Less: Valuation allowances

Mortgage loans are collateralized by properties primarily located throughout the United States. At December 31, 2004, approximately 21%, 11% and
7% of the properties were located in California, New York and Florida, respectively. Generally, the Company (as the lender) requires that a minimum of
one-fourth of the purchase price of the underlying real estate be paid by the borrower. ‘

Certain of the Company's real estate joint ventures have mortgage loans with the Company. The carrying values of such mortgages were
$641 million and $639 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Mortgage and other loans

Less than 12 Months than 12 Months Total

Gross Gross Gross

Estimated Unrealized Esti d Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss

{Dollars in millions)

$ 3697 $ 26 & - $ — $ 3,697 $ 26
389 12 38 3 427 15
............. 7,214 152 1,056 100 8,270 252
............. 331 28 2 — 333 28
............. 2,683 65 365 14 2,938 - 78
8,372 .98 27 4 8,399 102
2,449 20 282 2 2,731 22
............. 2,555 34 8o 26 3,416 80
............. 130 73 40 10 170 _ 83
............. 27,720 508 2,661 159 30,381 667
222 _ 62 278 14 500 76
............. $27,942 $570 $2,939 $173 $30,881 $743
............. $ 53 $ 6 $ 22 $ — $ 75 $ 6

December 31,
2004 2003
Amount Percent Amount Percent
{Dollars in millions)
$25,139 77%  $20,422 78%
5914 18 5,333 20
1510 5 623 2
32,563  100% 26378  100%
157 128
$32,406 $26,249

Changes in loan valuation allowances for mortgage and other foans were as follows:

Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Deductions

Balance, end of year

Metlife, Inc.

Years Ended December 31,

.................................................... BT 52 41

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions}
$129 $126 $144

(29) (49) (59)
$157 $129 5126
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A portion of the Company's mortgage and other loans was impaired and consisted of the following:
: December 31,
2004 2003
(Dollars in millions)

Impaired 10ans with valuation allowanCeS . . . ..o e e e -$185 $296
impaired loans without valuation allowances . .. ..o cu i e S 133 165
T8l e e e 318 461
Less: Valuation allowances on IMpaired I08MS & ..ttt e e e e e 41 62
aateilc=to JRlaT= = Y S P e $277 $399

The average investment in impaired loans was $404 milion, $652 milion and $1,088 milion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectivaly. Interest income on impaired loans was $28 milion, $568 million and $91 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. .

The investment in restructured loans was $125 million and $191 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Interest income of $9 million,
$19 million and $44 million was recognized on restructured loans for the years ended Dacember 31, 2004, 2008 and 2002, respectively, Gross interest
income that would have been recorded in accordance with the original terms of such loans amounted to $12 million, $24 million and $41 milion for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Mortgage and other loans with scheduled payments of 60 days (30 days for agricultural mortgages) or more past due or in foreclosure had an
amortized cost of $58 million and $51 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Real Estate and Real Estate Joint Ventures
Real estate and real estate joint ventures consisted of the following:

December 31,
2004 2003
m in mW
Real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment ...... .. ... oo $4,1056 83639
59707 .07 1(= P e (124) (132)
Total o e e e 3,981 3,607
Real estate held-for-sale .. ... e 262 1,333
BT I S L o vttt (©6) (181
ValUBHON BlOWaNCE .« . o e e (4) (12)
L1 L PP 252 1,170
Real estate and real estate joint ventures . ...... .. A ST P P $4,233 34,677

Accumulated depreciation on real estate was $2,005 million and $1,955 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Related
depreciation expense was $179 milion, $183 milion and $227 milion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2008 and 2002, respectively. These
amounts include $17 milian, $39 million and $83 million of depreciation expense related to discontinued operations for the years ended December 37,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Real estate and real eéstate joint ventures were categorized as follows:

December 31,

2004 2003
Amount Percent Amount Percent
{ {Dollars in millions)
11 T P $2,297 54% $2,775 59%
Retall .............. e S 568 13 667 14
Apartments. ....... e S FUUUORUR e 918 22 858 18
tand ...l e e e 56 1 81 3
LA O 1 — 1 -
Other. ..o e 403 10 206 6
Total ..... e e e e e e e $4,233 T_O_Q% $4,677 1_09%

The Company's real estate holdings are primarily located throughout the United Statés. At December 31, 2004, approximately 31%, 21% and 19%
of the Company's real estate holdings were located in New York, Cafifomia and Texas, respactively.
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Changes in real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-sale valuation allowance were as foflows:

Years Ended
December 31,
)

. (Dollars in millions)
Balance, Deginning Of YBar. ... 312 $1 $35 -
AT OIS o e e e e e 13 17 21
197 (811 =3 E } __(1_6) ‘(_45_>)
Balance, 8Nd Of Yar ... e e $ 4 $12 $11

Investment income related to impaired real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment was $15 million, $34 million and $49 million for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, Investment {expense) income related to impaired real estate and real estate joint
ventures held-for-sale was ($1) million, $1 milion, and $2 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The carrying
value of non-income producing real estate and real estate joint ventures was $41 milion and $77 milfion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company owned real estate acquired in satisfaction of debt of $4 million and $3 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectivaly.

Leveraged Leases :
Leveraged leases, included in other invested assets, consisted of the following: -

December 31,

2004 2003

‘ {Dollars in millions)
Y=t T $1.050 B 974
Estimated rasidual VaIUBS . ... ...t e 480 386
1L e 1,539 1,360
[0 0= U aT= o I oto] 1 1= T O : (424) (380)
Leveraged leases . ... ... . i $1,115 § 980

The investment amounts set forth above are generally due in monthly instaliments. The payment periods generally range from one to 15 years, but in
certain circumstances are as long as 30 years. These receivables are generally collateralized by the related property. The Company's deferred income
tax liability related to leveraged leases was $757 million and $870 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Funds Withheld at Interest

Included in other invested assets at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were funds withheld at interest of $2,801 million and $2,839 million,

respectively.
Net Investment Income
The components of net investment income were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)
Fixed matuntiesS .. ... e P $ 9431 $ 8817 § 8367
Y B UM v vttt e e e 80 31 43
Mortgage and Other I0ans . .. ...t e e 1,963 1,803 1,883
Real estate and real estate joint vertures ... . : 953 866 898
POl Y J0BNS . L o o 541 554 543
Other limited partnership interests............ ... .. e o 324 80 57
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments ... 0 i 167 171 252
L2 O 124 142 129
06 13,583 12,564 12,172
Less: INvestment BXPeNSES . . ..o v e e 1,165 1,025 989

Net investment income ............ e e $12,418 311,530  $11,183
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Net Investment Gains (Losses)
Net investment gains (losses) were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
. {Dollars in millions)

et 210 T O N $ 71 3398 3917)
EQUITY SECUMIES L+ttt et e et e e e e e 155 41 224
Mortgage and other I0aNS . . ... o 47 (56) (22)
Real estate and real estale joiNt VENIUIES . ... i 23 19 (6)
Other limited partnership interests ... ..o 53 (84) )
Sales of busSINGsSeS . ..o S 23 — —
VAV ES ot et e e e e (255)  (134) (140)
{01 U PR 159 30 (29)
Total net INVESIMENE aINS (0SSES) + « « e vt vttt it e et sttt e e e $182 $B82)  J(BI2)

Net Unrealized Investment Gains

The components of net unrealized investment gains, included in accumulated other comprehensive income, were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)
P o= (101111 A U S $90,602 $9204 $7.360
EQUIY SECUMIES .« .ottt e et e e e 287 378 57
1= 117 (503) (427 (24)
Other INVESTEA BSSBIS . .. et e e e e e (65) (33) 16
O A L e e e 9,321 9,120 7,409
Amounts allocated from:
Future policy benefit 10ss recognition ... ... oo e (1,997) (1.482) (1,289
Deferred policy acquUISTioN COStS . ..ot e (541) (674) (659)
PariCIpating COMITaCTS .« . oo — (183) (153)
Policyholder dividend obliGation ... ... e e (2119 (2,130 (1882
Lo (4,651} (4,469) (3,863
DEfErred INCOME TAXES . .« . o ettt et e e e (1,676) (1.679)  (1,264)
Ot o 6,327) (6,148  (6,127)
Net unrealized INVeSIMEnt gaing (0SSES) . . . vt ettt e e $2,094 §2972 §2282

The changes in net unrealized investment gains were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)
Balance, Deginning Of Year . ... i $2,972 $2,282 $1.879
“Unrealized investment gains (losses) duing the year ... e 201 1,711 3,565
Unrealized investment gains (losses) relating to:
Future palicy benefit gains (0Sses) reCognition . .. .. ..o (509) (213) (1,239
Deferred policy 8COUISIHION COSIS L\ .t ittt e e et e e e 133 (115) (538)
PariCIDalNG COMIACES . et e e i e 183 (30} (26)
Policyholder dividend oblGation ... ... o 11 248y (1,174)
D T MO M BB S . . ettt ettt et e e e 3 (415) (185)
Balance, Bnd Of YBAE ..o e e $2,994 $2872 $2,282
Net change in unrealized INveStMENt GaINS (0S88S) .« vttt et e e e e $ 22 % 690 $ 403

Structured Investment Transactions

The Company securitizes high yield debt securities, investment grade bonds and structured finance securities, The Company has sponsored four
securitizations with a total of approximately $1,341 milion and $1,431 mifion in financial assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respeactively, The
Company’s beneficial interests in these SPEs as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related investment income for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were insignificant.

The Company invests in structured notes and similar type instruments, which generally provide equity-based retums on debt securities. The carrying
value of such investments was approximately $666 million 'and $880 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The related net investment
income recognized was $45 million, $78 milion and $1 million for the vears ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Variable Interest Entities
As discussed in Note 1, the Company has adopted the provisions of FIN 46 and FIN 48()

METLIFE, INC.
. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

. The adoption of FIN 46(r) required the Company to

consolidate certain VIES for which it is the primary beneficiary. The following table presents the total assets of and maximum exposure to loss relating to
VIEs for which the Company has concluded that (i) it is the primary beneficiary and which are consolidated in the Company's consolidated financial
statements at December 31, 2004, and (i) it holds significant variable interests but it is not the primary beneﬁciary and which have not been consolidated:

December 31, 2004

Not Primary
Primary Beneficiary Beneficiary
Maximum Maximum
Total Exposure Total Exposure
Assets(1) to Loss(2) Assets(1) to Loss(2)
) {Dollars in millions)
Asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations ............... ool $ - $ — $1,418 $ 3
Real estate joint ventures(3) . ..o .15 13 132 -
Other limited partnerships(4). . .................. P 249 191 314 146
Other structured investments(B) . . ... o e e — 856 103
Ot e $264 $204 $3,320

252

(1} The assets of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations are refiected at fair value at December 31, 2004. The assets of the
real estate joint ventures, other limited partnerships and other structured investments are refliected at the camying amounts at which such assets
would have been reflected on the Company’s balance shest had the Company consolidated the VIE from the date of its initial investment in the entity.

(2) The maximurn exposure 1o loss of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations is equal fo the carrying amounts of retained
Interests. In addition, the Company provides collateral management services for certain of these structures for which it collects a management fee.
The maximum exposure {o loss relating 1o real estate joint ventures, other limited partnerships and other structured investments is equal 1o the
carrying amounts plus any unfunded commitments, reduced by amounts guaranteed by other partners.

(3) Real estate joint ventures include parinerships and other ventures, which engage in the acquisition, development, management and disposal of real

estate investments.

(4) Cther limited partnerships include peartnerships established for the purpose of investing in real estate funds, public and private debt and equity
securities, as well as limited partnerships established for the purpose of investing in low-income housing that qualifies for federal tax credits.
(8) Other structured investments include an offering of a collateralized fund of funds based on the securitization of a poal of private equity funds,

3. Derivative Financial Instruments

Types of Derivative Instruments

The following table

provides a summary of the notional amounts and falr value of derivative financial instruments held at:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Current Market
or Fair Value

_Current Market
or Fair Value

Notional T "% "7 "~ Naotional
Amount  Assets Liabilities Amount  Assets Liabilities

(Dollars in millions)
INtEIEST FAtE SWADS « -+« o ettt et e et e e e $12,681 $284 $ 22 $ 9944 B189 § 36
Iterest rate foOrS . . oo T 3,325 38 — 325 5 -
INterestrate Caps . ... .. i e 7,045 12 — 9,345 29 —
Financial futdres . ..o DU [P 811 — 13 1,348 8 30
FOreign CUmenCy SWEDS . .« o e e 8,214 150 1,302 4,710 g 796
Foreign cumenCy forwards ... ..o e 1,018 5 57 695 5 32
Ol O e 825 37 7 6,085 7 —
Financial fomnwards . .. ..ttt 326 ~ — 1310 2 3
Credit default SWaps ... ..o 1,897 11 5 615 2 1
Syt GlOS .« oo s .. 5,869 — - 5177 - —
OrREr o 450 1 1 - - =
£ $42,256 $ﬂ3§ $1,407 $39,534 @ $898
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The following table provides a summary of the notional amounts of derivative financial instruments by maturity at December 31, 2004;
Remaining Life

After After
One Year Five Years
One Year Through Five Through Ten After
or Less Years Years Ten Years Total
. {Dollars in millions}
IETESt TAIE SIS . . e ot ettt et e et e e e $1,878 $ 6,846 $ 2098 $1.859 $12681
INterest rate f0ors. . ... e — — 3,325 — 3,325
Interest rate caps . . . .. e e 2,025 5,020 — — 7,045
Financial fFUtUrBS oo e e 611 — — - 611
FOreign CUImanCy SWEDS .+« oo e ettt e e a7 3,425 3,155 1,357 8214
Foreign currenCy forwardS . .« ..ot e e 1,013 - - - 1,013
(6o 1= 6 - 256 563 825
Financial forwards. .« ..o vt et e 326 - - e 326
Credit default SWaDS .« .o oo BT, 301 1,217 379 — 1,897
Syntheﬂc Gl i 1,000 1,000 3,869 — 5,869
;127" S PP PN 450 — — — 450
B [< - P $7,887 $17,508 $13,082 83,779  $42,256

Interest rate swaps are used by the Company primarily to reduce market risks from changes in interest rates and to alter interest rate exposure
arising from mismatches between assets and liabilties (duration mismatches). In an interest rate swap, the Company agrees with ancther party to
exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed rate and floating rate interest amounts as calculated by reference to an agreed notional
principal amount. These transactions are entered into pursuant to master agreements that provide for a single net payment to be made by the
counterparty at each due date.

Interest rate caps and floars are used by the Company pnman!y to protect its floating rate liabilities aga«nst rises in interest rates above a specified
level, and to protect its minimum rate guarantee ligbilities against declines in interest rates below a specifled level, respectively.

In exchange-traded Treasury and equity futures transactions, the Company agrees to purchase or sell a specified number of contracts, the value of
which is determined by the different classes of Treasury and equity securities, and to post variation margin on a daily basis in an amount egual to the
difference in the daily market values of those contracts. The Company enters into exchange-traded futures with regulated futures commission merchants
that are members of the exchanges.

Exchange-traded Treasury futures are used primarily to hedge mismatches between the duration of assets in a portfolio and the duration of liabifities
supported by those assets, to hedge against changes in value of securities the Company owns or anticipates acquiring, and to hedge against changes
in interest rates on anticipated liability issuances by replicating Treasury performance. The value of Treasury futures is substantially impacted by changes
in interest rates and they can be used to modify or hedge existing interest rate risk.

Exchange-traded equity futures are used primarily to hedge liabilities embedded in certain variable annuity products offered by the Company.

Foreign currency derivatives, including foreign cumency swaps and foreign currency forwards, are used by the Company to reduce the risk from
fluctuations in foreign curency exchange rates associated with its assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The Company also uses
foreign currency forwards to hedge the foreign currency risk associated with certain of its net investments in foreign operations.

In a foreign currency forward transaction, the Company agrees with another party to deliver a specified amount of an identified cumency at a
specified future date. The price is agreed upon at the time of the contract and payment for such a contract is made in a different currency at the specified
future date.

In a foreign currency swap transaction, the Company agrees with another party to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between one
currency and another at a forward exchange rate caloulated by reference to an agreed upon principal amount. The principal amount of each curency is
exchanged at the inception and termination of the currency swap by each party.

Swaptions are used by the Company primarily to sell, or monetize, embedded call options in its fixed rate liabllities. A swaption is an option to enter
into a swap with an effective date equal to the exercise date of the embedded call and a maturity date egual to the maturity date of the underlying habmty
The Company receives a premium for entering into the swaption.

Equity options are used by the Company primarily to hedge liabilities embedded in certain variable annuity products offered by the Company.

The Company enters into financial forwards, primarily "to-be-announced” {“TBA") securities, to gain exposure to the investment risk and retum of
securities not yet available. The price is agreed upon at the time of the contract and payment for such a contract is made at a specified future date,

Certain credit defauit swaps are used by the Company to hedge against credit-related changes in the value of its investments. In a credit default
swap transaction, the Company agrees with another party, at specified intervals, to pay a premium to insure credit risk. If a credit event, as defined by the
contract, cccurs, generally the contract will require the swap to be settled gross by the delivery of par quantities of the referenced investment egual to the
specified swap notional in exchange for the payment of cash amounts by the counterparty equal 1o the par value of the investment sumrendered.

Credit default swaps are also used in replication synthetic asset transactions (“RSATS") to synthetically create investments that are either more
expensive to acquire or otherwise unavailable in the cash markets. RSATs are a combination of a derivative and usually a U.S. Treasury or Agency
security. RSATs that involve the use of credit default swaps are included in such classification in the preceding table.

Total rate of return swaps (“TRRs") are swaps whereby the Company agrees with another party to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference
between the economic risk and reward of an asset or a market index and LIBOR, -calculated by reference to an agreed notional principal amount. No
cash is exchanged at the outsat of the contract. Cash is paid and received over the life of the contract based on the terms of the swap. These
transactions are entered into pursuant to master agreements that provide for a single net payment to be made by the counterparty at each due date.
TRRs can be used as hedges or RSATs and are included in the other classification in the preceding table. :
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A synthetic guaranteed investment contract ("GIC”) is a contract that simulates the performance of a traditional GIC through the use of financial
instruments. Under a synthetic GIC, the policyholder owns the underlying assets. The Company guarantees a rate retum on those assets for a premium.

Hedging -
The table below provides a summary of the notional amount and fair value of derivatives by type of hedge designation at:
' December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value
Amount  Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities
(Dollars in millions)

Fairvalue ........... e e e e $ 4879 $173 P 234 $ 4027 $ 27 $297

Cash AW Lo 8,787 41 689 13,173 59 449

Foralgn operations ... ..o e 535 - 47 527 — 10

NON QUAITVING + o oo et e 28,055 324 437 21,807 170 142

O 8l L e $42,256 $538 31,407 39,534 $256  $898

The following table provides the settlement payments recorded in income for the:
Year Ended
December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Quialifying hedges:

INEE INVESIMENT INCOME + v vt ettt ettt e ettt et et et e e e e e et e e s $(147) $63) $ 9
Interest credited to palicyholder acCount DAIANCES . . . .t e s 45 - =

Non-gualifying hedges: .
Net Investment GaINS (088 . . .t 51 84 32
- A $ (51) 21 41

M
n

Fair Value Hedges
The Company designates and accounts for the following as fair value hedges when they have met the requirements of SFAS 133. (j) interest rate
swaps to convert fixed rate investments to floating rate investments; (i) foreign currency swaps to hedge the foreign currency fair value exposure of
foreign currency denominated investments and liabilities; and (iif) treasury futures to hedge against changes in value of fixed rate securities.
The Company recognized Net investment gains (losses) representing the ineffective portion of all fair value hedges as follows:
' ‘Years Ended
December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Changes in the fair value Of dervatives .. ... .. ottt e T $200 $(191) $(30)
Changes in the fair value of the items hedged ... ... o e e (151) 159 34
Net ineffectiveness of fair value hedging activities. .................... T $ 49 $(32 ¢ 4

Al components of each derivative's gain or loss were included in the assessment of hedge ineffectiveness. There were ne instances in which the

Company discontinued fair value hedge accounting due 10 a-hedged firm commitment no longer qualifying as a fair value hedge.
Cash Flow Hedges ’ ’

The Company designates and accounts for the following as cash flow hedges, when they have met the requirements of SFAS 133: (i) interest rate
swaps to convert floating rate investments to fixed rate investments; (i) interest rate swaps to convert floating rate liabilities into fixed rate liabilities;
(iii) foreign curency swaps to hedge the foreign currency cash flow exposure of foreign currency denominated investments and liabilities; {iv) treasury
futures to hedge against changes in value of securities fo.be acquired; (v) treasury futures to hedge against changes in interest rates on liabilities to be
issued; and {vi) financial forwards 1o gain exposure to the investment risk and retum of securities not yet available.

For the years ended Dacember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized Net investment gains (losses) of ($19} milion, ($69) million,
and ($3) million, respectively, which represented the ineffective portion of all cash flow hedges. All components of each derivative’s gains or loss were
included in the assessment of hedge ineffectiveness. There were no instances in which the Company discontinued cash flow hedge accounting
because the forecasted transactions did not occur on the anticipated date or in the additional time period permitted by SFAS 133. There were no hedged
forecasted transactions, other than the receipt or payment of variable interest payments.
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Presented below is a roll forward of the components of Other comprehensive income (loss), before income taxes, related to cash flow hedges:

Year Ended
December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions) /

Other comprehensive income (joss) balance at the beginning of the vear. . ... oo e $417) $ 24 $ 71
Gaing (losses) deferred in other comprehensive income (logs) on the effective portion of cash flow hedges ..., .. 34} (387) (142)
Amounts reclassified 1o net investment INCoMe ... O 2 2 57
Amortization Of transition adjUstImEnt . ... (7) 8) (10)
Other comprehensive income (losses) balance at theend of theyear ... ... ... . ... $(456) B417) $ (24)

At December 31, 2004, approximately $34 milion of the deferred net gains on derivatives accumulated in Other comprehensive income (loss) are
expected to be reclassified to eamings during the year ending December 31, 2005.

Hedges of Net Investments in Foreign Operations
The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge portions of its net investment in foreign operations against adverse movements in
exchange rates. The Company measures ineffectiveness based upon the change in forward rates. There was no ineffectiveness recorded in 2004, 2003
or 2002. )
For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company recorded net unrealized foreign currency losses of $47 million and $10 miliion,
respectively, in Other comprehensive income (loss) related to hedges of its net investments in foreign operations. For the year ended December 31,
2004, the Company recorded a foreign currency translation loss of $10 million, in Other comprehensive income (loss) related to the disposal of certain
hedges of net investments in foreign operations. There were no disposals of such hedges for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Non-qualifying Derivatives and Derivatives for Purposes Other Than Hedging

The Company enters into the following derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS 133 or for purposes other than hedging:
(i) interest rate swaps, purchased caps and floors, and Treasury futures to minimize its exposure 10 interest rate volatility; (i) foreign currency forwards and
swaps to minimize its exposure to adverse movements in exchange rates; (i) swaptions 1o sell embedded call options in fixed rate liabilities; (iv) credit
default swaps to minimize its exposure to adverse movements in credit; (v) equity futures and equity options to economically hedge liabilities embedded
in certain variable annuity products; (Vi) synthetic GICs to synthetically create traditional GICs; and (vii) RSATs and TRRs to synthetically create
investments.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized as Net investment gains (losses) changes in fair value of
$177) million, $114) milion and ($172) milion, respectively, related to derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Embedded Derivatives
The Company has certain embedded derivatives which are required to be separated from their host contracts and accounted for as derivatives,
These host contracts include guaranteed rate of retum contracts, guaranteed minimum withdrawal benefit contracts and modified coinsurance contracts.
The fair value of the Company's embedded derivative assets was $46 million and $43 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The fair
valug of the Company's embedded derivative liabllities was $26 million and $33 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The amounts
recorded to Net invastment gains (losses) during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were gains of $37 milion and $19 million, respectively.
There were no amounts recorded to Net investment gains (losses) during the year ended December 31, 2002 related to embedded derivatives.

Credit Risk

The Company may be exposed to credit related losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to derivative financial instruments.
Generally, the current credit exposure of the Company's derivative contracts is limited to the fair value at the reporting date. The credit exposure of the
Company's derivative transactions is represented by the fair value of contracts with a net positive fair valug at the reporting date. Because exchange
traded futures and options are effected through regulated exchanges, and positions are marked to market on a daily basis, the Company has minimal
exposure to credit related l0sses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to such derivative financial instruments.

The Company manages its credit risk by entering into derivative transactions with craditworthy counterparties. In addition, the Company enters into
over-the-counter derivatives pursuant to master agreements that provide for a single net payment to be made by one counterparty to another at each due
date and upon termination. Likewise, the Company effects exchange traded futures and options through regulated exchanges and these positions are
marked to market and margined on a dally basis.
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4, Insurance

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
Information regarding VOBA and DAC for the years ended December 31, 2002 2003 and 2004 is as follows:

Deferred
Value of Policy
Business Acquisition
Acquired Costs Total
{Dollars in millions)
Balance at January 1, 2002, . ..ottt $1,678 $ 9,489 $11,167
(@72 11121 77211, 1= T O PO P — 2,340 2,340
ACGUISTIONS . . . e e e 369 - . 369
Total ... e e e 2,047 11,829 13,876
Amortization related to: ) ' '
Net Investment gaing (J0SSES) - . oot . 18 (1) 5
Unrealized inveStmMENt GaiNs (0SSES) . . . vttt v vttt e e e 154 384 538
Other expenSes . ... .o eaee e 132 1,507 1,639
Total amMOrZat 0N . . . e 302 1,880 2,182
Dispositions and Other . ... .o LN ©6) 3% 33
Balance at Decembear 31, 2002 . . ..o e 1,739 9,988 11,727
107 To ) v=1 221 (0 1= AP — 2,792 2,792
Acquisitions . ... ... e B Ry 40 218 258
TOtal i e 1,779 12,998 14,777
Amortization related to: .
Net iInvestment Gains (I0SSES) -« o v e ettt e e N (24) X))
- Unredlized investment gains (Iosses) ...................................................... 81 146 115
L@ gl =TT 162 1,656 1,818
Total amortization . . . ... o 124 1,778 1,902
Dispositions and Other .. ... e 2 66 68
Balance at December 31, 2003 . ... ... 1,657- 11,286 12,943
Gl Zal NS ottt e e - 3,101 3,101
AU ONS « o ottt e e e o] - 6
TOtal e e 1,663 - 14,387 16,050
Amortization related to: .
Net Investmant gains (0SSES) « .« v ittt ettt e 4 7 i
Unrealized investmant Qains (0SS88) . . . ...ttt (92) @n (133)
OHNBr BRSO S .« . oo ottt et ettt e et e e e e e e e 140 1,754 1,894
Total @Mzl 0N . . e e e 52 1,720 1,772
Dispositions and other ............. T (27) 85 58
Balance at December 31, 2004 . ... e s $1,584 $12,752 $14,336

The estimated future amortization expense allocated 1o other expenses for VOBA is $137 million in 2005, $130 million in 2008, $124 milion in 2007,
$119 milion in 2008 and $117 milion in 2009.

Amortization of VOBA and DAC is related to (i) investment gains and losses and the impact of such gains and losses on the amount of the
amortization, (i) unrealized investment gains and losses to provide information regarding the amount that would have been amortized if such gains and
fosses had been recognized, and (i) other expenses to provide amounts related to the gross margins or profits onglnanng from transactions other than
investment gains and losses.

Sales Inducements
Changes in deferred sales inducements are as follows:

Sales Inducements

- {Dollars in millions})
Balance at January 1, 2004 .. oo e e e $196
DA ZAtON « . .ot ee e 121
AMIOTHZAHON . et e (23)
Balance al December 31, 2004 . . .. e e e $294
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Liabilities for Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses
The following table provides an analysis of the activity in the liability for unpaid claims and claim expenses relating to property and casualty, group

accident and non-medical health policies and contracts:
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
BalanCe B JAMUANY 1 oo i e e $5412 $4,885 $ 4,697
RN SUIANCE B OV A S o v ittt ittt e e e e e e (525) (498) (457)
4,887 4,387 4,140

Net balance at January 1 ... e e e e e e ,
Incurred related to: . ‘
Current year ...... A 4,591 4,483 4,219
PHOr Y BaIS o oottt e (29) 45 (81)

4,562 4,528 4,138

Peaid related to:
O =) == Y
1 Y= O

(2,717) (2,676) (2,559
(1,394) {1.352) (1.332)

(4,111)  (4028)  (3.891)

Net Balance at Dacember 31 ... o oo e e e 5,338 4,887 4,387
486 525 498

Add: ReiNSUANCE T8COVRIADIES . . . v ettt e e e e e
Balance at DecembDar BT oottt ... $5824 $5412 $4,885

Guarantees .
The Company issues annuity contracts which may include contractual guarantees to the contractholder for:. (i) retumn of no less than total deposits

made to the contract less any partial withdrawals (“retum of net deposits”) and (i) the highest contract value on a specified anniversary date minus any
withdrawals following the contract anniversary, or total deposits made to the contract less any partial withdrawals plus a minimum retum (“anniversary
contract vaiue” or “minimum return”). The Company also issues annuity contracts that apply a lower rate of funds deposited if the contractholder elects to
surrender the coniract for cash and a higher rate if the contractholder elects to annuitize (“two tier annuities”). These guarantees include benefits that are

payable in the event of death or at annuitization.
The Company afso issues universal and variable life contracts where the Company contractually guarantees to the contractholder a secondary

guarantee or a guaranteed paid up benefit.
The Company had the following types of guarantees relating to annuity and universal and variable life contracts at:

Annuity Contracts
December 31, 2004

In the At
Event of Death Annuitization

(Dollars in millions)

RETURN OF NET DEPOSITS

Separate ACCOUNT ValUE ... .. e e e $ 6925 N/A
NS = o T U $ 22(1) N/A
B0 years N/A

Average attained age of ContractnolderS . . ...t e e

ANNIVERSARY CONTRACT VALUE OR MINIMUM RETURN
$ 43,414 $ 14,297

Separate aCCoUNT VaIUS ... vttt e DR

NBE GIMOUME B ISR + o vt v ettt et e et et e e e e e e e T $ oo 3 51(2)

Average attained age of CoNtraCtnOIdErS . .. o it e 61 years .58 years

TWO TIER ANNUITIES

General accountvalue ..o PR e N/A $ 801

Nt BIMIOUNE B HOK L o ot ettt et ettt e e et e N/A $ 36(3)
N/A 58 years

Universal and Variable Life Contracts _
December 31, 2004

Secondary Paid Up
Guarantees Guarantees

(Dollars in millions)
$ 4718 $ 4570
$ 94,163(1) . $ 42,318(1)
45 years 52 years

Account value {general and Separate ACCOUNT) . v . i it e e i e
N BMOUNT B SR L oo e
Average attained age of ROlICYNOIAErS . ... o e e

(1) The net amount at risk for guarantees of amounts in the event of death is defined.as the current guaranteed minimum death benefit in excess of the
current account balance at the balance sheet date.
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«{2) The net amount at risk for guarantees of amounts at annuitization is defined as the present value of the minimum guaranteed annuity payments
available to the contractholder determined in accordance with the terms of the contract in excess of the current account balance.
(3) The net amount at risk for two tier annuities is based on the excess of the upper tier, adjusted for a profit margin, less the lower tier,
The net amount at risk is based on the direct amount at risk (excluding reinsurance).
The Company's annuity and life contracts with guarantees may offer more than one type of guarantee in each contract. Therefore, the amounts listed
above may not be mutually exclusive.
Liabilities for guarantees (excluding base policy liabilities) relating to annuity and universal and variable life contracts are as follows:

Universal and Variable Life

Annuity Contracts Contracts
Guaranteed
Guaranteed Annuitization Secondary Paid Up
Death Benefits Benefits Guarantees Guarantees Total
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at January 1, 2004 ... $9 C o817 $6 $25 $57
Incurred guaranteed benefits ... ... 23 2 4 4 33
Paid guaranteed benefits .. ... e _® = @ = (12)
Balance at December 31,2004 .............. . Lo 824 $19 $6 $29 $78

Account balances of contracts with insurance guarantees are invested in separate account asset classes as follows at:

December 31, 2004
(Dollars in millions)

By o et e e e $31,829
Bond ... e e e 3,621
Balanced . ... .o T 1,730
Money Market. .. ... 383
SpaCIAtY .. e e e e e e e 245
Lo | $37,808
Separate Accounts.

Separate account assets and liabilities include two categories of account types: pass-through separate accounts totaling $71,623 milion and
$59,278 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, for which the policyholder assumes all investment risk, and separate accounts with a
minimum retumn or account value for which the Company contractually guarantees either a minimum retum or account value to the policyholder which
totaled $15,146 milion and $16,478 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The latter category consisted primarity of Met Managed
Guaranteed Interest Contracts and participating close-out contracts. The average interest rates credited on these contracts were 4.7% and 4.5% at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Fees charged to the separate accounts by the Company (including mortality charges, policy administration fees and surrender charges) are reflected
in the Company’s revenues as universal life and investment-type product policy fees and totaled $843 million, $626 million and $542 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At December 31, 2004, fixed maturities, equity securities, and cash and cash equivalents reported on the consolidated balance sheet include
$47 million, $20 million and $2 million, respectively, of the Company’s proportional interest in separate accounts.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, there were no investment gains (losses) on transfers of assets from the general account to the separate
accounts.

5. Reinsurance

The Company's life insurance operations participate in reinsurance activities in drder to limit losses, minimize exposure to large risks, and to provide
additional capacity for future growth. The Company curently reinsures up to 90% of the mortality risk for all new individual life insurance policies that it
writes through its various franchises. This practice was initiated by different franchises for different products starting at various points in time between
1992 and 2000. The. Company retains up to $25 million on single life policies and $30 million on survivorship policies and reinsures 100% of amounts in
excess of the Company's retention limits. The Company reinsures a portion of the mortality risk on its universal life policies. The Company reinsures its
business through a diversified group of reinsurers. Placement of reinsurance is done primarily on an automatic basis and also on a facultative basis for
risks of specific characteristics. The Company is contingantly liable with respect to ceded reinsurance should any reinsurer be unable to meet its
obligations under these agreements. .

In addition to reinsuring mortality risk, the Company reinsures other risks and specific coverages. The Company routinely reinsures certain classes of

" risks in order to limit its exposure to particular travel, avocation and lifestyle hazards. The Company has exposure to catastrophes, which are an inherent

risk of the property and casualty business and could contribute to significant fluctuations in the Company's results of operations. The Company uses
excess of l0ss and quota share reinsurance arrangements to limit iﬁs maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposure to larger
risks. :

The Company has also protected itself through the purchase of combination risk coverage. This reinsurance coverage pools risks from several lines
of business and includes individual and group life claims in excass of $2 million per policy, as well as excess property and casualty losses, among others:

In the Reinsurance Segment, Reinsurance Group of America, incorporated ("RGA”), retains a maximum of $6 million of coverage per individual life
with respect to its assumed reinsurance business.

See Note 10 for information regarding certain excess of loss reinsurance agreements providing coverage for risks associated primarily with sales
practices claims. )
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The amounts in the consalidated statements of income are presented net of reinsurance ceded. The effects of reinsurance were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Direct premiums .. . .. T $20,237  $18,396  $18,439
Reinsurance assumed .............. R R e e 4,492 3,706 2,993
ReiNSUraNCE CaUBA . .. o it e e (2,413) (2,429) (2,355)
NETDIBMILMS .+ . e e e e $22.316  $20,673  $19,077
Reinsurance recoveries netted against POicYnoIder DENETS . . .« ...\ v e $ 2048 $2417 $ 2,836

Reinsurance recoverables, included in premiums and other receivables, were $3,965 milion and $4,014 miion at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, inciuding $1,302 million and $1,341 million, respectively, relating to reinsurance of long-term guaranteed interest contracts and structured
settlement lump sum contracts accounted for as a financing transaction. Reinsurance and ceded commissions payables, included in other liabiltties,
were $78 milion and $108 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

6. Closed Block

On April 7, 2000 (the “date of demutualization”), Metropolitan Life established a closed block for the benefit of holders of certain individual life
insurance policies of Metropolitan Life, Assets have been allocated-to the closed block in an amount that has been determined to produce cash flows
which, together with anticipated revenues from the policies included in the closed block, are reasonably expected to be sufficient to support obligations
and liabilities relating to these policies, including, but not limited to, provisions for the payment of claims and certain expenses and taxes, and to provide
for the continuation of policyholder dividend scales in effect for 1999, if the experience underlying such dividend scales continues, and for appropriate
adjustments in such scales if the experience changes. At least annually, the Company compares actual and projected experience against the experience
assumed in the then-current dividend scales. Dividend scales are adjusted periodically to give effect to changes in experience.

The closed block assets, the cash flows generated by the closed block assets and the anticipated revenues from the policies in the closed block will
benefit only the holders of the policies in the closed block. To the extent that, over time, cash flows from the assets allocated to the closed block and
claims and other experience related to the closed block are, in the aggregate, more or less favorable than what was assumed when the closed block was
established, total dividends paid to closed block policynolders in the future may be greater than or less than the total dividends that would have been paid
to these policyholders if the policyholder dividend scales in effect for 1999 had been continued. Any cash flows in excess of amounts assumed will be
avallable for distribution over time to closed block policyholders and will not be available to stockholders. If the closed block has insufficient funds to make
guarantesd policy benefit payments, such payments will be made from assets outside of the closed block. The closed block will continue in effect as
long as any policy in the closed block remains in-force. The expected life of the closed block is over 100 years.

The Company uses the same accounting principles to account for the participating policies included in the closed block as it used prior to the date
of demutualization. However, the Company establishes a policyholder dividend obligation for eamings that will be paid to policyholders as additional
dividends as described below. The excess of closed block liabilities over closed block assets at the effective date of the demutualization (adjusted to
eliminate the impact of reldted amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income) represents the estimated maximum future earnings from the
closed block expacted to result from operations attributed to the closed block after income taxes. Eamings of the closed block are recognized in income
over the period the policies and contracts in the closed block remain in-force. Management believes that over time the actual cumulative eamings of the
closed block will approximately equal the expected cumulative eamnings due to the effect of dividend changes. If, over the period the closed block
rermains in existence, the actual cumulative eamings of the closed block is greater than the expected cumulative eamings of the closed block, the
Company will pay the excess of the actual cumulative eamings of the closed block over the expected cumulative eamings to closed block policyholders
as additional policyholder dividends unless offset by future unfavorable experience of the closed block and, accordingly, will recognize only the expected
cumulative eamings in income with the excess recorded as a policyholder dividend obligation. If over such period, the actual cumulative earnings of the
closed block is less than the expected cumulative eamings of the closed block, the Campany will recognize only the actual eamings in income. However,
the Company may change policynolder dividend scales in the future, which would be intended to increase future actual eamings until the actual
cumulative eamings equal the expected cumulative eamings.

Closed block liabilities -and assets designated to the closed block are as follows:
. December 31,

2004 2003
(Dollars in millions}

CLOSED BLOCK LIABILITIES

Future policy benefits ..................... P $42,348  $41,928
Other policyholder funds ................... U e 268 260
Policyholder dividends payable ............. B PP 690 682
Policyholder dividend obligation . . ... ... 2,243 2,130
Payables under securities loaned ransaclions . ... ... 4,287 6,418
Oter RIS v v oot e 199 180

Total closed bIoCK abiltiES . ..o r e e 50,026 51,598
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December 31,
2004 2003
{Dotliars in millions)

ASSETS DESIGNATED TO THE CLOSED BLOCK

Investments:
Fixed maturities available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost: $27,757 and $30, 381 respectuvety) 29,766 32,348
Equity securities, at fair value (cost: $898 and $217, reSPECHVEN) . . oo\ o vt Q79 250
Mortgage 08NS ONreal BSIatE . . ... . ottt e 8,165 7,431
Policy loans ........... e P - 4067 4,036
Short-term investments. . ... ..ol P U A 101 123
Ctherinvested assets . ... .. vvvne i R 221 108
ot VS BN S . . . e L 43,298 44,296
Cash and Cash BgQUIVEIBNTS .« . ...ttt e e et et e e 325 531
ACCIUBT IMVESIMENE INCOIME . . . . oottt et et e e e e e e et e e e e e 511 527
Deferred INCOME TXES . .. ..o o i 1,002 1,043
Premiums and other recaivables . ... . o e e 103 164
Total assets designated to the closed block . ................ S 45,240 46,581
Excess of closed block liabilities over assets designated to the closed block. ..................o. oL 4,785 5,037
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive 10ss: '
Net unrealized investment gains, net of deferred income tax of $752 and $730, respectively .......... 1,338 1,270
Unrealized derivative gains (losses), net of deferred income tax benefit of ($31) and ($28), respectively . . (55) (48)
Allocated from policyholder dividend obligation, net of deferred income tax benefit of ($763) and ($778),
TESPBCTIVELY .o S . (1,356) (1,352)
. ' 73 (130)
Maximum future eamings to be recognized from closed block assets and ligbllities .. ................ ... $ 4712 $ 4907

information regarding the policyholder dividend obligation is as follows:
Years Ended Dacember 31

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)
Balance at beginning Of year .. ... e $2,130 $1,882 $ 708
Impact on revenues, net of expenses and income taxes . .. P PP e 124 - —
Change in unrealized investment and derivative gains (losses) .. ... O e {11) 248 1,174
Balance atend of year ... e e e $2,243 $2130 91,882

Closed block revenues and expenses were as follows:
. . . Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions}

REVENUES L )
Y100t P $3,156 $3,365 33,551
Net investment iNCOMe and OthEr FBVENUES . . . . ..ot e e e et aaas 2,504 2,564 2,568
Net IVesImEnt GaINS (0SSO . oot e e e e (19) (128) 11
TOtAl TEVBNUES .« .t e e e e e . 5841 5,791 6,130
EXPENSES '
Policyholder benefits and Claims .. ..o e 3,480 3,660 3,770
Policyholder dividends. ... ..o T P 1,458 1,509 1,573
Change in policyholder dividend obligation. .. ... 124 — —
OB BXPBNSES . . . ettt 275 297 310
TOtEl EXPENSES - ..o v e JU SV PRSI 5337 5466 5653
Revenues net of expenses before income taxes. ........... Vo e I 304 325 477
OO TS .ttt et e e e e e e 109 118 173
Revenues net of expenses and income taxes . .......... N ... $ 195 § 207 $§ 304
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The change in maximum future eamings of the closed block is as follows:
- Years.Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions}
BAIANCE 8t SN0 OF VBRI « « . oo v e e e et e e e e e $4,712  $4,907 $5,114
Less: . :
Reallocation of 8SSetS . .o v e e e - — 85
Balance at beginning Of Yoar . . .t 4,907 5114 5,333
Change AUIANG YBAI . .. ..o e ettt et e SO U “$ (195) $ (207) $ (304)

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the allocation of assets 1o the closed block was revised to appropriately classify assets in accordance
with the plan of demutualization. The reallocation of assets had no impact on consolidated assets or liabilities.

Metropolitan Life charges the closed block with federal income taxes, state and local premium taxes, and other additive state or local taxes, as well
as investment management expenses relating to the closed block as provided in the plan of demutualization. Metropolitan Life also charges the closed
block for expenses of maintaining the policies included in the closed block.

7. Debt

Debt consisted of the following; Decamber 31
ecember 31,

2004 2003

. (Dollars in millions)
Senior notes, Interest rates ranging from 3.91% to 7.25%, maturity dates ranging from 2005 to 2034 . . .. .. $6,017 $4,256
Surplus notes, interest rates ranging from 7.00% to 7.88%, maturity dates ranging from 2006 to 2025 ..... 946 840
Fixed rate notes, interest rates ranging from 2.98% to 10.50%, maturity dates ranging from 2006 to 2006 .. 110 110
Capital lease cbligations ................. S N 66 74
Other notes wWith varying INtEreSt TAIES . .. ..ttt ettt et e 273 323
Total oNg- e Aot . o e e L7412 5,703
ot SOt e AED . o e e 1,445 3,642
OBl .« e e e $8,857 $9,345

The Company maintains committed and unsecured credit faciities aggregating $2.8 billion (31.1 bilion expiring in 2005, $175 milion expiring in
20086 and $1.5 billion expiring in 2009). If these facllities were drawn upon, they would bear interest at varying rates in accordance with the respective
agreements, The facilities gan be used for general corporate purposes and $2.5 billion of the faciiities also serve as back-up lines of credit for the
Company's commercial paper programs. At December 31, 2004, the Company had drawn approximately $56 million under the facilities expiring in 2005
at interest rates ranging from 5.44% to 6.38% and approximately ancther $50 million under the facility expiring in 2006 at an interest rate of 2.99%. i April
2003, the Company replaced an expiring $1 billion five-year credit facility with 2 $1 billion 364-day credit facility and the Holding Company was added as
a borrower. In May 2003, the Company replaced an expiring $140 million three-year credit facility with a $175 million three-year credit facility, which
expires in 2008. In April 2004, the Company rep\aced the $2.25 billion credit facilities expiring in 2004 and 2005, with a $1.0 billion 364-day credit facility
expiring in 2005 and a $1. 5 illion five- -year credit facility expiring in 2008. In July 2004, the Company renewed a $50 miflion 364-day credit facility.

At December 31, 2004, the Company had $961 milion in outstanding letters of credit from varlous banks.

Payments of interest and principal on the surplus notes, subordlnated to all other mdebtedness may be made only with the prior approval of the
insurance department of the state of domicile.

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the Company are $1,468 milion in 2005, $662 milion in 2006, $36 milion in 2007, $44 milion in
2008, $58 mitlicn in 2009 and $5,144 million thereafter,

Short-term debt of the Company consisted of commercial paper with a weighted average interest rate of 2.3% and a weighted average maturity of
27 days at December 31, 2004, Short-term debt of the Company included commercial paper with a weighted average interest rate of 1.1% and a
weighted average maturity of 31 days at December 31, 2008, The Company has no other collateralized borrowings at December 31, 2004. The
Company had other collateralized borrowings with a weighted average coupon rate of 5.07% and a weighted average maturity of 30 days at
December 31, 2003.

Interest expenge related to the Company's indebtedness included in other expenses was $428 million, $420 million and $288 mition for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

8. Shares Subject to Mandatory Redemption and Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Securities of Subsidiary Trusts

MetLife Capital Trust . In connection with MetLife, Inc.’s, initial public offering in April 2000, the Holding Company and Meilife Capital Trust | {the
"Trust”) issued equity security units (the “units”). Each unit originally consisted of () a contract to purchase, for $50, shares of the Holding Company's
common stock (the “purchase contracts”) on May 15, 2003; and (i} a capital security of the Trst, with a stated liquidation amount of $50.

In accordance with the terms of the units, the Trust was dissolved on February 5, 2003, and $1,008 milion aggregate principal amount of
8.00% debentures of the Holding Company (the “MetLife debentures”), the sole assets of the Trust, were distributed to the owners of the Trust's capital
securities in exchange for their capital securities. The MetlLife debentures were remarketed on behalf of the debenture owners on February 12, 2003 and
the interast rate on the Metlife debentures was resst as of February 15, 2003 to 3.911% per annum for a yield to maturity of 2.876%. As a result of the
remarketing, the debenture owners received $21 milion ($0.03 per diluted common share) in excess of the camying value of the capital securities. This
excess was recorded by the Company as a charge to additional paid-in capital and, for the purpose of calculating eamings per share, is subtracted from
net income to arrive at net income available to common shareholders.

On May 15, 2003, the purchase contracts associated with the units were settled. In exchange for $1,0086 milion, the Company issued 2.97 sheres
of MetLife, Inc. common stock per purchase contract, or 59.8 million shares of treasury stock. The excess of the Company's cost of the treasury stock
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{$1,662 miliion) over the contract price of the stock issued 1o the purchase contract holders ($1,008 mr]llon) was $656 million, which was recorded as a
- direct reduction to retained eamings.

Due to the dissolution of the Trust in 2003, there was no interest expense on capital securities for the year ended December 31, 2004. Interest
- expense on the capital securities is included in other expenses and was $10 million and $81 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2002,
-respectively.

GenAmerica Capital | -In June 1997, GenAmerica Corporation ("GenAmerica') issued $125 million of 8‘525% capital securities through a wholly-
owned subsidiary trust, GenAmerica Capital |. GenAmerica has fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, the obligation of the trust
under the capital securities and is obligated to mandatorily redeem the securities on June 30, 2027. GenAmerica may prepay the securities any time after
June 30, 2007. Capital securities outstanding were $119 million, net of unamortized discounts of $6 milion, at both, December 31, 2004 and 2003,
Interest expense on these instruments is included in other expenses and was $11 m1lhon for each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002.

RGA Capital Trust /. In December 2001, RGA, through its wholly-owned trust, RGA Capital Trust | {the “Trust”), issued 4,500,000 Preferred income
Equity Redeemable Securities ("PIERS”) Units. Each PIERS unit consists of (i} a praferred security issued by the Trust, having a stated liquidation amount
of $50 per unit, representing an undivided beneficial ownership interest in the assets of the Trust, which consist solely of junior subordinated debentures
issued by RGA which have a principal amount at maturity of $50 and a stated maturity of March 18, 2051, and {i) a warrant to purchase, at any time prior
to December 15, 2050, 1.2508 shares of RGA stock at an exercise price of $50. The fair market value of the warrant on the issuance date was $14.87
and is detachable from the preferred security. RGA fully and unconditionally guarantees, on a suberdinated basis, the obligations of the Trust under the
preferred securities. The preferred securities and subordinated debentures were issued at a discount (original issue discount) to the face or liquidation
value of $14.87 per security. The securities will accrete to their $50 face/liquidation value aver the life of the security on a level yield basis. The weighted
average effective interest rate on the preferred securiies and the subordinated debentures is 8.25% per annum. Capital securities outstanding were
$159 million and $158 milion for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, net of unamortized discount of $67 milion, at both
December 31, 2004 and 2003.

9. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for continuing operations was as follows: - :
N ) : . Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dotiars in millions}

- Current: . ‘ .
Federal ............ s e e e S e $ 733 3349 §79r
Stateandlocal .............. e e e e e e e e 51 22 (a7)
Forelgn ... P e 154 47 31
R : ! 938 418 811
 Defermed: C - * '
=T - [ U P 191 207 {338)
"State andlocal oo e S e P e - B 27 16
OB g et e e e e (B4) (12) 1
' 133 242 (321)

Provis&on for income taxes ...................................................................... $1,071 $660  $490

Reconciliations of the income tex prowsnon atthe U.S. statutory rate to the provision for inCome 1axes as reported for continuing operations were as
foﬂows
Years £nded December 31,

2004 2003 2002

_—(Do‘llars in millions} -

Tax provision at U.S. statutoryrate . ........oooo i P $1,323 $895 3561
Tax effect of: ) . )

Tax exempt IMVESIMENT INCOME . .+« .\ v e v e ettt et e e e e e e e P (131) (118) (88)

State and 10081 INCOME TBXES .+« v vt vttt e e 37 44 20

Prior year taxes .............. B e T e (105} 26y 7

Forsign operations net of foreign income taxes........ O P (36) 81) (m

Other,net............. e s e (17) (54) 5

Provision for income texes . ..o v O O o $1,07 $660 $490

The Company is under continuous examination by the Intemal Revenue ‘Service (IRS”) and other tax authorities in jurisdictions in vvh|ch the
Company has significant business operations: The Income tax years under ekamination vary by jurisdiction. In 2004 the Company recorded an
adiustment of $91 million for the settlerent of all federal income tax issues relating to the IRS's audit of the Compary's tax retums for the years 1997-
1999. Such settlement is reflected in the current year tax expense as an adjustment to prior year taxes. The Company also received $22 million in interest
on such settlement and incurred an $8 million tax expense on such settlement for a total impact to net income of $105 million. The current IRS

. examination covers. the years 2000-2002. The Company regularly assesses the likelihood of additional assessments in each taxing jurisdiction resutting
- from current and subsequent years’ examinations. Liabilities for income .taxes have been established for future income tax assessments when it is
probable there will be future assessments and the amount thereof can be reasonably estimated. Once established, liabilities for-uncertain tax positions

MetLife, Inc. F-35




METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

are adjusted only when there is more information available or when an event occurs necessitating a change to the liabilities.. The Company believes that
the resolution of income tax matters for open years will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements although the reso!utlon of
© income tax matters could impact the Company's effective tax rate for a particular future period.”
Deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabiities. Net deferred income tax
assets and liabilities consisted of the following:
December 31,
2004 T 2003
(Dollars in ‘millions)

Deferred income tax assets:

Policyholder liabilities and receivables ............. S SR " $3,082 $3725
Net operating 10sses .. ..ot e e 434 352
Capital loss carryforwards . ........ e ............. 118 1086
IRtANGIIES. e PP e e 12 120
Litigation related .. . ..o e . 85 86
[ 12 182 127
. . 4913 . 4516
Less: Valuation allowance .........c.oooveei oo P e 23 32
4,880 4,484

Deferred income tax hablhtles
Y1471 €T P e ey e e e 1,544 1,343
Deferred policy acquisition costs ... ..o iie i e e e e e e 3,965 3,595
By DBNES L . ottt e e e g1 . 131
Net unrealized investment gains. .. ... e e e 1,676 1,679
(6127 P 87 133
. 7,363 ©,881
“Net deferred InCome tax Aty . . . .o e e $(2,473) $(2,397)

Domestic net operating loss camyforwards amount to $985 milion at Decembier 31, 2004 and will expire beginning in 2014. Domestic capital loss
canyforwards amount to $278 million at December 31, 2004 and will expire beginning in 2005.- Foreign net operating loss carryforwards amount to
$304 million at December 31, 2004 and were generated in various foreign countries with expiration periods of five years to infinity.

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance related to tax benefits of certain foreign net operating loss camyforwards. The valuation allowance
reflects management's assessment, based on available information, that it is more likely than not that the deferred income tax asset for certain foreign net
operating loss camyforwards will not be realized. The tax benefit will be recognized when management believes that it is more likely than not that these
deferred income tax assets are realizable. In 2004, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $9 million for the reduction of the deferred income tax valuation
allowance related to certain foreign net operating loss canyforwards. '

10. Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

Litigation _

The Company is a defendant in a large number of fitigation matters. In some of the matters, very large and/or indeterminate amounts, including
~ punitive and treble damages, are sought. Modem pleading practice in the United States permits considerable variation in the assertion of monetary
damages or other relief. Jurisdictions may permit claimants not to specify the monetary damages sought or may penmit claimants to state only that the
amount sought is sufficient to invoke the jurisdiction of the trial court. In addition, jurisdictions may permit plaintiffs to allege monetary damages in amounts
well sxcesding reasonably possible verdicis in the jurisdiction for similar matters, This variability in pleadings, together with the actual experience of the
Company in Htigaiing or résolving through seftiement numerous claims over an extended period of tims, demonstrate to management that the monetary
relief which may be specified in a lawsuit or claim bears little relevance to its merits or disposition vaJue Thus unless stated below, the specific monstary
relief sought is not noted.

Due to the vagaries of litigation, the outcome of a litigation matter and the amount or range of potential loss at particular points in time may nomatly
be inherently impossible to ascertain with any degres of certainty. Inherent uncertainties can include how fact finders will view individually and in their
totality documentary evidence, the credibility and effectiveness of witnesses' testimony, and how trial and appellate courts will agply the law in the context
of the pleadings or evidence presented, whether by mation practice, or at trial or on appeal. Disposition valuations are aiso subject to the uncertainty of
how opposing parties and their counsel will themselves view the relavant evidence and applicable law.

On a quarterly and yeanly basis, the Company reviews relevant information with respect to fiabiitties for fitigation and contingencies to be refected in
the Company's consolidated financial statements. The review includes senior legal and financial personnel. Unless stated below, estimates of possible
additional losses or ranges of loss for particular matters cannot in the ordinary course be made with a reasonable degree of certainty. Labifities are
established when it is probable that a foss has been incurred and the amount of the foss can be reasonably estimated. It is possitle that some of the
matters could require the Company to pay damages or make other expenditures or establish accruals in amounts that could not be estimated as of
December 31, 2004. - ’ '

Sales Practices Claims : ‘ i

Over the past several years, Metropohtan Life, New England Mutual Life Insurance Company ("New EngJand Mutuai”) and General American Life
Insurance Company (‘General American”) have faced numerous claims,. including class action lawsuits, alleging improper marketing and sales of
individua! life insurance policies or annuities. These lawsuits are generally referred to as “sales practices claims.”
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In December 1998, a federal court approved a settlement resolving sales practices claims on behalf of a class of owners of permanent life insurance
policies and annuity contracts or certificates issued pursuant to individual sales in the United States by Metropolitan Life, Metropolitan Insurance and
Annuity Company or Metropolitan Tower Life Insurance Company between January 1, 1882 and December 31, 1997. The class includes owners of
approximately six million in-force or terminated insurance policies and approximately one miliion in-force or terminated annuity contracts or certificates.

Similar sales practices class actions against New England Mutual, with which Metropolitan Life merged in 1998, and General American, which was
acquired in 2000, have been settled. In October 2000, a federal court approved a settlement resolving sales practices claims on behalf of a class of
owners of permanent life insurance policies issued by New England Mutual between January 1, 1983 through August 31, 1996, The class includes
owners of approximately 800,000 in-force or terminated policies. A federal court has approved a settlement resolving sales practices claims on behalf of
a class of owners of permanent life insurance policies issued by General American between January 1, 19882 through December 31, 1396, An appeliate
court has affimed the oraer approving the settlement. The class includes owners of approximately 250,000 in-force or terminated policies.

Certain class members have opted out of the class action settiements noted above and have brought or continued non-class action sales practices
lawsuits. In addition, other sales practices lawsuits have been brought. 'As of December 31, 2004, there are approximately 328 sales practices lawsuits
pending against Metropolitan Life; approximately 42 sales practices lawsuits pending against New England Mutual, New England Life Insurance
Company, and New England Securities Corporation (collectively, "New England”), and approximately 54 sales practices lawsuits pending against
General American. Metropolitan Life, New England and General American continue to defend themselves vigorously against these lawsuits, Some
individual sales practices claims have been resolved through settiement, won by dispositive motions, or, in a few instances, have gone to trial. Most of
the current cases seek substantial damages, including in some cases punitive and treble damages and attomeys' fees. Additional litigation relating to the
Company's marketing and sales of individual life Insurance may be commenced in the future. ]

The Metropolitan Life class action settiement did not resolve two putatlve class actions involving sales practices claims filed against Metropolitan Life
in Canada, and these actions remain pending.

The Company believes adequate provision has been made in its consolidated financial statements for all probable and reasonably estimable losses
for sales practices claims against Metropolitan Life, New England and General American.

Regulatory authorities in a small number of states have had investigations or inguires relating to Metropolitan Life's, New England's, or General
American's salés of individual Iife insurance policies or annuities. Over the past several years, these and a number of investigations by other regulatory
authorities were resolved for monetary payments and certain other relief. The Company may continue to resolve investigations in a similar manner.

Asbestos-Related Claims

' Metropolitan Life is also a defendant in thousands of lawsuits seeking compensatory and punitive damages for personat injuries allegedly caused by
exposure to asbestos or asbestos-containing products. Metropolitan Life has never engaged in the business of manufacturing, producing, distributing or
seling asbestos or asbestos-containing products nor has Metropolitan Life issued liability or workers' compensation insurance to companies in the
business of manufacturing, producing, distributing or selling asbestos or asbestos-containing products. Rather, these lawsuits principally have been
based upon allegations relating to certain research, publication and other activities of one or more of Metropelitan Life's employees during the pericd from
the 1920's through approximately the 1950's and have alleged that Metropolitan Life leamed or should have leamed of certain health risks posed by
asbestos and, among other things, improperly publicized or failed to disclose those health risks. Metropolitan Life believes that it should not have legal
liabifity in such cases.

- Legal theorles asserted against Metropolitan Life have included negligence, intentional tort claims and conspiracy claims conceming the health risks
associated with asbestos. Although Metropolitan Life believes it has meritorious defenses to these claims, and has not suffered any adverse monetary
judgments in respect of these claims, due to the risks and expenses of litigation, almost all past cases have been rescived by settlements. Metropolitan
Life's defenses (beyond denial of certain factual allegations) to plaintifis’ claims include that: (i) Metropolitan Life owed no duty to the plaintiffs — it had no
special refationship with the plaintiffs and did not manufacture, produce, distribute or sell the asbestos products that allegedly injured plaintiffs; (i) plaintiffs
cannot demonstrate justifiable detdmental reliance; and (i) plaintiffs cannot demonstrate proximate causation. In defending asbestos cases, Metropolitan
Life selécts various strategies depending upon the jurisdictions in which such cases are brought and other factors which, in Metropolitan Life's judgment,
best protect Metropolitan Life's interests. Strategies include seeking to settle or compromise claims, motions challenging the legal or factual basis for
such claims or defending on the merits at trial. In 2002, 2003 or 2004, tial courts in Califomia, Utah, Georgia, New York, Texas, and Ohio granted
motions dismissing claims against Metropolitan Life on some or all of the above grounds. Other courts have denied motions brought by Metropolitan Life
to dismiss cases without the necessity of trial. There can be no assurance that Metropolitan Life will receive favorable decisions on motions in the future.
Metropolitan Life intends 1o continue to exercise its best judgment regarding settlement or defense of such cases, including when trals of these cases
are appropriate.

Metropolitan Life continues to study its claims experience, review extemal literature regarding asbestos claims experience in the United States and
consider numerous variables that can affect its asbestos liability exposure, including bankruptcies of other companies involved in asbestos litigation and
legislative and judicial developments, to identify trends and to assess their impact on the recorded asbestos liability.

Bankniptcies of other companies involved in asbestos litigation, as well as advertising by plaintiffs’ asbestos lawyers, may be resulting in an increase
in the cost of resolving claims and could resuft in an increase in the number of trials and possible adverse verdicts Metropolitan Life may experience.
Plaintiffs are seeking additional funds from defendants, including Metropolitan Life, in light of such bankruptcies by certain other defendants. In addition,
publicity regarding legislative reform efforts may result in an increase or decrease in the number of claims.
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The total number of asbestos personal injury claims pending against Metropolitan Life as of the dates indicated, the number of new claims during the
years ended on those dates and the total settlement payments made to resolve asbestos personal injury claims during those years are set forth in the

following table:
At or for the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)

Asbestos personal injury claims at year end (@pproximate) . .. ... i, ... 108,000 111,700 106,500
Number of new claims during the year (approximate) . ... .. 23,500 58,650 66,000

Sett!ementpaymenteduﬁngtheyearﬁ)..............,........................«... $ 855 $ 842 $ 951

(1) Settlement payments represent payments made by Metropolitan Life during the year in connection with settlements made in that year and in prior
years. Armounts do not include Metropolitan Life's attomeys' fees and expenses and do not reflect amounts received from insurance carers.

The Company believes adequate provision has been made in its consolidated financial statements for all probable and reasonably estimable losses
for asbestos-related claims. Tne ability of Metropolitan Life to estimate Its ultimate asbestos exposure is subject to considerable uncertainty due to
numerous factors. The availability of data is limited and it is difficult to predict with any certainty numerous variables that can affect fiability estimates,
including the number of future claims, the cost to resolve claims, the disease mix and severity of disease, the jurisdiction of claims filed, tort reform efforts
and the impact of any possible future adverse verdicts and their amounts.

The number of asbestos cases that may be brought or the aggregate amount of any liability that Metropolitan Life may ultimately incur is uncertain,
Accordingly, it is reasonably pessible that the Company's total exposure to asbestos claims may be greater than the liability recorded by the Company in
its consolidated financial statements and that future charges to income may be necessary. While the potential future charges could be material in
particular quarterly or annual periods in which they are recorded, based on information currently known by management, it does not believe any such
charges are likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position.

Metropolitan Life increased its recorded liability for asbestos-related claims by $402 million from approximately $820 million to $1,225 million at
December 31, 2002, This total recorded asbestos-related liability (after the self-insured retention) was within the coverage of the excess insurance
policies discussed below. Metropolitan Life regularly reevaluates its exposure from asbestos !mganon and has updated its liability analysis for asbestos-
related claims through December 31, 2004.

During 1998, Metropolitan Life paid $878 million in premiums for excess insurance policies for asbestos-related claims. The excess insurance
policies for asbestos-related claims provide for recovery of losses up to $1,500 million, which is in excess of a $400 milion salf-insured retention. The
asbestos-related policies are also subject to annual and per-claim sublimits. Amounts are recoverable under the policies annually with respect to claims
paid during the prior calendar year. Aithough amounts paid by Metropolitan Life in any given year that may be recoverable in the next calendar year under
the policies will be reflected as a reduction in the Company's operating cash flows for the year in which they are paid, management believes that the
payments will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's liquidity.

Each asbestos-related policy contains an experience fund and a reference fund that provides for payments to Metropolitan Life at the commutation
date if the reference fund is greater than zero at commutation or pro rata reductions from time to time in the loss reimbursements to Metropolitan Life if the
cumulative return on the reference fund is less than the return specified in the experience fund. The retum in the reference fund is tied to performance of
the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index. A claim was made under the excess insurance policies in 2003 and
2004 for the amounts paid with respect to asbestos litigation in excess of the retention. As the performance of the indices impacts the retum in the
reference fund, it is possible that loss reimbursements to the Company and the recoverable with respect to later periods may be less than the amount of
the recorded losses. Such foregone loss reimbursements may be recovered upon commutation depending upon future performance of the reference
fund. If at some point in the future, the Company believes the liability for probable and reasonably estimable losses for asbestos-related claims should be
increased, an expense wouldbe recorded and the insurance recoverable would be adjusted subject to the terms, conditions and. limits of the excess
insurance policies. Portions of the change in the insurance recoverable would be recorded as a deferred gain and amortized into Income over the
estimated remaining settlernent period of the insurance policies. The foregone loss reimbursements were approximately $8.3 milion with respect to 2002
claims, $15.5 million with respect to 2003 claims and are estimated to be $10.2 million with respect to 2004 claims and estimated to be approximately
$54 milion in the aggregate including future years,

Property and Casualty Actions

A purported class action has been filed against Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company's subsidiary, Metropolitan Casualty
Insurance Company, in Florida alleging breach of contract and unfair trade practices with respect to allowing the use of parts not made by the original
manufacturer to repair damaged automobiles. Discovery is ongoing and a motion for class certification is pending. Two purported nationwide class
actions have been filed against Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company in llincis. One suit claims breach of contract and fraud due to the
alleged underpayment of medical claims arising from the use of a purportedly biased provider fee pricing system. A motion for class certification has been
fled and discovery is ongoing, The second suit claims breach of contract and fraud arising from the alleged use of preferred provider organizations to
reduce medical provider fees covered by the medical claims portion of the insurance policy. A motion to dismiss has been filed.

A purported class action has been filed against Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company in Montana. This suit alleges breach of
contract and bad faith for not aggregating medical payment and uninsured coverages provided in connection with the several vehicles identified in
insureds’ motor vehicle policies. A recent decision by the Montana Supreme Court in a suit involving another insurer determined that aggregation is
required. Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company has posted adequate reserves to resolve the claims underlying this matter. The amount
to be paid will not be material to Metropolitan Property and Casualty insurance Company. Certain plaintiffs’ lawyers in another action have alleged that the
use of certain automated databases to provide total loss vehicle valuation methods was improper. Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance
Company, along with a number of other insurers, has tentatively agreed in January 2004 to resolve this issue in a class action format. The amount to be
paid in resolution of this matter will not be material to Metropolitan Property and Casualty insurance Company.
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Demutualization Actions

Several lawsuits were brought in 2000 challenging the faimess of Metropolitan Life’s p\an of reorganization, as amended (the “plan”) and the
adeguacy and accuracy of Metropolitan Life's disclosure 1o policyholders. regarding the plan. These actions named as defendants some or all of
Metropolitan Life, MetLife, Inc. (the “Holding Company"), the individual directors, the New York Superintendent of Insurance (the ““Superintendent”) and
the underwriters for MetLife, Inc.'s inftial public offering, Goldman Sachs & Company and Credit Suisse First Boston. On February 21, 2003, a trial court
within the commercial part of the New York State court granted the defendants’ motions to dismiss two purported class actions. On April 27, 2004, the
appellate court modified the trial court’s order by reinstating certain claims against Metropolitan Life, the Holding Company and the individual directors.
Plaintiffs in these actions have filed a consolidated amended complaint. Defendants’ motion to dismiss part of the-consolidated amended complaint, and
plaintiffs’ motion to - certify a litigation class are pend\ng Ancther purported class action fled in New York State court in Kings County has been
consolidated with this action. The plaintiffs in the state court class actions seek compensatory relief and punitive damages. Five persons have brought a
procseding under Article 78 of New York's Civil Practice Law and Rules chalflenging the Opinion and Decision of the Superintendent who approved the
plan. In this proceeding, petitioners seek to vacate the Superintendent's Opinion and Decision and enjoin him from granting final approval of the plan.
Respondents have moved to dismiss the proceeding. in a purported class action against Metropolitan Life and the Holding Company pending in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York, plaintiffs served a second consolidated amended complaint on April 2, 2004. In this
action, plaintifts assert viclations of the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the plan, claiming that the
Policyholder Information Booklets failed to disclose certain material facts. They seek rescission and compensatory damages. On June 22, 2004, the
court denied the dsfendants’ motion to dismiss the claim of violation- of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The court had previously denied
defendants’ motion to dismiss the claim for viclation of the Securities Act of 1933. On 'December 10, 2004, the court reaffimed its earfier decision
denying defendants’ motion for summary judgment as premature. Metrfopolitan Life, the Holding Company and the individual defendants believe they
have meritorious defenses to the plaintiffs’ claims and are contesting vigorously all of the plaintiffis’ claims in these actions.

In 2001, & lawsuit was filed In the Superior Court of Justice, Ontario, Canada on behalf of & proposed class of certain former Canadian policyholders
against the Holding Company, Metropohtan Life, and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company of Canada. Plaintiffs’ allegations concem the way that their
policies were treated in connection with the demutuahzatlon of Metrooohtan Life, they seek damages, declarations, and other non-pecuniary refief. The
défendants believe. they have meritorious defenses o tHe platntrﬁs claims and will Goritest vigorously all of plaintiffs’ claims in this matter.

On April 30, 2004, a tawsuit was flled in New York state court in New York County against the Holding Company and Metropolitan Life on behalf of a
proposed class comprised of the settlement class in the Metropolitan Life sales practices class action settlement approved in December 1999 by the
United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania. In July 2004, the plaintiffs served an amended complaint. The amended complaint
challenges the treatment of the cost of the sales practices settlement in the demutualization of Metropolitan Life and asserts claims of breach of fiduciary
duty, common law fraud, and unjust enrichment. Plaintiffs seek compensatory and punitive damages, as well as attomeys' fees and costs. The Holding
Company and Metropolitan Life have moved to dismiss the amended complaint. In October 2003, the United States District Court for the Western District
of Pennsylvania dismissed plaintiffs’ similar complaint afleging that the demutualization breached the terms of the 1999 settlement agreement and unjustly
enriched the Holding Company and Metropoiitan Life. The Holding Company and Metropolitan Life intend 1o contest this matter vigorously.

Race-Conscious Underwrtiing Claims :
~ Insurance departments in a number of states initiated i lnqumes in ZOOO about possible race-conscious underwntlng of life insurance. These inquiries
generally have been directed to all life insurers licensed In their respective states, including Metropolitan Life and certain of its affiiates. The New York
Insurance Department concluded its examination of Metropolitan Life concerning possible past race-conscious undemwriting practices. Cn April 28,
2003, the United States District Court for the' Southern District of New York approved a class action settlement of a consolidated action against
Metropolitan Life alleging racial discrimination in the marketing, sale, and administration of fife insurance policies. Metropolitan Life also entered into
settiement agreements to resolve the regulatory examination.

Twenty fawsults involving approximately 140 plaintiffs were filed in federal and state court in Alabama, Mississippi and Tennessee alieging federal
and/or state law claims of racial discrimination in connection with the sale, formation, administration or servicing of life insurance policies. Metropolitan Life
resolved the claims of some of these plaintiffs through settiement, and some additional plaintifis have voluntarily dismissed their claims. Metropoiitan Life
resolved claims of some additional persons who opted out of the seftlement class referenced in the preceding paragraph but who had not filed suit. The
actions filed in Alabama and Tennessee have been dismissed; one actlon filed in Mississippi remains pending. In the pending action, Metropolitan Life is
contesting plaintiffs’ claims vigorously.

The Company believes that adequate provision has been made 1o cover the costs associated with the resolution of these matters.

Other

A putative class action lawsuit is pending in the United States District Court for the District of Co!umbla in which p!auntaffs allege that they were
denied certain ad hoc pension increases awarded to retirees under the Metropolitan Lifa retirement plan. The ad hoc pension increases were awarded
only to retirees (i.e., individuals who were entitled to an immediate retirement benefit upon their termination of employment) and not available to individuals
like these plaintifis whose employment, or whose spouses’ employment, had terminated before they became eligible for an immediate retirement benefit.
The plaintiffs seek to represent a class consisting of former Metropolitan Life employees, or their surviving spouses, who are receiving deferred vested
annuity payments under the retirement plan and who were allegedly eligible to receive the ad hoc pension increases awarded in 1977, 1980, 1989,
1992, 1986 and 2001, as well as increases awarded in earlier years. Metropolitan Life is vigorously defending itself against these allegations.

As previously reported, the SEC is conducting a formal investigation of New England Securities Corporation (“NES”), a subsidiary of New England
Life Insurance Company (“"NELICO"), in response to NES :nform!ng the SEC that certain systems and controls relating to one NES advisory program were
not operating effectively. NES Is cooperating fully with the SEC.

Prior to fling the Company's June 30, 2003 Form 10-Q, Metufe announced a $31 milion charge; net of income taxes, resulting from certain
improperly deferred expenses at an affiiate, New England Financial. Metlifer ‘notified the SEC about the nature of this charge prior 10 its announcement.
The SEC is pursuing a formal investigation of the matter and, in December 2004, NELICO recelved a so-called “Welis Notice” in connection with the SEC
investigation. The Wells Notice provides notice that the SEC staff is considering recommending that the SEC bring a civil action alleging violations of the
U.S. securities laws. Under the SEC's procedures, a recipient can respond to the SEC staff before the staff makes a formal recommendation regarding
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whether any action alleging Vviolations of the U.S. securities laws should be considered. Metlife continues to cooperate fully with the SEC in its
investigation.

The American Dental Assoc&atnon and two individual providers have sued MetLife, Mutual of Omaha and Cigna in a purported class action lawsuit
brought in & Florida federal district court, The plaintiffs purport to represent a nationwide class of in-network providers who allege that their claims are
being wrongfully reduced by downcoding, bundiing, and the improper use and programming of software. The complaint alleges feceral racketeering and
various state law theories of liability. Metlife is vigorously defending the case and a motion to dismiss has been filed and argued.

On November 16, 2004, a New York state court granted plaintiffs’ motion 1o certify a litigation class of owners of certain participating life insurance
policies and a sub-class of New York owners of such policies in an action asserting that Metropolitan Life breached their policies and violated New York's
General Business Law in the manner in which it allocated investment income across lines of business during a period ending with the 2000
demutualization. Metropofitan has filed a notice of appeal from the order granting this motion. In August 2003, an appellate court aff rmed the dismissal of
fraud claims in this action. Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages. Metropolitan Life is vigorously defending the case.

Regulatory bodies have :contacted the Company and have requested information relating to market timing and late trading of mutual funds and
variable insurance products and, generally, the marketing of products. The Company believes that many of these inquiries are similar to those made to
many financial services companies as part of industry-wide investigations by various regulatory agencies. The SEC has commenced an investigation with
respect to market timing and late trading in a limited number of privately-placed variable insurance contracts that were sold through General American. As
previously reported, in May 2004, General American recelved a so called “Wells Notice” stating that the SEC staff is considering recommending that the
SEC bring a civil action alleging violations of the U.S. securities taws against General American. Under the SEC procedures, General American can avall
itself of the opportunity to respond to the SEC staff before it makes a formal recommendation regarding whether any action alleging violations of the
U.S. securities laws should be considered. General American has responded to the Wells Notice. The Company is fully cooperating with regard to these
information requests and investigations. The Company at the present time is not aware of any systemic problems with respect to such matters that may
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consclidated financial position.

in October 2004, the SEC informed MetLife that it anticipates issuing a formal order of investigation related to certain sales by a former MetLife sales
representative to the Sheriff's Department of Fulton County, Georgla. The Company is fully cooperating with respect to inquiries from the SEC.

The Company has réceived a number of subpoenas and other requests from the- Office of the Attomey General of the State of New York seeking,
among other things, information regarding and relating to compensation agreements between insurance brokers and the Company, whether Metlife-has
provided or is aware of the provision of “fictitious” or "inflated” quotes and information regarding tying arangements with respect 1o reinsurance. Based
upon an intemal review, the Company advised the Attomney General for the State of New York that MetLife was not aware of any instance in which MetLife
had provided a "fictitious” or “inflated” quote. MetLife also has received a subpoena, including a set of interrogatories, from the Office of the Attomey
General of the State of Connecticut seeking information and documents conceming contingent commission payments to brokers and Metlife’s
awareness of any "sham” bids for business. MatLife also has received a Civil Investigative Demand from the Office of the Attormey General for the State of
Massachusetts seeking information and documents conceming bids and quotes that the Company submitted to potential customers in Massachusetts,
the identity of agents, brokers; and producers to whom the Company submitted such bids or quotes, and communications with a certain broker. MetLife
is continuing to conduct an intemal review of its commission payment practices. The Company continues to fully cooperate with these ingulies and is
responding to the subpoenas and other requests.

Approximately twelve broker related lawsuits havé been received. Two class action lawsits were flled in the United States District Court for the
Southemn District of New York on behalf of proposed classes of all persons who purchased the securities of MetLife, Inc. between April 5, 2000 and
October 19, 2004 against MetLife, Inc. and certain officers of MetlLife, Inc. In the context of contingent commissions, the complaints allege that
defendants violated the federal securities laws by Issuing materially false and misleading statements and failing to disclose material facts regarding
Metlife, Inc.'s financial performance throughout the class pericd that had the effect of artificially inflating the market price of MetLife Inc.’s securities. Three
class action lawsuits were filed in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York on behalf of proposed classes of participants in
and beneficiaries of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company's Savings and Investment Plan against MetLife, Inc., the MetLife, Inc. Employee Benefits
Committee, certain officers of Metropolitan Life Insurance Company, and members of MetLife, Inc.’s board of directors. In the context of contingent
commissions, the complaints allege that defendants viclated their fiduciary obligations under ERISA by failing to disclose to plan participants who had the
option of allocating funds in the plan to the MetLife Company Stock Fund material facts regarding Metlife, Inc.’s financial performance. The plaintiffs in
these actions seek compensatory and other relief. Two cases have been brought in Califomia state court against MetLife, Inc., other companies, and an
insurance broker. One of these cases alleges that the insurers and the broker viclated Section 17200 of the Califomia Business and Professions Code by
engaging in unfair trade practices conceming contingent commissions and fees paid to the broker; the other case has been brought by the Califormnia
Insurance Commissioner and alleges that the defendants violated certain provisions of the Califomia Insurance Code. Additionally, two civil RICO or
antitrust related class action lawsults have been brought against MetLife, Inc., and cther companies in Califomia federal court with respect to issues
concerming contingent commigsions and fees paid to one or more brokers. Three class action lawsuits have been brought in llinois federal court against
MetLife, Inc. and other companies alleging that insurers and brokers viclated antitrust laws or engaged in civit RICO violations. The Company intends to
vigorously defend these cases.

in addition to those discussed above, reguiators and others have made a number of inquiries of the insurance industry regarding industry brokerage
practices and related matters and others may begin. It is reasonably possible that Mett.ife will receive additional subpoenas, interrogatories, requests and
lawsuits. MetLife will fully cooperate with all regulatory inquiries and intends to vigorously defend all lawsuits.

Metropolitan Life also has been named as a defendant in a number of silicosis, welding and mixed dust cases in various states, The Company
intends to defend itself vigorously against these cases. '

Various litigation, claims and assessments against the Company, in addition to those discussed above and those otherwise provided for in the
Company's consolidated financial statements, have arisen in the course of the Company's business, including, but not'limited to, in connection with its
activities as an insurer, employer, investor, investment advisor and taxpayer. Further, state insurance regulatory authorities and other federal and state
autherities regularty make inquides and conduct investigations conceming the Company’s compliance with applicable insurance and other laws and
regulations. :
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Surmmary

it is not feasible to predict or determine the ummate outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or provide reasonable ranges of
potential losses, except as noted above in connection with specific matters. In some of the matters referred to above, very large and/or indeterminate
amounts, including punitive and treble damages, are sought. Although in light of these considerations it is possible that an adverse cutcome in certain
cases could have a material adverse effect upon the Company's consolidated financial position, based on information currently known by the Company's
rmanagement, in its opinion, the outcomes of such pending investigations and legal proceedings are not likely to have such an effect. However, given the
large and/or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters and the inherent unpredictability of fitigation, it is possible that an adverse outcome
in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated net income or cash flows in particular quarterly
or annual periods.

Leases ‘ i N

In accordance with industry practice, certain of the Company's income from lease agreements with retail tenants is contingent upon the level of the
tenants’ sales revenues. Additionally, the Company, as lessee, has entered into various lease and sublease agreements for office space, data
processing and other equipment. Future minimum rental and sublease income, and minimum gross rental payments relating to these lease agreements
were as follows:

. Gross

s Rental Sublease Rental
' : income Income Payments

) (Dollars in millions)

2008 L e e e e $ 803 $19 $184
C200B e $ 582 $19 $163
2007 e e e e $ 541 $13 $137
D008 e $ 465 $10 $103
2008 ..t B PP e $ 400 $ 4 $ 77
Therealler ... .. $2.332 $12 $420

Commitments to Fund Partnership Investments
The Company makes commitments to fund partnership mvestmems in the nomnal course of business. The amounts of these unfunded commit-
menis were approximately $1,324 milion and $1,380 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company anticipates that these
amounts will be invested in the partnersh\ps over the next three to five years.

. Guarantees
. In'the course of its business, the Compariy has provided certain indemnities, guarantees and commitments to third parties pursuant to which it may
be required 10 make payments now or in the future.

In the context of acquisition, disposition, investment and other transactions, the Company has provided indemnities and guarantees, including those
related to fax, environmental and other specific fiabllities, and other indemnities and guarantees that are triggered by, among other things, breaches of
representations, warranties or covenants ‘provided by the Cofmpany. In addition, in the normal course of business, the Company provides indemnifica-
tions to counterparties in contracts with triggers similar to the foregoing, as well as for certain other liabilities, such as third party lawsuits. These
obligations are often subject to time limitations that vary in duration, including contractual limitations and those that arise by operation of law, such as
applicable statutes of limitation. In some cases, the maximum potential obligation under the indemnities and guarantees is subject to a contractual
limitation ranging from less than $1 million to $800 million, while in other cases such limitations are not specified or applicable. Since certain of these
obligations are not supbject to limitations, the Company does not believe that it is possible to’ determlne the maximum potential amount due under these
guarantees in the future.

in addition, the Company indemnifies its directors and officers as provided in its charters and by-laws. Also, the Company indemnifies other of its
agents for liabilities incurred as a result of their representation of the Company's interests. Since these indemnities are generally not subject to limitation
with respect to duration or amount, the Company does not believe that it is possible to determine the maximum potential amount due under these
indemnities in the future.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recorded liabilities of $10 milion with respect. to indemnities provided in certain
dispositions. The approximate term for these liabilties ranges from 12 to 18 months. The maximum potential amount of future payments that MetLife
could be required to pay is $73 million. Due to the uncertainty in assessing changes to the liabilities over the term, the fiability on the balance shest will
remain until efther expiration or sefflement of the guarantee unless evidence clearly indicates that the estimates should be revised. The fair value of the
remaining indemnities, guarantees and commitments entered into during 2004 was insignificant and thus, no liabilities were recorded. The Company's
recorded fiabilty at December 31, 2004 and 2003 for indemnities, guarantees and commitments, excluding amounts recorded dunng 2004 as
described in the preceding sentences, is insignificant.

In conjunction with replication synthetic asset transactions, as described in Note 3, the Company writes credit default swap obligations requiing
payment of principal due in exchange for the reference credit obligation, depending on the nature or occurrence of specified credit events for the
referenced entfties. In the event of a specified credit event, the Company’'s maximum amount at risk, assuming the value of the referenced credits
become worthless, is $1.1 billion at December 31, 2004. The credit default swaps expire at various times during the next seven years.

11. Employee Benefit Plans

Pension Benefit and Other Benefit Plans ‘
The Company is both the sponsor and administrator of defined benefit pension plans covering eligible employees and sales representatives of the
Company. Retirement benefits are based upon years of credited service and final average or career average eamings history.
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The Company also provides certain postemployment benefits and certain postretirement heaith care and life insurance benefits for retired employees
through insurance contracts. Substantially all of the Company’s employees may, in accordance with the plans applicable to the postretirement benefits,
become eligible for these bensfits if they attain retirement age, with sufficient service, while working for the Company.

The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for all of its pension and postretirement benefit plans.

Obligations, Funded Status and Net Periodic Benefit Costs

December 31,
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003
{Dollars in millions)

Change In projected benefit abligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year . ....... .. i 55260 $4,783 $2,090 $1,889
Service cost ........ P 129 123 32 39
INEEIEST COST L oot e 31 314 119 123
ACQUISHIONS and AIVeSIUIES . . o it e e e (3) (1) — —
Actuarial 108Ses (Qains) ... ..o e 147 351 (139) 167
Curailiments and temiNalioNS . . ..o r e e - 7) - {4)
Change IN DeNEfitS . ..ot e — 2) 1 M
Benefits Daid . . ..ot e (330) (292) {(128) (123)

Projected benefit obligation atend of year ... 5,623 5,269 1976 -2,090

Change In plan assets;

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year. ... .. o i i e e 4,728 4,051 1,005 966
Actual returm ON DlaN A8SEIS . . .ot i e 416 635 93 113
Acquisitions and diVeStIUrES . . ... e (@) (1) — —
Employer contribution ... ... ..o, e e e 581 335 a2 49
BenefitS Daid . . . oo (830) (292) (128) (123)

Fairvalue of plan assets at end of year. ... ..o oo i 5,392 4,728 1,062 1,005

Under fuNdad . ... e (131 (541) (913) (1,085)

Unrecognized net asset at ransition ... ..ot e 1 1 — —

Unrecognized net actuanial 10SSes .. ... i 1,610 1.451 198 362

Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COSE. ..ottt e e e e e 87 82 (165) (184)

Prepaid (accrued) benefit Cost . ... e $1,447 B 993 B (B79) $ (907)

Qualified plan Prepaid PENSION COSL. . .+ v+ v e e et e $1,782  $1,325

Non-qualiied plan accrued PENSION COSL «. .. v vt i 478) (474)

Intengible assats............ e e 13 14

Accumulated other comprehensive 1088 ... .oo oLl e 130 128

Prapaid DENEft GOSt . L ottt i e $1,447 $ 903

The aggregate projected benefit obligation and aggregate contract value of plan assels for the pension plans were as follows:

Qualified Plan Non-Qualified Plan Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
{Dollars in millions)
Aggregate fair value of plan assets (principally Company contracts) ... .. $5,392 $4,728 $ — $ — $5,392 $4,728
Aggregate projected bénefit obligation ....... ... 4,999 4,732 524 537 5,623 5,269
Over (Unden funded ..o e $ 393 B 4 PB4 $B3T B (131§ (541

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $5,149 milion and $4,899 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. .
Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

Deocember 31,
2004 2003
: (Dollars in millions)
Projected Denafil OlgalioN . . .. o $550 3557
Accumulated benefit obligation . ............... D $482 $469

Fair value of plan a8sets . .. oo $ 17 $ 14
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Information for pension and postretirement plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets: ‘

December 31,
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003
. : ) T {Doltars in millions)
Projected benefit OblIgation . .. ... e e, BBB0 $5,229 $1,975 $2,090
Fair vallue of plan @SS818 ...\ttt $17 $4673 31,082  $1,005

As a result of additional pension contributions and favorable investment retums during the year ended December 31, 2004, a significant plan that
was included in the pension benefits section of the above table as of December 31, 2003 was no longer included as of December 31, 2004. This plan
had a fair value of plan assets of $5,316 with a projected benefit obligation of $4,933 and a fair value of plan assets of $4,659 with a projected bensfit
obligation of $4,673 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension Benefits ' Other Benefits
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions}
SIVICE COSt . v ettt ettt e $129 $123 $105 $32 $ 39 5 36
eIt COSt Lt e 311 314 308 119 123 123
Expected retumn on plan assets L. ..o e (428) (835) (356) (77) (72) (93)
Amortization of prior actuarial losses (gains) and prior senvice cost ............ 17 102 33 (12) (12) (9)
Curailment Cost . ... e — 10 11 — 3 4
Net periodic benefit cost.......................... B $129  $214 3101 $62 9§81 61

The Company expects to receive subsidies on prescription drug benefits beginning in 2006 under the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement
and Modemization Act of 2003. The postretirement benefit plan assets and accumulated benefit obligation were remeasured effective July 1, 2004 in
order 1o determine the effect of the expected subsidies on net periodic postretirement benefit cost, As a result, the accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation was reduced $213 milion which will be recognized as adjustments of future benefit costs through the amortization of actuarial losses (gains) in
accordance with FASB staff position 106-2 on a prospective basis and net periodic postretirement beneftt cost for the year ended 2004 was reduced
$17 million. The reduction of net periodic benefit cost is due to reductions in service cost of $3 million, interest cost of $6 million, and amortization of prior
actuarial loss of $8 million.

Assumptions
Assumptions used in determining benefit obligations were as follows:
December 31,
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003
Weighted average diSCOUNE TBIE - -+« vt e e e L. 587% 6.12% 5.88% 6.12%
Rate of compensation INCIBASE .. ...t e e e 3%-8% 3%-8% N/A N/A

Assumptions used in determining net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

December 31,

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
“Weighted average diSCOUNT a8 ... oo vt i 6.10% 6.74% 7.23% 620% 682% 7.40%
Weighted average expected rate of retumon planassets...............o0 8.50% 851% 92.00%. 7.91% 7.79% B.16%
Rate of compensation INCrease . . ..o i vt e 3%-8% 3%-8% 2%-8% N/A N/A N/A

The discount rate is based on the vield of a hypothetical portfolio of high-quality debt instruments available on the valuation date, which would
provide the necessary future cash flows to pay the aggregate projected benefit obligation when due. The expected rate of retum on plan assets is based
on anticipated performance of the various asset sectors in which the plan invests, weighted by target allocation percentages. Anticipated future
performance is based on long-term historical retums of the plan assets by sector, adjusted for the Company's long-term expectations on the
performance of the markets. While the precise expected return derived using this approach will fluctuate from year to year, the Company's policy is to
hold this long-term assumption constant as long as it remains within reasonable tolerance from the derived rate. The weighted expected retum on plan
assets for use in that plan's valuation. in 2005 rs currently anticipated to be 8.50% for pension benefits and other postretirement medical benefits and
6.25% for postretirement life benefits.

The assumed health care cost trend rates used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation were as follows:

December 31,
2004 2003
Pre-Medicare eligible claims . ... e 8% down to 5% in 2010 8.5% down to 5% in 2010
Medicare eligible Claims . .. ... .. 10% down to 5% in 2014 10.5% down to 5% in 2014
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Assumed health care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage point change in
assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

One Percent  One Percent
Increase Decrease

(Dollars in millions)

Effect on total of service and interest CoOSt CoMPONENtS ... it i e $ 10 $ ©
Effect of accumulated postretirement benefit obligation. .. ..o $104 $(100)

Plan Assets )
The weighted average aliocation of pension plan and other benefit plan assets is as follows:

December 31,
Pension
Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003
Asset Category _ :
Equity securities. . . ... e e e e e e e e e e e e 50% 48% 41% 38%
X AU S . ..ottt ettt ettt e e - 36% 39% 57% 61%
Other (Real Estate and Altemative INvestMEntS) . . ..o v vt et i e r e iie e 4% 13% 2% 1%
OBl e e e e e e, 100%  100%  100%  100%
The weighted average target allocaticn of pension plan and other benefit plan assets for 2005 Is as follows:
‘ Pension Other
Benefits Benefits
Asset Category , .
Equity securnties ... ....oo i el e 30%-65%  25%-45%
Fixed matunties . ... i e e e N 20%-70%  45%-70%
Other (Real Estate and Afternative Investments)............. e e P O 0%-25% 0%-10%

Targst allocations of assets are determined with the objective of maximizing retums and minimizing volatility of net assets through adeguate asset
diversification. Adjustments are made to target allocations based on an assessment of the impact of economic factors and market conditions.

Cash Flows » )
The Company expects 10 contribute $32 million to its pension plans and $93 million to its other benefit plans during 2005,
Gross benefit payments for the next ten years, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected to be as follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
_ {Dallars in mim_r-i—s—)_

2005 .o O $ 302 $122
20008 et e e e e $ 314 $126
2007 e e e e e e e e e e $ 321 $131
20 e e e e e e e e $ 334 $135
2000 L e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 344 $139
2010-2014 .. .o e e e e e e e g e $1,900 $748

Gross subsidy payments expected to be réceived for the next ten years under the Medicare Prescription Drug, improvement and Modemization Act
of 2003 are as follows:

Other Benefits

(Dollars in

. millions)
2005 . e e R e $—
2008, .., e $10
007 e e $10
008 . e e ) $11
2009 e e R

201020 e e e e e i $69

Savings and Investment Plans
The Company sponsors savings and investment plans for substantially ali employees under which the Company matches a portion of employee
contributions. The Company contributed $64 million, $58 million and $58 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

12. Equity

Preferred Stock
On September 29, 1999, the Holding Company adopted a stockholder rights plan (the "rights plan”) under which each outstanding share of
common stock issued between April 4, 2000 and the distribution date (as defined in the rights plan) will be coupled with a stockholder right. Each right
will entitle the hoider to purchage one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. Each one one-hundredth of a share o
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Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock will have economic and voting terms equivalent to one share of common stock, Until it is exercisea, the right
itself will not entitle the holder thereof to any rights as a stockholder, including the right to receive dividends or to vote at stockholder meetings.

Stockholder rights are not exercisable until the distribution date, and wil expire at the close of business on April 4, 2010, unless earfier redesmed or
exchanged by the Holding Company. The rights -plan is designed to protect stockholders in the event of unsolicited offers to acquire the Holding
Company and other coercive takeover tactics.

Common Stock

On October 26, 2004, the Holding Company's Board of Directors authorized a $1 billion common stock repurchase program. This program began

after the completion of the February 19, 2002 and March 28, 2001 repurchase programs, each of which authorized the repurchase of $1 billion of

- common stock. Under these authorizations, the Holding Company may purchase common stock from the Mettife Policyholder Trust, in the open market
and in privately negotiated transactions. As of January 31, 2005, the Holding Company has suspended its share repurchases during 2005 and
repurchases after 2005 will be dependent upon several factors, including the Company's capital position, its financial strength and credit ratings, general
market conditions and the price of the Company’s common stock.

On December 18, 2004, the Holding Company repurchased 7,281,553 shares of its outstanding common stock at an aggregate cost of
approximately $300 million'under an accelerated share repurchase agreement with a major bank. The Holding Company will either pay or receive an
amount based on the actual amount paid by the bank to purchase the shares. The final purchase price will be settled in either cash or Holding Company
stock at the Holding Company's option. The Holding Company recorded the initial repurchase of shares as treasury stock and will record any amount
paid or received as an adjustment. to the cost of the treasury stock.

The Company acquired 26,373,952, 2,997,200 and 15,244,492 shares of the Holding Company's common stock for $1,000 million, $87 milion
and $471 million during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the year ended 2004, 1,675,814 shares of common
stock were issued from treasury stock for $50 million. During the year ended 2003, £9,904,925 shares of treasury common stock with a cost of
$1,667 milion were issued of which 58,771,221 shares were issued in connection with the settiement of common stock purchase contracts (see
Note 8) for $1,006 million cash and 133,704 shares were issued in connection with activities such as share-based compensation for $5 million in cash.
During the year ended 2002, 16,379 shares of common stock were issued from treasury stock for $438 thousand. At December 31, 2004, the
Company had $710 million remaining on its existing share repurchase authorization.

Dividend Restrictions

Under New York State Insurance Law, Metropolitan Life is permitted, without prior insurance regulatory clearance, to pay a dividend to the Holding
Company as long as the aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the lesser of (i) 10% of its surplus to policyholders
as of the immediately preceding calendar year, and {ji) its statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year {excluding

"realized capital gains). Metropolitan Life will be pemmitted to pay a dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the lesser of such two amounts only if it
files naotice of its intention to declare such a dividend and the amount thereof with the New York Superintendent of Insurance ( the "Superintendent") and
the Superintendent does not disapprove the distribution. Under New York State Insurance Law, the Superintendent has broad discretion in determining
whether the financial condition of a stock life insurance company would support the payment of such dividends to its stockholders. The New York State
Department of Insurance has established informal guidelines for such determinations. The guidelines, among other things, focus on the insurer's overall
financial condition and profitability under statutory accounting practices. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, Metropolitan Life paid
to MetLife, Inc. $797 million, $698 million and $535 million, respectively, in dividends for which prior insurance regulatory clearance was not required and
$O million, $750 million and $362 million, respectively, in special dividends, as approved by the Superintendent. At December 31, 2004, the maximum
amount of the dividend which may be paid to the Holding Company from Metropolitan Life in 2005, without prior regulatory approval is $880 million,

Under Delaware Insurance Law, Metropolitan Tower Life Insurance Company ("MTL") is permitted, without prior insurance regulatory clearance, to
pay a dividend to the Holding Company as long as the aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the greater of
(i) 10% of its surplus to policyholders as of the next preceding calendar year, and (i) its statutory net gain from operations for the next preceding calendar
year (excluding reglized capital gains). MTL will be permitted to pay a cash dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the greater of such two
amounts only if it files notice of its intention to declare such a dividend and the amount thereof with the Delaware Commissioner of Insurance (the
“Delaware Commissioner") and the Delaware Commissioner does not disapprove the distribution. Under Delaware Insurance Law, the Delaware
Commissioner has broad discretion in determining whether the financial condition of a stock life insurance company would support the payment of such
dividends to its stockholders. The Delaware Insurance Department has established informal guidelines for such determinations. The guidelines, among
other things, focus on the insurer's overall financial condition and profitability under statutory accounting practices. On October 8, 2004, Metropolitan
Insurance and Annuity Company (“MIAC") was merged into MTL. Prior to the merger, MIAC paid 10 MetLife, Inc. $85 million in dividends for which prior
insurance regulatory clearance was not required and no special dividends for the year ended December 31, 2004. For the year ended December 31,
2003, MIAC paid to MetLife, Inc, $104 million in dividénds for which prior insurance regulatory cledrance was not required and $94 milion. in special
dividends. For the year ended December 31, 2002, MIAC paid to MetLife, Inc. $25 million in dividends for which prior insurance regulatory clearance was
not required and paid no special dividends. MTL, exclusive of MIAC, paid no dividends during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. As of December 31, 2004, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be. paid to the Holding Company from MTL in 2005, without
prior regulatory approval, is $119 million.

Under Rhode Island Insurance Law, Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company is permitted without prior insurance regulatory
clearance to pay a dividend to the Holding Company as long as the aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the
lesser of (i) 10% of its surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year, and (i) the next preceding two year eamings reduced by
capital gains and dividends paid to stockholders. Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company will be permitted to pay a stockholder dividend
to the Holding Company in excess of the lesser of such two amounts (an “extraordinary dividend”) only if it files notice of its intention to declare such a
dividend and the amount thereof with the- Rhode Island Comimissioner of Insurance (“Rhode Island Commissioner”) and the Rhode Island Commissioner
does not disapprove the distribution. Under Rhode Island-Insurance Law, the Rhode Island Commissioner has broad discretion in determining whether
the financial condition of stock property and casualty insurance company would support the payment of such dividends to its stockholders. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company paid to Metlife, Inc. $300 million in extraordinary dividends.

MetLife, Inc. F-45




METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Insurance regulatory approval of the extraordinary dividend was received on October 15, 2004 and the extraordinary dividend was paid on October 25,
2004. For the year ended December 31, 2003, Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company paid to MetLife, Inc. $75 million in dividends for
which prior insurance regulatory clearance was not required. As of December 31, 2004, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be paid to the
Holding Company from Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company in 2005, without prior regulatory approval, is $187 million for dividends
with a scheduled date of payment subseguent to November 16, 2005. Any dividend payment prior to November 16, 2005 will be considered
extraordinary requiring prior insurance regulatory Clearance.

Stock Compensation Plans )

Under the MetLife, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, (the “Stock Incentive Plan”), awards granted may be in the form of non-qualified or
incentive stock options qualifying under Section 422A of the Intemal Revenue Code. Under the MetLife, Inc. 2000 Directors Stock Plan, as amended (the
"Directors Stock Plan"}, awards granted may be in the form of stock awards, non-qualified stock options, or a combination of the foregoing to outside
Directors of the Company. The aggregate number of options to purchase shares of stock that may be awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan and the
Directors Stock Plan Is subject to a maximum timit of 37,823,333, of which no more than 378,233 may be awarded under the Directors Stock Plan, The
Directors Stock Plan has a maximum limit of 500,000 stock awards.

All options granted have an exercise price equal to the fair market value price of the Company's common stock on the date of grant, and an option’s
maximum term is ten years. Certain options under the Stock Incentive Plan become exercisable over a three year period commencing with the date of
grant, while other options become exercisable three years after the date of grant. Opt\ons issued under the Directors Stock Plan are exercisable
immediately.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes opt\ons pricing model with the following weighted

average assumptions used for grants for the:
Years Ended December 31,

_ 2004 2003 2002
DIMIdENd VIl . 0.70% 0.68% 0.68%
Risk-free rate Of returm .. oo e 3.69% 5.07% 5.71%
R = 11 PP 34.85% 37.39% 31.62%
Expected duration. . ... e e e e e e e e Gyears OGyears 6 vyears
A summary of the status of options included in the Company's Stock Incentive Plan and Directors Stock Plan is presented below;
Weighted Weighted
Average Options Average
. Options Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2002 ... .o v ettt 11,116,684 $29.93 - $ -
Granted . ..ot 7,275,855 $30.35 — $ -
BXEIGISEA . v v e ettt e e e e e (11,401) $29.95 — 3 -
Canceled/EXpIred . ... (2,121,608) $30.07 - $ -
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 ...ttt e e 16,259,630 $30.10 1,357,034 $30.01
G 1¢=101="o A O P 5,634,439 $26.13 — $ -
EXEICISE . .o o e (20,054) $30.02 — $ —
CanCelea/EXDINEd . ..\ e e (1,678,987) $29.45 — $ -
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 ............... N 20,285,028 $29.05 4,566,265 $30.15
L 1o O 5,074,206 $35.28 — $ -
EXEICISEA . . o e (1,484,865) $29.70 — $ -
CanCEIBA/EXDIrEd . . .o e (642,268) $30.27 — 5 -
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 ... i e 23,262,101 $30.33 12,736,500 $29.57
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Weighted average fair value of options granted . ... ... i $13.25 $10.47 $10.48
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004:
. Number
Number Weighted Average Weighted Exercisable at, Weighted
Outstanding at Remaining Contractual * Average December 31, Average
Range of Exercise Prices December 31, 2004 Life (Years) Exercise Price 2004 Exercise Price
$23.75 - $27.55 5,118,385 7.95 $26.02 1,697,554 - $26.05
$27.55 — $31.35 13,061,369 631 $30.13 10,956,828 $30.09
$31.35 - $35.15 287,844 6.69 $33.31 62,840 $32.94
$35.15 — $38.95 4,788,503 8.92 $35.28 19,278 $35.26
$38.95 — $40.38 8,000 9.92 $40.16 — F -

23,262,101 7.22 $30.34 12,736,500 $29.57

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company elected to prospectively apply the fair value method of accounting for stock options granted by the Holding
Company subsequent to December 31, 2002. As permitted under SFAS 148, options granted prior to January 1, 2003 will continue to be accounted for

F-46 ) ‘ MetLife, Inc.




METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

under APB 25. Had compensation expense for grants awarded prior to January 1, 2003 been determined based on fair value at the date of grant in
accordance with SFAS 123, the Company’s eamings and eamings per share amounts would have been reduced to the following pro forma amounts:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions, except
. per share data)

N7 077! 227 T O DY $2,758 2,217  $1,605
Charge for conversion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of a subsidiary trust(1) ... .. — (21) —
Net income available 10 CommMon Sharenoldars .. . ... $2,758 $2196 $1,605
Add: Stock option-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of income :

LT A T S $ 26 5 11 % 1
Deduct: Total stock option-based employee compensation determined under fair value based method for all

awards, net of income taxes ...... T $ (44 & 400 $ (3B
Pro forma net income available to common shareholders(2) . ... ... L. $2,740 82,167  $1,573
Basic earnings per share ‘
IR (=)o 1 N O O $3688 $298 § 228
PrO fOMIB2) .« . et ettt e e $365 $294 $ 223
Diluted earnings per share »
AS TBPOMEA L ettt e $365 $294 $ 220
o]0 e $363 $280 § 215

{1) See Note 8 for a discussion of this charge included in the calculation of net income available to common shareholders.
{2) The pro forma earnings disclosures are not necessarily representative of the effects on net income and eamings per share in future years,

The Company also awards stock-based compensation to certain levels of management under the Company's Long Term Performance Compensa-
tion Plan (“LTPCP"). LTPCP awards vest in their entirety at the end of the three year performance pericd. Each participant is assigned a target
compensation amount at the inception of the performance period with the final compensation amount determined by the performance of the Holding
Company's stock over the three-year vesting period, subject to management's discretion. Final awards may be paid in whole or in part with shares of the
Holding Company's stock. Compensation expense related 1o the LTPCP was $48 million, $45 million, and $23 million for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. : '

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, stock-based compensation expense related to the Company's Stock Incentive Plan,
Directors Stock Plan and (TPCP was $89 milion, $63 milicn and $25 mi,!;gqn, respectively, including stock-based compensation for non-employees of
$468 thousand, $550 thousand and $2 million, respectively.

Statutory Equity and Income

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC") adopted the Codification of Statutory Accounting Principles (“Codification”) in 2001,
Codification was intended 1o standardize regulatory accourting and reporting to state insurance departments. However, statutory accounting principles
continue to be established by individual state laws and permitted practices. The New York State Department of Insurance has adopted Codification with
certain modifications for the preparation of statutory financial statements of insurance companies domiciled in New York. Modifications by the various
state insurance departments may impact the effect of Codification on the statutory capital and surplus of Metropolitan Life and the Holding Company's
other insurance subsidiaries.

Statutory accounting practices differ from GAAP primarily by charging policy acquisition costs to expense as incurred, estabiishing future policy
benefit liabiliies using different actuarial assumptions, reporting surplus notes as surplus instead of debt and valuing securities on a different bagls.

Statutory net income of Metropolitan Life, a New York domiciled insurer, was $2,648 milion, $2,169 milion and $1,455 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 2003 and 2002, raspectively. Statutory capital and surplus, as filed with the New York State Department of Insurance, was
$8,804 million and $7,967 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

MIAC was merged into another Delaware incorporated entity, MTL, on October 8, 2004. Statutory net income of MTL (including MIAC), as filed with
the Delaware Insurance Department, was $144 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Statutory net income of MIAC, as filed with the Delaware
Insurance Department, was $341 million and $34 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus
of MTL, as filed, was $1,195 milion as of December 31, 2004. Statutory capital and surplus of MIAC, as filed, was $1,051 million at December 31,
2003. )

Statutory net income of Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Cornpany, which is domiciled in Rhode Island, as filed with the Insurance
Department of Rhode Island, was $356 milion, $214 million and $173 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Statutory capital and surplus, as filed, was $1,875 milion and $1,996 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
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Other Comprehensive Income
The following table sets forth the reclassification adjustments required for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 in other
comprehensive income (loss) that are included as part of net income for the current year that have been reported as a part of other comprehensive
income (loss) in the current or prior year:
. Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Holding gains on investments anising QUG the YEaM . . .. ...t vt e e et $513 $1,497 $3.387

INcome tax effact Of NOIING GaINS ...ttt e et e e e e e e 74 (582) (1,064
Reclassification adjustments: » ‘

Recognized helding (gains) losses included in cument year NCOMe . ..o v vt (218) 382 704

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts associated with investments .......ov v, (94) {(168) (526)

Income tax effect ... ..o e e (45) (81) (56}
Allocation of holding losses on investments relating to other policyholder amounts .. ..ot (182) B08) (2,977)
iIncome tax effect of allocation of holding losses to other policyholder amounts . .o oo eee i n. e (26) 228 935
Net unrealized INvestment gaiNs (J0SSES) - ..ttt i it e et e e e 22 690 403
Foreign currency franslation adiustment . . ... i i e 144 177 (69)
Minimum pension liabifity. adUSIMENT . . .. e e e e e e e 2) (82) —
Other comprenenSIve INCOME (I0SSES) .+ .+ oottt t ettt e ettt e e ettt et et $164 & 785 $ 334

13. Other Expenses

Other expenses were comprised of the following:
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
" (Dollars in millions)

COMDENSAION . vt e ettt ettt e e e e et e e e e $2874 $2707 $2,499
Commissions ......... AP 2,876 2,474 2,000
Interest and debt ISSUE GOSES . ...ttt 408 478 403
Amortization of policy acquUISIION COSIS .« .. e e e P 1,905 1,787 1,644
Capitalization of policy acquisition COSES ... ..ot e e (8,101} (2,792) (2,340)
Rent, Nt Of SUDIBASE NCOME L . . ettt e et e et e e e e e et e e e 264 254 295
MINOMEY IMEIES .« ot D 152 110 73
OB et e e e 2383 2073 2,239
Ot O BXDBNSES . . o ettt ettt e e e e e e $7.761 $7,091 $6,813
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14. Earnings Per Share

The following presents the weighted average shares used in calculating basic eamings per share and those used in calculating diluted eamings per
share for each income category presented below:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
. ) (Dollars in millions, except share and per share data)

Weighted average common stock outstanding for basic eamings per share ........... 749,695,661 737,903,107 704,599,115
-Incremental shares from assumed: : /

Conversion of forward purchase Comtracts ..o v vt ae e — 8,293,269 24,596,950

Exercise of stock options. oo vv e e L 4,053,813 68,111 5,233

Issuance under deferred stock COMPENSatoN. ... 1,083,970 579,810 -
Weighted average common stock outstanding for diluted eamings per share .......... 754,833,444 746,844,297 729,201,208
Income from continuing operations ... ........................ PO 3 2,708 & 1899 $ 1,113
Charge for conversion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable

securities of a subsidiary trust(1) ...l — (21) —
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders per .

share.................. ST R $ 2,708 $ 1878 § 1,113

B ottt 3 361 3 255 8 1.58

DB oot $ 359 § 251§ 1.53
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, available to

common shareholders pershare ................ .. ... .. ... .. ... ... 0. $ 136 8 344 % 492

BaSIC .+ o et e e $ 018 & 047 $ 0.70

1001 P 3 018 3 046 $ 0.67
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of income taxes, per share $ 86) $ (26) $ —

Basic ............ T SO i 3 011 $ 0.04) $ —

DIUtEd .« et P S P 3 0.11) $ 0.03) $ —
Net INCOMEe . .. e 3 2,758 $ 2217 $ 1,605

. Charge for conversion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable ’

securities of a subsidiary trust(1) ........... ... ... ... — 1) —
Net income available to common shareholders pershare .................... 5 2,758 3 2,186 3 1,605

o S A PP P $ 368 § 298 3 2.28

DT oo . SO R $ 365 $ 294 3 2.20

(1) See Note 8 for a discussion of this charge included in the calculation of net income available to common shareholders.

\
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15. Quarterly Resuits of Operations (Unaudited)
The unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized in the table below:
Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share data) -

2004 '
Total revenues .. .. oo FR 39,426 $9,479 $10,047 $10,062
TOM EXDENSES .« vt vttt et e e $8,471 $8,389 $ 9,048 $ 9,327
Income from coNntiNUING OPEIAHONS . . vt vt e vt e et e $ 655 $ 843 $ 698 $ 512
Income from discontinued operations, net of iIncome taxes ................. $ 29 $ 111 3 3) $ %)
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting . ................ . % 684 $ 954 $ 695 $ 511
1= g oo} 21 T A $ 5e8 $ 954 $ 6% $ 511
Basic eamings per share:
Income from continuihg operations available to common shareholders ... ... $ 087 $ 112 3 093 3 0868
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ......... DU $ 004 $ 015 3 - 3 -
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting available to
COmMMON ShAENOIAETS . ..\ ottt e e $ 0.90 $ 1.27 $ 093 $ 0869
Net income available to common shareholders ...t $ 079 $ 127 $ 093 $ 069
Diluted eamings per share:
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders . ... .. $ 0.86 $ 1.1 $ 093 $ 088
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ............... $ 0.04 $ 015 $ — $ -
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting available to
COMMON ShareNOIGETS .. ...t e $ 0.90 $ 126 $ 092 $ 068
Net income available to common shareholders .........ooovvviiin.s. $ 0.79 $ 1.26 $ 092 $ 068
2003 :
Total FBVENUES . .. oot e $8,269 $8,809 $ 8,718 $ 9529
TOtAl EXOBNSES . v vttt et e e e e $7,872 $8,036 $ 8,027 $ 8,831
Income from continuiNg ORBIALIONS .+« vt vt et e et e e eea e $ 287 $ 564 $ 549 $ 499
income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes .........: e $ 75 $ 16 $ 25 $ 208
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting . ................ $ 362 $ 580 $ 574 $ 727
NELINCOME & 4t e et e et et e e s e e e $ 362 $ 580 $ 574 $ 701
Basic eamings per share:
Income from continuing operations available to common sharsholders . ..... 3 0.38 $ 077 $ 072 $ 066
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ............... 3 011 $ 002 $ 003 $ 030
Income before cumulative effect of a change in accounting available to
COMMON ShAMENOIGETS L . . et e et ettt $ 0.49 $ 0.79 $ 078 $ 095
Net income available to common shareolders ............ooeeeiiin.. $ 049 8 079 & 075 $ 092
Diluted eamings per share: )
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders ... ... 3 037 % 077 $ 072 $ 066
income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ............... $ Q.10 $ 0.02 $ 003 $ 030
Income before cumutative effect of a change in accounting available to
COmmMON ShArBOITEYS « ... ot i 3 047 $ 0.79 $ 075 $ 095
Net income avallable to common shareholders ..........coeiii ... $ 047 $ 078 $ Q75 $ 092

16. Business Segment Information

The Company provides insurance and financial services to customers in the United States, Canada, Central America, South America, Asia and
various other international markets. The Company's business Is divided into five operating segments: Institutional, Individual, Auto & Home, Intemational
and Reinsurance, as well as Cerporate & Other. These segments are managed separately because they either provide different products and services,
require different strategies or have different technology requirements.

Institutional offers a broad range of group insurance and retirement & savings products and services, including group life Insurance, non-medical
health insurance, such as short and long-term disability, long-term care, and dental insurance, and other insurance products and services. Individual
offers a wide variety of protection and asset accumulation products, including life insurance, annuities and mutual funds. Auto & Home provides personal
. lines property and casualty insurance, including private passenger automobile, homeowner's and personal excess liability insurance. intemational
provides life insurance, accident and health insurance, annuities and retirement & savings products to both individuals and groups. Reinsurance provides
primarily reinsurance of life and annuity policies in North America and various international markets. Additionally, reinsurance of critical illness policies is
provided in select interational markets.

Corporate & Qther contains the excess capltal not alfocated to the business segments, various start-up entities, including MetLife Bank, N.A,
("Metlife Bank”), a national bank, and run-off entities, as well as interest expanse related to the majority of the Company's outstanding debt and
expenses associated with certain legal proceedings and income tax audit issues. Corporate & Other also includes the elimination of all intersegment
amounts, which generally relate to intersegment loans, which bear interest rates commensurate with related borrowings, as well as intersegment
transactions. Additionally, the Company's asset management business, including amounts reported as discontinued operations, is included in the results
of operations for Corporate & Other. See Note 18 for disclosures regarding discontinued operations, including real estate,

Set forth in the tables below is certain financial information with respect to the Company's operating segments for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those of the Company, except for the method of capital aliocation and
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the accounting for gains (fosses) from intercompany sales, which are eliminated in consolidation. The Company allocates capital to each segment based
upon an interal capital allocation system that allows the Company to more effectively manage its capital. The Company evaluates the performance of
each operating segment based upon net income excluding certain net investment gains (osses), net of income taxes, and the impact from the
cumulative effect of changes in accounting, net of income taxes. Scheduled periodic settlement payments on derivative instrurents not qualifying for
hedge accounting are included in net investment gains (losses). The Company allocates certain non-recurring items, such as expenses associated with

certain legal proceedings, to Corporate & Other.

. Auto & Corporate
As of or for the Year Ended December 31, 2004 Institutional  Individua! Home International Reinsurance & Other Total
. {Dollars in millions)’

o= 04118 11 =S PP $ 10103 $ 4,172 $2948 $ 1,735 $ 3367 8 © $ 22316
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees . ......... .77 1,831 — 350 — 2 2,900
Net nvestment INCome. .. ... . i e 4,472 6,130 171 585 588 472 12,418
OtNEr TBVENUBS .« .« o v ettt ettt e ettt e e et e 632 444 35 23 57 7 1,188
Net investment gaing (I0SSES) .. ..o oo i e 186 74 ©) 23 60 (152) 182
Policynolder benefits and claims ........... ..ol 11,134 5102 2,079 1,614 2,725 8 22,662
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ............. . 960 1,674 — 152 212 — 2,898
Policyholder dividends ........ e e 107 1,638 2 47 20 — 1,814
OB EXDENISES .+ v e et e e e e 1,007 2,939 795 624 o64 532 7,761
Income (loss) from continuing operations before provision

(benefit) forincome taxes .. ... 2,002 1,298 2698 279 181 (220) 3,779
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes. .. ... .10 3 - — - 123 136
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes (80} - — (30) 5 (1) (86)
Netincome .................... A PP 1,271 870 208 163 105 141 2,758
Total ASSetS . .. 126,058 176,384 5,233 11,293 14,508 23,8337 356,808

“Deferred policy BCAUISIION COSIS . « .+ oo\ eee e 965 9,279 185 1,287 2,620 — 14,336
GoodWill, Nt . . e e 61 203 157 92 Q9 21 633
Separate aCcouNt 8sSets . ... ... B 36,913 48,933 — 923 14 (14) 86,769
Policyholder fiabilities . .. ... 70,083 103,091 3,180 8,025 10,973 (1,325) 194,027
Separate account liabilities . ....... ... o i e 36,913 48,933 — 923 14 (14) 86,769

' Auto & Caorporate
As of or for the Year Ended December 31, 2003 Institutional Individuat Home International  Reinsurance & Other Total
(Dollars in millions)

P eI . L $ 9083 $ 4344 $2008 3 1,678 $ 2668 $ (18 $ 20673
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees .......... 635 1,589 — 272 - — 2,496
Net investment iNCoOMe . . ..o e e e 4,028 6,194 168 502 473 184 11,539
OIher rBVENUBS .« o v e oottt et e et e e 592 407 32 80 49 39 1,199
Net investment gains (l0SSes) ... ... vvvr e e (293) (307} (15) 8 31 6) (582)
Policyholder benefts and clams . ... ...t 9,843 5039 2,138 1,457 2,136 51 20,665
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ............. 915 1,793 - 143 184 — 3,035
Policyholder dividends ..o . 108 1,700 1 55 21 — 1,975
Other BXDBNSES . vt e 1,784 2,847 756 660 740 304 7,091
Income (0ss) from continuing operations before provision )

(benefit) forincometaxes. ... 1,315 848 187 225 140 (156) 2,559
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes. ... .. 37 34 - - - 273 344
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting, net of income taxes (28) - - = - - - (26)
NEt OO i e e 849 601 167 208 92 310 2,217
Tolal @88BtS . .. e 113,743 165,774 4,698 9,835 12,833 19,858 326,841
Deferred policy acquisttion costs. .............. o oo 739 8,817 180 1,046 2,160 1 12,943
Goodwill, NBt ... : 59 206 157 85 100 21 628
Separate account assSetS ... ... 35,632 39,619 — 504 13 (12) 75,756
Policyholder liabifities . . ... ... e 61,509 100,278 2,843 7,179 9,783 (2,211) 179,571
Separate account liabilities . . ... 35632 39,619 - 504 13 (12) 75756
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Auto & : Corporate

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 Institutional  Individual Home International Reinsurance & Other Total
{Dolars in millions)

PO .« o et et e e $ 8245 $ 4,507 $2,828 § 1,511 $200 $ (19 $ 18,077
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees . ......... 624 1,379 - 144 L - - 2,147
Net Investment INCome. ... oot e e e 3,909 6,237 177 - 461 421 (22) 11,183
OtBr TEVENUES oottt e ettt e e 609 418 26 14 43 56 1,166
Net investment gains (losses) ......... B (488) (290) (46) (S) (C) (56) (892)
- Policyholder benefits and clams ... ... oo ‘ 3,345 5064 2,018 1,388 1,654 3 19,373
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ............. 932 1,783 - 79 146 — 2,950
Policyholder dividends . ... 115 1,770 - © 38 22 - 1,942
OB EXPENSES . o oo et ettt 1,631 2,639 793 507 617 726 6,813

Income (loss) from continuing operations before provision _ ‘
(benefit) for Income taXes . ..o v v 976 985 173 112 127 (770) 1,603
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes. .. ... 127 204 — — - 161 492
Net income (loss} ........ P 759 826 132 84 -84 (280) 1,605

Net investment income and net investment gains (losses) are based upon the actual results of each segment's specifically identifiable asset portfolio
adjusted for allocated capital. Other costs are allocated to sach of the segments tased upon: () a review of the nature of such costs; (i} time studies
analyzing the amount of employee compensation costs incurred by each segment; and (i) cost estimates included in the Company's product pricing.

Beginning in 2003, the Company changed its methodology of allocating capital to its business segments from Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") to
Economic Capital. Prior to 2003, the Company's business segments’ allocated equity was' primarily based on RBC, an intemally developad formula
based on applying a multiple to the NAIC Statutory Risk-Based Capital and included certain adjustments in accordance with GAAP. Economic Capital is
an intemally developed risk capital model, the purpose of which is to measure the risk in the business and to provide a basis upon which capital is
deployed. The Economic Capital model accounts for the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in MetLife's businesses. This is in contrast to the
standardized regulatory RBC formula, which is not as refined in its risk calculations with respect to the nuances of the Company's businesses.

The change in methodalogy is being applied prospeotlvely This change has and will continue to impact the level of net investment income and net
income of each of the Company’s business segments. A portion of net investment incoms s credited to the segments based on the level of allocated
equity. This change in methodology of allocating equity does not impact the Company’s consolidated net investment income or net income.

Tre following table presents actual and pro forma net investment income with respect to the Company's segments for the year ended Decemn-
ber 31, 2002, The amounts shown as pro forma reflect net investment income that would have been reported in 2002 had the Company allocated
capital based on Economic Capital rather than on the basis of RBC. ,

o

Net Investment Income
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2002

Actual Pro forma
(Dollars in millions}

S O] . ettt e e e e e e e e e e $ 3908 3971
L e 1 1 - P 6,237 6,148
AU & HOME . L e 177 160
Q1T gaT= 170 T O P e 461 424
Reinsurance . ............. et e e e e e e e e e i 421 382
oM & Ol . o o it ittt e e e e e e e e e (22) 98
o= R e $11,183 $11,183

Revenues derived from any customer did not exceed 10% of consolidated revenues. Revenues from U.S. operations were $35,058 miliion,
$31,844 million and $29,878 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, which represented 90%, 90% and 91%,
respectively, of consolidated revenues.

17. Acquisitions and Dlsposmons .

On January 31, 2005, the Holding Company completed the sale of SSRM Holdings, Inc. (“SSRM") to a third party for $328 milion of cash and
stock. As a result of the sale of SSRM, the Company recognized income from discontinued operations of approximately $150 milion, net of income
taxes, comprised of a realized gain of $166 million, net of income taxes, and an operating expense related to a lease abandonment of $16 million, net of
income taxes. Under the terms of the agreement, MatLife will have an opportunity to receive, prior to the end of 2008, additional payments aggregating
up to approximately 25% of the base purchase price, based on, among other things, certain revenue retention and growth measures. The purchase price
is also subject o reduction aver five years, depending on retention of certain MetLife-related business. The Company has reclassified the assets,
liabilities and operations of SSRM into discontinued operations for all periods presented in the consolidated financial staternents. Additionally, the sale of
SSRM resulted in the elimination of the Company’s Assst Management segment. The remaining asset management business, which is insignificant, has
been reclassified into Corporate & Other. The Company's discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 also includes expenses of
approximately $20 milion, net of income taxes, related to the sale of SSRM. See also Note 18.

In 2003, RGA entered into a coinsurance agreement under which it assumed the traditional U.S. life reinsurance business of Allianz Life Insurance
Company of North America. The transaction added approximately $278 billion of life reinsurance in-force, $246 milion of premium and $11 milion of
income before income tax expense, excluding minority interest expense, In 2003. The effects of such transaction are included within the Reinsurance
segment.
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In 2002, the Company acquired Aseguradora Hidalge S.A. (“Hidalgo”), an insurance company based in Mexico with approximately $2.5 billion in
assets as of the date of acquisition (June 20, 2002). During the second quarter of 2003, as a part of its acquisition and integration strategy, the
International.segment complated the legal merger of Hidalgo into its original Mexican subsidiary, Seguro Genesis, S.A., forming MetLife Mexico, S.A. As a
result of the merger of these companies, the Company recorded $62 million of eamings, net of income taxes, from the merger and a reduction in
policyholder liabifities resulting from a change in reserve methodology. Such benefit was recorded in the second quarter of 2003 in the International
segment.

Ses also Note 20 for Subsequent Events.

18. Discontinued Operations

Real Estate - - : .

The Company actively manages its real estate portfolio with the objective to maximize eamings through sélective acquisitions and dispositions.
Income related to real estate classified as held-for-sale or sold is presented as discontinued operations. These assets are camied at the lower of
depreciated cost or fair value less expected disposition costs.

The following teble presents the components of income from discontinued real estate operations:

Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(Do"ars in millions)
Investment income .......... e S $136 $231  $530
Investment expense ......... e e e e e e e e e e 82) (138) 351)
Net investment gains: . ............. e e 139 420 582
O Al TOVENUES .« . ottt e e e e e e e e e 193 513 761
]IS Q=0 = S AP 13 4 1
PrOVISION fOr MO BB o it i i et ittt ettt e e ettt e e e e e _83 186 276
Income from discontinued operations, Net of INCOME tEXES . ... ottt e e e $1 17 $323 $484

H

The camying value of real estate related to discontinued operations was $252 million and $1, 170 milion at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. ’
The following table shows the real estate discontinued operations by segment:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Net investrment income

Institutional .. ... e AP $ 68 $12 $42
Individual .. ............. e e 7 12 57
Corporate & Oter. ..o e e e e O 41 69 80
_ Total Nt INVESIMENt NCOME . . o oottt e e e e et e e e e e e $ 54 $ 93 3179
Net inveétment gains (losses)
051101 T P $ 9 %45 $156
AVIAUAL L« e e e e e e e (3) 43 262
COrPOrAIE & Bl o ottt e e e e e 133 332 164
‘ Total net investment gains {losses) ............... U $139 $420 $582
Interest Expense )
INAVIAUAL . .. e i S $—-—. $ 1 $ 1
L07e] 100 21T . 0T 13 3 —
Total INterest XPENSE « ..o oo ee v e $13 8 4 1

In April of 2004, MetLife sold one of its real estate mvestments Sears Tower. The sale resulted in a gain of $85 mxlhon net of income taxes.

Operations
During the third quarter of 2004, the Company entered into an agreerment 1o sell its wholly-owned subsidiary, SSRM {0 a third party, which was soid
on January 31, 2005. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities and operations of SSRM have been reclassified into discontinued operations for all periods
presented. The operations of SSRM include affiiated revenues of $59 million, $54 milion and $56 million, for the vears ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively, related to asset management senvices provided by SSRM to the Company that have not been eliminated from discontinued
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operations as these transactions will continue after the sale of SSRM. The following tables present the amounts related to operations of SSRM that have
been combined with the discontinued real estate operations in the consolidated income statements:
Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions}

Revenues from discontinUed OpEratONS . . . ...t v e ettt et e e e e e e s $328 $231 $239
income from discontinued operations before provision for NCOME taXES .o v i e $ 32 $ 34 $ 14
Provision for INCOME 18XES . ..ot e et e e R _ 18 _ 13 _ B
Income from discontinued operations, net of INCOME TaXES . . ..ottt $ 19 $ 21 $ 8
December 31,
2004 2003
} (Pollars in millions)

- Equity securities ... ........ e $ 4¢ $ 14
Real estale and real estate [OINT VENUNES .. ..o 36 3
Short term investments ... . . e e 33 17
OHNEr INVESIEA BSSEIS . . vttt ettt et e e e e 20 8
Cash and cash equivalents. . .........oevvn. . e e 55 50
Premiums and Other TECEIVaDIES . . . . o i e e e e e e 38 23
LTt £ _ 88 __68

Total 8SSEtS NBIA-IOr-SaIB . . . .ottt e e $379 $183
Short-term debt ... e e $ 19 $ —
CUIrent INCOME taXES PAYADIE . . . . o it e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e 1 1
Deferred iInCoOmeE taxES DaYADIE . . ..ottt ettt e e e e e e s 1 2
(=l 7= 11111 AP 219 67

Total liabilitles held-for-sale . ... .. e $240 $ 70

See Note 17 for further discussion of the disposition of SSRM.

19. Fair Value Information

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by using available market information and the valuation methodologies
described below. Considerable judgment is often required In interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates
presented herein may not necessarily be indicative of amounts that could be realized in a cument market exchange. The use of different assumptions or
valuation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Amounts related to the Company's financial instruments were as follows;

Notionat Carrying Estimated
December 31, 2004 Amount Value Fair Value
' ' (Doflars in millions)
Assets:
FIXEO MaIUMHIES . <« v ettt e e e et ] $176,763  $176,763
EQUITY SBCUMIES L .\t e e et e e e e $ 2,188 $ 2188
MOMgage and eI 08NS « o v ettt e et e $ 32,406 B 33,902
POICY J0BMIS . . o L e e e e e e ' $ 8899 § 889¢
SO BTN NVESIMEIES © oottt e e $ 2,663 $ 2663
Cash and Cash BQUINVAIENTS . . . .ttt et e et et et e $ 4,051 $ 4051
Morgage 10an ComMMIMENTS . . . ..o e e e e $1.189 3 — 3 4
Commitments o fund parnership INVestmentS . ... .o e $1,324 $ — $ -
Liabilities: o ’ '
Policyhalder account balances ............ AU e PR P e $ 70777 % 69,688
S0 7= 00 e =" o) P $ 1,445 $ 1,445
LONG-IMN Bt . o e $ 7412 § 7818
Shares subject to mandatory redemption . ... . . i e $ 278 '3 3ss
Payable under securities loaned transactions ............ D PN $ 28,678 $ 28,678
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N Notional Carrying Estimated
December 31, 2003 Amount Value Fair Value
- {Dollars in millions)
Assets. ‘
FIxed MAIUMES . . o e e e e e e $167,752 $167,752
EQUIY SBOUMIES &\ttt ettt et e ettt e e e et e et e e e $ 1584 $ 1584
Mortgage and other 10ans . ......oovi i e e $ 26248  $ 28259
POlCY OaNS . Lttt $ 8,749 $ 8,749
SO IVESIMINES v ettt ettt et e e et e e $ 1,809 $ 1,809
Cash and Cash BQUIVAIBNTS . . . . vttt t e e et et e e . $ 3,683 $ 3,683
Mortgage 10an COMMIMENtS. .. . ..o\t et el e e SR .. 8679 % - 8 (@)
Commitments to fund partnership investments . .. ... e $1,380 $ — & —
Liabifities: -
Policyholder account BalanCas . ..o vt o e $ 63,957 $ 64,837
RS0l = £ e (=Y o P $ 3642 $ 3642
LG QB0 . o v e e e e $ 5703 $ 6041
Shares subject to mandatory redemption ... ... ool e , $ 277 $ 336
Payable under securities loaned tranSactions .. .. ... v i e $ 27083 § 27,083

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments are summarized as follows:

Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities
The fair value of fixed maturities and equity securities are based upon quotations published by applicable stock exchanges or received from other
relisble 'sources. For securities for which the market values were not readily available, fair values were estimated using quoted market prices of
comparable investments.

Mortgage and Other Loans, Mortgage Loan Commitments and Commitments to Fund Partnership Investments
Fair values for mortgage and other loans are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows, using curent interest rates for similar foans with
similar credit risk. For morigage loan commitments, the estimated fair value is the net premium or discount of the commitments. Commitments to fund
partnership investments have no stated interest rate and are assumed to have a fair value of zero.

Policy Loans
The carrying values for policy loans approximate fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments
The camying values for cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments approximated fair values due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

Policyholder Account Balances
The fair value of policyholder account balances is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows based upon interest rates currently being
offered for similar contracts with maturities consistent with those remaining for the agreements being valued.

Short-term and Long-term Debt, Payables Under Securities Loaned Transactions and Shares Subject to Mandatory Redemption
The fair values of short-term and long-term debt, payables under securities loaned transactions and shares subject to mandatory redemption are
determined by discounting expected future cash flows using risk rates currently avallable for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The fair value of derivative instruments, including financial futures, fnancyai forwards, interest rate, credit default and foreign currency swaps, foreign
currency forwards, caps, floors, and options are based upon quotations obtained from dealers or other refiable sources. See Note 3 for derivative fair
value disclosures.

20. Subsequent Events

On January 31, 2005, the Holding Company entered into an agreement to acquire all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of certain md;rect
subsidiaries of Citigroup Inc., including the majority of The Travelers Insurance Company (“Travelers”), and substantially all of Citigroup Inc.’s international
insurance businesses for a purchase price of $11.5 billion, subject to adjustment as described in the acquisition agreement, As a condition to closing,
Citigroup Inc. and the Holding Company will enter into ten-year agreements under which the Company will expand its distribution by making products
available through certain Citigroup distribution channels, subject to appropriate suitability and other standards. The transaction is expected to close in the
summer of 2005. Approximately $1 bilion to $3 bilion of the purchase price will be paid in MetLife stock with the remainder paid in cash which will be
financed through a combination of cash on hand, debt, mandatorily convertible securities and selected asset sales depending on market conditions,
timing, valuation considerations and the relative attractiveness of funding alternatives.

The Company has entered into brokerage agreements relating to the possible sale of two of its real estate investments, 200 Park Avenue and One
Madison Avenue in New York City. The Company is also contemplating other asset sales, including selling some or all of its beneficially owned shares in
RGA. The Company's reinsurance segment consists primarily of the operations of RGA.

See also Note 17 for subsequent event related to {he disposition of SSRM.
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customers. The MetLife companies serve individuals in approximately
13 million households in the U.S. and provide benefits to 37 million
employees and family members througn their plan sponsors. Outside the
U.S., the Metlife companies serve approximately 9 milion customers
through direct insurance operations in Argentina, Brazi, Chite,. China,
Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Mexico, South Korea, Taiwan and
Uruguay. ‘

Corporate Headquarters
MetLife, Inc.

200 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10166-0188
212-578-2211

Internet Address
http.//www.metlife.com

Form 10-K and Other Information
MetLife, Inc. will provide to shareholders without charge, upon

written or oral request, a copy of Metl.ife, Inc.’s annual report .

on Form 10-K (including financial statements and financial
statement schedules, but without exhibits) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004. MetLife, Inc. will furnish to
requesting shareholders any exhibit to the Form 10-K upon the
payment of reasonable expenses incurred by MetLife, Inc. in
furnishing such exhibit. Requests should be directed to MetLife
Investor Relations, MetlLife, Inc., One MetLife Plaza, 27-01

Queens Plaza North, Long Island City, New York 11101-4007,

via the Internet, by going to http://ir.metlife.com and selecting
“Information Requests,” or by calling 1-800-649-3593.- The
annual report on Form 10-K ailso may be accessed at
http://ir.metlife.com and at the website of the Securities and
Exchange Commission at http://www.sec.gov. ‘

Transfer Agent/Shareholder Records
For information or assistance regarding shereholder accounts or
dividend checks, please contact MetLife's transfer agent:

Melion Investor Services, LLC

P.O. Box 4412 ,

South Hackensack, NJ 07806-2012
1-800-649-3593

TDD for Hearing impaired; 201-373-5040
www.meglioninvestor.com

_ Trustee, MetLife Policyholder Trust

Wilmington Trust Company
Rodney Square Nerth
1100 North Market Street
Wilmington, DE 198390
302-651-1000
www.wilmingtontrust.com

-] Pn‘ntéd on recycled paper with environmentally friendty inks in the USA.
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Investor Information
http://ir metlife.com

Governance Information

hitp:/Avww metlife. com/corporategovemance

MetLife Néws
http://metnews.metiife.com

Common Stock and Dividend Information

MetLife Inc.'s common-stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) under the trading symbol “MET." The following table presents the
high and low closing prices for the common stock of MetLife, Inc. on the
NYSE for the pericds indicated. Metlife,  Inc. declared an annual
dividend of $0.46 per share on September 28, 2004 and $0.23 per
share on October 21, 2003. Future dividend decisions wil be
determined by Metlife, Inc.'s Board of Directors after taking into
consideration factors such as Metlife, inc.’s curment eamings, expectad
medium- and long-term eamings, financial condition, regulatory capital
position, and applicable govemmental regulations and policies. See
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations — Liguidity and Capital Rescurces” and Note 12
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

. Commoen Stock Price
2004 High Low

First guarter ' $35.87 $32.63
Second quarter $36.66 $33.21
Third quarter $38.73 $33.97
" Féurth quarter © - © 54118 $33.98

Common Stock Price

2003 High Low

First quarter $20.34 $24.01
Second quarter $28.20 $26.61
Third quarter $29.58 $27.35
Fourth quarter $33.92 $28.96

As of March 1, 2005, there were approximately 6.1 milion beneficial
shareholders of Metlife, Inc.

CEO and CFO Certifications

The CEO Certification required by Section 308A.12(a) of the New York
Stock Exchange Listed Company Manual was submitted to the NYSE in
2004,

MetLife, Inc..has fled the CEO and CFO Certifications reguired by
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as exhibits o its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004,



